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CORPORATE STRUCTURE
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Set out below is the financial summary for the year ended 31 December 2018 (“the year” or “the

reporting period”):

Revenue of the Group in 2018 increased by 56.75% to RMB2,510.48 million as compared with
2017.

Profit and total comprehensive income attributable to the equity shareholders of the Company in

2018 increased by 45.66% to RMB942.54 million as compared with 2017.

Basic/diluted eamings per share in 2018 increased by 46.15% to RMB2.09 as compared with 2017.

The Board of Directors proposed to pay a final cash dividend of RMBO0.6 per share, subject to the
approval by the shareholders at the forthcoming AGM to be held by the Company.

y

FINANCIAL SUMMARY
MBRE

UTREZ-_Z—N\F+A=+—RALEFE(X
FEIRBERN DO BRHE

ZE - N\FAEEEETEAARBL5048E 8
JC ' Rl = F—tFIERS56.75% °

ZE-N\FARRRERREE ST K2R
MERAREMMBETL  AL-_T—tFEE
45.66% ©

—T—\EEHEE S BHRTBARBLT
Fltt —ZE—+F18E46.15%

EXeEARERPESREERARKT - A
ERERN AR B HEBITHORRBFE RS LHLUE -

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
—Z—UF —ZT-RF —ZT—RF —ET—+F —E-N\F
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000

ARETIT ARETT ARETT ARETET AR%¥TxR

Operating result RExE

Revenue et 440,904 692910 941,504 1,601,567 2,510,476

Gross profit EF 321,075 514,576 7277270 1,321,151 2,111,667

Profit from operation AREE T 205,445 339,605 460,299 752,484 1,103,742

Profit before taxation BRFR AT 163,115 314,706 453,066 748,195 1,102,324

Profit and total comprehensive RN B RERRARE 135,343 265,750 380,597 647,101 942,536
income attributable to equity FEaF REmEiasiesE

shareholders of the Company

Profit margin FlE=E

Gross profit margin EFE 72.82% 74.26% 77.25% 82.49% 84.11%

Net profit margin HEFI = 30.70% 38.35% 40.42% 39.11% 35.90%

Earnings per share sRER

Basic & Diluted (RMB) ERREEARE - T) 045 0.79 0.84 143 2.09

Assets condition EEMR

Total assets REE 949,531 2,577,415 2,831,109 3,775,975 4,560,940

Total equity attributable to equity AN/ B 5 A% SR B (L B AE == 277,255 2,142,849 2,457,807 2,807,836 3,433,956
shareholders of the Company

Non-controlling interests FEERRAE N/A 73 N/A 738 N/A 73 252,750 244,972

Total liabilities FEN=R 672,276 434,566 373,302 715,389 882,012

Net cash generated from operating & & /EEAT1SIR & 558 129,878 287,394 397,206 670,751 715,392
activities

Quick ratio RELL 0.6 6.1 63 3. 2.0
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CORPORATE PROFILE
AR

YiChang HEC Changliang Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. is a pharmaceutical manufacturing company that
focuses on the development, manufacturing and sale of pharmaceutical products in the therapeutic
areas of anti-virus, endocrine diseases and cardiovascular diseases. It's the domestic pharmaceutical

manufacturing platform of the HEC Group.

The Company entered into China's pharmaceutical industry through the establishment of its
predecessor, Yichang Changjiang Pharmaceutical Co,, Ltd., in 2001. Up to now, we have been
operating for more than 18 years, and are in the leading position in the domestic pharmaceutical

industry in terms of pharmaceutical sales performance and research and development capability.

The Company was converted into a joint stock limited company on || May 2015, and was listed
on the Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange on 29 December 2015, with the stock code
01558.HK.

Since its establishment, the Company has always followed the motto of “serving the Chinese
with higher standards” and has a strong industrial foundation and leading competitive edges in the
manufacturing, marketing and sales of pharmaceutical products. As of 31 December 2018, the
Company has manufactured, promoted and sold a total of 33 pharmaceutical products in China,
with more than 2,000 professional sales staff across nationwide product distribution network.
Kewei (oseltamivir phosphate), one of the Company’s core products, is the first-line drug for clinical
application of anti-influenza virus in China and its granules form is the exclusive patented product
of the Company. Following the inclusion in the National Drug List for Basic Medical Insurance, Work-
Related Injury Insurance and Matemity Insurance (2017 Version) issued by the Ministry of Human
Resources and Social Security of the People’s Republic of China in 2017, oseltamivir phosphate was

included in the National Essential Drug List (2018 Version) in 2018.

In addition, the Company has built strategic cooperative partnerships with various renowned
pharmaceutical enterprises within the PRC and abroad, including the entering of a strategic
agreement with Lannett Company, Inc. (NYSE: LCl) to jointly develop generic insulin drugs
and enter the US market. The Company also established a joint venture company with TaiGen
Biopharmaceuticals Holdings Limited (“TaiGen Biopharmaceuticals”) (4157.TWO) to conduct
clinical trials of combination therapy with Yimitasvir Phosphate and Furaprevir. The Company
reached a strategic cooperative partnership with China National Accord Medicines Corporation
Ltd. (“China National Accord Medicines™) (000028.5Z) and kick-offed its first operational project
during the year of 2018. The Company believes that the abovementioned strategic cooperative

partnerships will bring huge development prospects for the Company's business.

HERGARITEEZRNHARARTRZ-FKFIR
RS - AW - DIMESRRRARETES
EmifE  LEREENEERE  TRELEE
ETEBEARETE -

P

RAREBBKR IR T —FHRFAS &
TEZBRATEAPEEEETE - BEBA - &
B A ISHREMLEESL - BEMmiHEEEA R
BE TRl N BE BRI TR RS HIAL ©

&

“E-RAFREA+—H  ARRNRHERHERRA
YR -E-RAE+ A -+ AREBBMIAR
FIREINEMNE LT - IREREBOIS58.HK °

BECZAZR - AR R R FA AR SR ERE S
BAIREIER  EFEMPENLHTEBIAAHE
EHMEXERMELNGFES - HE_T—/\F
TZA=+—R ARBEBRRNEE  HERHEE
ERBRELER  UHAEE2ENERD HE
HREEEEABRML000E c ARFROEmMZ
B (BB RFME) 2T RS R
RIERM— 4R A% - HRENAIR RAREBRER
Emo RN _T—tFARBATEANERNLSE
REHEMOHIFELEFRE - TERRFE
B IR 2 in B 87 (= F—+FHR) )% - BBRER B
BER T\ FEMNBEREREY B —F
—/VEFIR)) °

UEoh - AR EEE S B AN R BB T B
A ERHBIE - BIEHEERLannett Company, Inc.
(ARZZFF « LCDRT M BiRs 1fas S A B R R & = U
HFEEANS  BEEASEEFEERBH AR
NEN[KSEE]) (4157 TWO)RIAERE] » L
BB Rt B R AN IR EN IS ARERARAR
HEEEE - WEERNDARAR([EEE—B)
(000028.S7)¥ERK T EXRR S ER AR - BIEEEE
BERZZ—N\FRNERME - AQREE - UL
HEAERER  BE2AAARERTREANER
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The Company is committed to the implementation of professionalism, branding and differentiated
development strategy all along. The Company is committed to the establishment of a professional
marketing team, a steady and innovative marketing operation and a strategic integration of resources,
in order to create brand characteristics and core competitiveness unique to “Pharm HEC" in the

industry and create further value for the vast pharmaceutical consumers and our partners.

In the future, the Company will further develop and expand its product lines and markets, enhance
the international production standards and quality and continue to expand the coverage of
marketing and sales to facilitate the further growth of business and profitability of the Company, and

strive for more economic benefits and cost-effectiveness for our investors.
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HISTORY OF DEVELOPMENT
RRER

® Inclusion in the Hong Kong Stock Connect List
under the Shenzhen-Hong Kong Stock Connect

® Became a constituent of the Hang Seng family
of indexes

® Being a subsidiary of A-share listed company,
Guangdong HEC Technology Holding Co., Ltd.

o BMARBETHERBRESE

o BMANEBERHRIIKD R

° RABAR LT ARERREIBHIZERR G
BRABZMB LR

® Started the cooperation with TaiGen
Biopharmaceuticals on Hepatitis C.
combination therapy

® obtained three approvals for the
clinical trials for insulin product

® Pharm HEC was awarded as
the “Listed Enterprises of the Year 2016”
s BASBENRANBSFEIRAGHE
o JMERSREREFERRILAF

o RGREE (CB—RFLHEERR)

Kewei product dominated the largest market
share of oseltamivir phosphate products in
China
TRERGETEBRRAMEERTS
BRAIEE

The Company was licensed to
manufacture oseltamivir phosphate
products in China

WS EHB R A R

2016

2013

2008

2001

Results of the Company sustained a

significant increase as compared to that of 2016
Oseltamivir phosphate was listed as

a drug recommended for treatment for
influenza by the Influenza Treatment Guidelines
(2018 Edition)

DNRAFBEBN -Z-AFERENEER
(RITHERSaFER (Z2—/\FR) ) &
BERAMEWTI R RBEBEY

Transformed into a joint stock limited

company by means of reorganization

Established strategic cooperation relationship

with our controlling shareholder, and acquired

the pre-emptive right to purchase products developed
by the research institute of the controlling shareholder
Successfully listed on the Stock Exchange on 29 December 2015
EARHBROERLT
HEERBRREVERS(ERR  #5
ERBRTBMERMERMRELEERE
“E-AFT AT A RRBIRERBERS

The Company’s Kewei granule product was registered

with the China Food and Drug Administration and the

Company became the only manufacturer of oseltamivir

phosphate granule in China
DRTHENAERREREmEREERE LM
» R EIME — — R R R RN A E R

The predecessor of the Company was established in
Hubei Province and formally entered into China’s
pharmaceutical industry

REABSENIERY - EXEAPEIBEEETHE
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On behalf of the Board, | am hereby pleased to present the annual results of the Group for the year

ended 31 December 2018 and the future outlook of 2019.

2018 REVIEW

2018 was a challenging year for China's pharmaceutical industry. At the beginning of the year, the
National Medical Insurance Bureau (BIZR BB (R[E /D) was officially established which marked the
new stage of medical insurance reform. In the middle of the year, the vaccine event has triggered

close attention to drug safety. At the end of the year, the Document on Centralized Procurement

B & AR ER BB U )) was issued. Under this background,

—

of Drugs in 4+7 Cities ({4+7 3§ T % &
the regulators would continue to pay more attention to the quality of pharmaceutical products,
the standard production system and the regulated operation of pharmaceutical enterprises, and
would also promote the transformation of the industry to a standardized, normalized and efficient
direction. Meanwhile, the regulators would further encourage pharmaceutical enterprises to increase
investment in research and development (“R&D”) and deepen the development of high value-
added industries by expanding the scope of priority evaluation to accelerate the launching process
for innovative clinical-needed drug and encouraging enterprises to promote drug innovation. In
view of this, the consolidation of China's pharmaceutical industry is just around the corner. While
pharmaceutical enterprises are facing more challenges, quality enterprises will also gain more historic

development opportunities.

As a company listed on the Stock Exchange, the Company has entered its fourth year. The Board
has been upholding the governance principle of “standardization, independence, rational structure
and high efficiency” and constantly leading the management of the Company to improve its
governance level and strengthen the Company’s management systems and internal control, striving
to become a highly competitive listed company in the domestic and even the international market.
The Company completed the restructuring in mid-2018 and became a subsidiary of A-share listed
company Guangdong HEC Technology Holding Co., Ltd. Moreover, in September 2018, the
Company was included in the Hong Kong Stock Connect's stock list under the Shenzhen-Hong
Kong Stock Connect and was selected as a Hang Seng Index Series and other index components
such as Hang Seng Healthcare Index. All of the above initiatives are strong recognition of the
Company's business and future development prospects by China, Hong Kong and overseas capital
markets. During the Reporting Period, the Company completed the acquisition of Yichang HEC
Pharmaceutical Manufacturing Co., Ltd. (*Yichang HEC Pharmaceutical”), an active pharmaceutical
ingredient (“API") factory, and six other domestic leading generic drugs, further expanding its
production capacity and product portfolio, laying a solid foundation for the subsequent supply of
products and sales. In addition, during the year, the Company introduced Blackstone, the world's
leading investment capital, with which the establishment of strategic partnership will support the
Company's continued growth in its business by acquiring drug to enrich product lines, improving
development strategies, strengthening international business cooperation and enhancing corporate

governance.

4
CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EEREEE

In 2018, the Company's overall performance recorded a leap-forward growth following the highly
efficient operations by the management of the Company and the joint efforts of all employees of
the Group. For the year ended 3| December 2018, revenue of the Group achieved RMB2,510.48
million, representing an increase of 56.75% as compared to the previous year, and a net profit
of RMB901.22 million, representing an increase of 43.88% as compared to last year, realizing a

significant increase in the overall performance.

FUTURE PROSPECTS

The Company has established a mature drug research platform and will continue to deepen
innovation in the therapeutic areas of anti-virus, endocrine and metabolic diseases, cardiovascular
diseases. Looking ahead into the future, the Company will continually increase its investment in R&D
and accelerate the transformation of drug R&D into clinical research and clinical applications in the
above-mentioned therapeutic areas. Additionally, the Company will closely follow clinical needs,
strengthen the R&D of oncology and anti-fibrosis drugs, continuously introduce new products and

enrich existing product portfolio.

In terms of sales, the Company will continue to strengthen the construction of the sales team,
consolidate its path in academic promotion and further expand the primary healthcare market. To
prepare for the future, we have established a scientific and sustainable marketing strategy to create
a highly recognized business image and well-respected reputation in the domestic market and laid

down a solid foundation for new products to be rapidly launched in the market in the future.

We believe that under the leadership of the Board and the efforts of all employees, the Company
would become a benchmark pharmaceutical enterprise in China and the world as well as a major
and influential brand in China’s pharmaceutical industry, through formulating comprehensive
development strategy, implementing strict management system and strengthening of innovative

R&D.

Once again, | would like to express my sincere gratitude to all Shareholders, Board members, the

management of the Company and all employees and partners.

TANG Xinfa

Chairman

22 March 2019
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HIGHLIGHTS OF THE YEAR
FEXRER

Completion of review and approval of esomeprazole sodium for injection by the National

Medical Products Administration for launching into market.

THRARRINMERRELEETERR
e - BELT -

The Company acquired the know — how, the ownership of the domestic approvals for 2. RARMBRRGHEXBE R UMEER
manufacturing and marketing and the right to sale of Clarithromycin Sustained Release FEE8PER  RUBER  ERPE
Tablets (GefIEZ=AEFEFT), Levofloxacin Tablets (A2 &2 Fr), Clarithromycin Tablets F - BEDARER RRZENWELEABSE
(REMBZEFR), Moxifloxacin Tablets (78 & Fr), Olmesartan Tablets (B5/8EE ) BVRTARER ~ EE R E BN EE
and Esomeprazole Magnesium Enteric-coated Capsule (IR ZRER MW EGABTE) in the REFR RS -

PRC from Sunshine Lake Pharma.

The Company became a constituent of Hang Seng Family of Indexes. 3. RAFERNEBEEERE RS 2D

The Company proposed to issue US$400,000,000 3.0% H share convertible bonds to 4. RARMBARBETHERTFNER3.0%
Blackstone. FUHAR AT R &5 o

The Company has been included in the Hong Kong Stock Connect list under the Shenzhen- 5. AARVERNRSETHBRBRERE -
Hong Kong Stock Connect.

The Company became a subsidiary of A-shares listed company Guangdong HEC Technology 6. ARaKBAR ETM AR BRER RS
Holding Co., Ltd. BRHBRAT 2B AR -

Oseltamivir, benzbromarone and moxifloxacin were included in the National Essential Drug 7. BAME FREREREASEMABRE
List. KRB E 8 o

The Company has passed the recognition review of the National High-Tech Enterprise. 8. AAFBB RS E RTES -
The Company obtained the following national invention patent: method for synthesizing 9. RAREBEREREN  (—ERBEREM
isomers of oseltamivir phosphate ( ( —TEBE R A EEBEMENEKTE) ), BEEBBMENGKAE)  (—EBYItE
method for quality detection of glipizide capsules ( { —TEI& 7Nk BB A E S #0877 BEMNESWANTE) (—EREEEER
%) ), the pichia fermentation method for enhancing the expression of insulin and its analog HIEBOURERENERBETEEE) -
precursors ( { —ERSBEESE R EBUYRBRENERBESRETE) ).

The Company was conferred as the provincial technology and innovative platform (A% 10, AR RERILE[ B AR EIF TS IFEF -
FEIFTFA) in Hubei province.

The Company was awarded the Intellectual Property Model Construction Enterprise in ||, AR GE[HILE NS EETREER DX
Hubei province (#i3b& M E R EER D). 5%

The Economy and Information Technology Committee of Hubei province promulgated the 2. LB & BEMEB(L T E @B M HitE X
list of the invisible champion enterprises in various segments among the pillar industries in HEXEES>ESHBEEELEILE - A2
Hubei province, of which the Company was awarded the Invisible Champion Technology RIEIBEEERE/NEA]L

Giant (BB ERHLNE A).

The Company acquired Yichang HEC Pharmaceutical. 13 AARWEEERGREE -

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 & 9



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEBNWE D

10

INDUSTRY REVIEW

Looking back to 2018, China’'s economy faced various challenges. As a national emerging
industry of strategic importance, the pharmaceutical industry has maintained a steady growth
in the light of national policy. Meanwhile, Chinese pharmaceutical industry has entered
into a new stage of development under the policy guidelines of the National Plan for Drug
Safety during the period of the |3th Five-year Plan. The relevant government agencies will
strengthen the supervision on the entire process to ensure the safety, validity and quality
of drugs and encourage innovative R&D to promote quality of drugs. The outlook of the

pharmaceutical industry in China is still full of opportunities and challenges.

Release of new Essential Drug List advantageous to the sales of newly included
drugs

In October 2018, the National Health Commission of China released the National Essential
Drug List (2018 Version) (BIREAEEY) B $%(20/8F/k)) (the “Essential Drug List").
The main adjustment of this list lies on the clinical needs, the balance between chinese
and westem medicines, the increase in number of drug varieties from 520 to 685 and the
inclusion of urgently needed new drugs in clinical practice. The entry into the Essential
Drug List will be advantageous to the new drugs where such drugs will obtain bulk volume
purchase from primary healthcare institutions and increase its market share. In addition, the
establishment of the dynamic adjustment mechanism of the Essential Drug List enables a
timely inclusion of newly launched drugs which have better therapeutic outcome than the
listed drugs and with a reasonable price, thereby promoting pharmaceutical innovation and

being favorable to pharmaceutical companies with strong R&D background.

Promote consistency evaluation and centralized procurement, the generic
drug market facing consolidation

The “Document on Centralized Procurement of Drugs in 4+7 Cities” {4+73k 1 %% &£ 7
FREE 1) was officially released in November 2018. In face of the year-on-year increasing
pressure of medical insurance payment at the national level and the further tightening control
on medical insurance fees, the generic drug market will usher in a round of comprehensive
consolidation. Pharmaceutical companies with strong R&D capabilities, diversified product
portfolio and well-developed production systems will enjoy the benefits offered by this

consolidation to capture greater market share.

YICHANG HEC CHANGJIANG PHARMACEUTICAL CO., LTD.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENmR D

Looking into the future, while the government continues to strongly support the BERK  BIREEBR DT IGBEITER
development of the pharmaceutical industry, its supervision and guidance to the industry RERIEE - b —HNa T EMES E
will be further strengthened at the same time. In the future, the industry landscape will BE o RIRITERBKEES L BEIEE
continue to differentiate. Pharmaceutical companies with strong R&D capabilities, enriched MEEH  LBEEMLEL NALERR -
drug pipeline, well-developed production systems, strong brand advantages and excellent BAMBERREFTHEEERNE LD
marketing team will gain unprecedented development opportunities. The Group will also EBEBAFMABNEESTRH - NEBEBE
seize the opportunity and strive to build an all-rounded pharmaceutical platform integrating ICE®E  BNITEEEE  WEREEAS
production, R&D and sales and become a leading pharmaceutical enterprise in China. —BHRARETS  BHEMNAEANETE
BE(pEE o
BUSINESS REVIEW . EBEE
l. Summary of Overall Results l. R AN
In 2018, the Group achieved a revenue of RMB2,510.48 million, representing an ZT-N\F AEBEEETEIAR
increase of 56.75% as compared to 2017 and maintaining a relatively high growth. #251048 B8 - R-T—tFRLL
Profit and total comprehensive income attributable to equity shareholders of the HRESTS%  HERBESEE
Company recorded RMB942.54 million, representing an increase of 45.66% as AN R R R AR R AR A R 2 E
compared to 2017. Kewei, Ertongshu, Oumeining, Xinhaining and Xining are still the HRBAARBIMNMABEETL B
core products of the Group, with revenue accounted for 89.50%, 3.93%, 2.27%, 1.20% LT —+F R IR 45.66% © R - A
and 1.70%, respectively of the total revenue. There was no change in the structure of B BRI  BEE- - EE - E%
core products of the Group. MARREENZOER - EXEFAG

KBE R D5 Bl £89.50% ~ 3.93% »
227% ~ 1.20% K 170% » ANEEZOE
miEEREE L -

2.  R&D Pipeline 2. WRER
The Group made outstanding R&D progress in the therapeutic areas of anti-virus, ZE-N\F - AEEERERRSM
endocrine and metabolic diseases during 2018. b R AR R R B B 1 AR S

BRMER

I. Anti-virus therapeutic area I ik E A
The Group's non-structural protein (“NS") 5A inhibitor Yimitasvir Phosphate, AEERK B SEIELERE
a National Class I.l innovative drug, in combination with Sofosbuvir have A (NS SAID BB B oK
completed Phase Il clinical trials subjects enrolment and is scheduled to submit fth B B 22 3E 70 2 Bt R 2 STAK 1R
New Drug Application (“NDA") in 2019. FRR A RM o E AL - WEt

HE_Z-NFRRLD -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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The Phase |l clinical trial for NS3/4A protease inhibitor Furaprevir jointly

developed with TaiGen Biopharmaceuticals Co. (Beijing), Ltd. (“TaiGen

Biopharmaceuticals”) in combination with Yimitasvir Phosphate has been

completed and Phase Il clinical trial will commence soon and is expected to

submit NDA in 2020.

Endocrine and metabolic diseases area

In the area of endocrine and metabolic diseases, the Group is dedicated to the

R&D of insulin products and has a comprehensive insulin product line, which

covers both the second and the third generation of insulin.

The latest progress of the insulin products during the Reporting Period is as

follows:

The key endocrine and metabolic types

Current stage

BARBEMRE(ULR)ARD
AI([AREE]) AEREN
NS3/4AZE B B4 I B A A i 2
HRTA R ORMD 2 AV B A B TERK
W KSR - B 5 R ERARIIED
HE o BHE—_S-_TEHRE
Fe

3L R AL B e
RE BT R WA KT B
BEBIRREZEMOH
% AARENRERERR
RE - REEF-_RAE=RRE
&x-

BEMR RERRIIERK
FERIBRAT

Planned launch time

BEADTBRABRE SRR R ST 8 L R
Recombinant Human Insulin Injection Submitted NDA 2019
FHARESRTHR e EmEE “ZE-hEF
Isophane Protamine Recombinant Phase Il clinical trial 2020
Human Insulin Injection (Pre-mixed 30R)

BEAOEEARSE TSR (FER30R) B PR 111 ZERTF
Insulin Glargine Injection Phase IIl clinical trial 2020
HBBRSZIHR e PR I11ER ZERTF
Insulin Aspart Injection Phase | clinical trial 2021
FIRREFIE5TR B PRI —E—F
Insulin Aspart 30 Injection Phase [ll clinical trial 2021

FIR RS =30 5K R PR N1 2R —B-—F
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Group has established a complete R&D system for insulin products,
which is developed in accordance with standards on biosimilar drugs adopted
in Europe and the United States with quality equivalent to originator drugs.
The production of pharmaceutical products adopts a yeast expression system
which is advanced in technology and easy for large scale production. The
results of clinical trials show that the statistics of recombinant human insulin
injection developed by the Group compared with the originator biologics are
highly consistent in terms of effectiveness, safety and stability. Meanwhile, the
Group has established good relationships with many clinical trial centers and
its R&D pipeline products have been recognized by patients and clinicians in

terms of efficacy and safety.

Sales Performance Review
For the year ended 31 December 2018, revenue of the Group achieved RMB2,510.48

million, representing an increase of 56.75% as compared to the previous year.

During the Reporting Period, the revenue of Kewei granules and Kewei capsules
amounted to RMBI,617.68 million and RMB629.21 million, respectively, accounting
for 89.50% of the total revenue in aggregate; revenue of Ertongshu amounted to
RMB98.70 million, accounting for 3.93% of the total revenue; revenue of Oumeining
amounted to RMB56.87 million, accounting for 2.27% of the total revenue; revenue
of Xinhaining amounted to RMB30.22 million, accounting for .20% of the total
revenue; and revenue of Xining amounted to RMB42.72 million, accounting for 1.70%
of the total revenue. The total revenue of the above mentioned five drugs, being the
core products of the Group, accounted for 98.60% of the total revenue, with Kewei

products remaining as the main driving force of the sales growth.

BEEENWE DN

AEECDBUTENREER
FIERMEREER  2REEL
YRR ERTE > BEWE
HIRFAEMER - BB EER
RABERERR  THEKE -
ZRMANEE - RARBER

R AEEAERENEAR
ANRS 0 51BN R BT A 1) &
BEARE - Z2ERIBEM
SHESE - A AL
EE RS RERARPOEL
RIFAIERIE - AEBEHH 3%
ERERERRNRZ 2SR
BREBENRKELENRR

HERRERE
Bz2_F-\F+-_A=t—HL
FEOAKENEXEDLEIA
R#251048B 8L ALLEFRBE
56.75% °

HWEHA JRBENERATRBES
BB ARKI61768BETRAR
Moo BETTHME T - HilhaE
EEEML50% : MRAAFIBARKE
9870 BB ILHE R - (R EEEN
393% : HEERBARKESCSTAET
BB R  IEREEEN227% e
FIRAREI0 2B ETHEHEE -
IFHABETENI20%  REERBAR
BRNBBETHEERE (hEeEE
B 1.70% o FattS{EmiEe) & 35 2 4
FMh A2 X 5ER198.60%  RAEEH
BOER  BEPARERDARER
EBROBEEH ) o
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During the Reporting Period, the Group established four sales teams to support its
comprehensive sales strategy, i.e. a direct sales team responsible for the academic
promotion of core drugs in hospitals of class Il and above, a self-operated sales team
handling core drugs in general practitioner-based medical institutions, a self-operated
sales team responsible for core drugs in pharmacies, and a distribution-based sales
team responsible for non-core drugs in all healthcare facilities. As at 31 December
2018, the Group has a total of 2,690 staff in its sales teams. The establishment of
these four sales teams shall lay a solid foundation to the sales volume from sales
channels in hospitals, primary healthcare institutions and pharmacies for all our Group

products.

Production Review

The Group adheres to the credo of “For Everyone's Health” and strives to provide
high quality medicine to patients. Led by this belief, the Group enhances its
production system constantly, strengthens its supervision on the production process

and improves the quality of products and services continuously.

At the same time, the Group is attentive about production safety and environmental
protection. In terms of production safety, to avoid occurrence of any major safety
incidents, the Group has implemented safety culture education, strengthened its
risk management and promoted the establishment of safety standards. In respect of
environmental protection, the Group takes environmental protection as its mission
and adheres to green production. Specific measures were taken to deal with various
pollutants generated during the production process so as to achieve the recycle of

resources and environmental protection at the same time.

BEHRN - ARERY T OAHER
BAX B 2EMNEESR - DRI=8
BEROMBE_RRALERERDN
BiiEENEEHER M BERL
mEEAEREERTNBEEREEN
BEEERMD  BEROMBEERE
BWEEHERMME S AA LM
BEMABBEFERENDHIBESR M -
BE_Z-N\F+-_A=+—H" &
SEHEEEKRHE2600A - MAHE
BhoEREAAEE S BEMRLR
br EEBREBUNREESHES
BNEHENEEEREMER -

£ ERREE
AEEE T REBEEAANREING
CEBRERRmARESEENEY -
B#E—Ee AEETHTELE
HIERER - MREEBREE K&
TESCEE R MRISNEE -

R AEEEILERRH
B AEEREIH  AEE
EXEHE - NRRERER i
2RERZR  WBRELEBARE
B ERROBESH - AEBEARE
RERCHE  BEKELE  HRNAE
EREREEN SRS ARG
MR - D RERE B W R
BERERBANA

;ﬂra
&
B

o

# A H

I
\
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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OPERATING RESULTS AND ANALYSIS . EERERDHF

l. Revenue l. -G
For the year ended 3| December 2018, the Group recorded a revenue of HEz-_FT— \HF+-_A=+—HLHF
RMB2,510.48 million, representing an increase of 56.75% as compared with B AEEFSEEBARK251048
RMBI,601.57 million for the year ended 31 December 2017, which was primarily BET BEE-_Z—+F+=A
attributable to the increase in the sales volume of the core products Kewei and —t+—HIEFEMNAREI6IS57E8E
Ertongshu and the effectiveness of the establishment of the sales teams. TUIEAN56.75% ° %38 N+ B R X

DEmABLBEEFHEEERAN
S ERR A R ERIS A

The table below sets forth the revenue of the Group by therapeutic areas as a TRV AEB K AEBHEEROHE
percentage of total revenue. BRAGBEXBENESLLIER
Growth as
Year ended 3| December Compared
BEt-AZt-HLEE with
2018 2017 Last Year
—B-N\F —TtE RE &
(RMB000) % (RMBOOO) % ®)
(AR®T ) % (AREFR) % (%)
Anti-viral drugs MRS 2,254,227 89.79% 1,407,948 8791% 60.11%
~ Including core product Kewei —He  ROERTH
(osetamivi phosphate) EEETGE) 2,246,895 89.50% 1,401,230 8749% 6035%
— Kewei granules — AR 1,617,684 64.44% 961,678 60.05% 68.21%
~ Kewei capsules -HEBE 629,211 25.06% 439,552 2745% 43.15%
Cardiovascular drugs DIE ZY) 100,677 4.01% 96,33 601% 451%
Endocrine and AR R LY
metabolic drugs 100,740 4.01% 41,355 2.58% 143.60%
Others Hith 54,832 2.19% 55933 3.50% (1.97%)
Total At 2,510,476 100.00% 1,601,567 100.00% 56.75%
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Cost of Sales

The Group's cost of sales consists of (i) cost of raw materials, primarily including
cost of active pharmaceutical ingredient (“API”), ancillary materials and packaging
materials, (i) labour cost, primarily including salaries and benefits of our staff directly
involved in manufacturing of our products, (iii) manufacturing cost, primarily including
depreciation of machinery, equipment and plant and cost of labour protection
materials, fuel, machine oil and maintenance, and (iv) patent fee paid to third parties

in relation to patents and licences.

The Group’s cost of sales increased by RMBI 18.39 million to RMB398.81 million for
the year ended 3| December 2018 from RMB280.42 million for the year ended 31

December 2017, which was mainly due to the increase in sales volume.

The table below sets forth the cost of sales of the Group by therapeutic areas and as

a percentage of total cost of sales.

SHERA

B AP 6 84 B A AR BT () R REB A -
FERFME - R R EMERK
Ao (DAIKA  TEREESHEE
WMEENBIZTERER - (i) &
EEA FEEEEN - RERERE
MITEE - BBREMEORAR - R
B MR MM - (V) B FIRF AT A
F=FEAMENE -

HE-Z-NE+ZA=+—HIt
FE AEBNHEEXNRTRARE
9BBIEHETL BHE-ZT—+F
TZA=T—BLEFEMNARKE
ONEBTENMARKIIBIAES
7T X ERHESHNERME -

TR A EE S AR A E M
ERARMGHEHERANBEDLLIER -

Growth as

Year ended 31 December Compared

BE+-A=t-ALEFE with

2018 2017 Last Year

—B-N\F —2—tF FtER

(RMB’000) % (RMB'000) % (%)

(AR®TR) % (ARBTIT) % (%)

Anti-viral drugs NRSEY) 360,930 90.50% 246,76 88.00% 46.27%
— Including core product Kewei —Eih ROERAI

(oseltamivir phosphate) (BEERFAE) 359,026 90.02% 244,846 87.32% 46.63%

— Kewei granules — A LR 234,361 58.77% 152433 54.36% 5375%

~ Kewei capsules -HBE 124,665 31.26% 92413 3296% 3490%

Cardiovascular drugs DIE EY) 10,695 2.68% 12,636 451% (15.36%)

Endocrine and Metabolic drugs Ao R EY) 10,505 2.63% 5802 207% 81.06%

Others Hity 16,679 4.19% 15217 542% 9.61%

Total =5 398,809 100.00% 280416 100.00% 4.22%
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Gross Profit 3. EX

BHE-_Z-N\F+-A=+—H1Lt
FE  AEBNENEMEARYE
2I67BE T  BREE-_ZT—+t
FH+—A=Z+-BLEFEENARYE
1321 I5EB&TIENN59.84% « BEZZT
—NEFTZA=Z+—HILEE  £&
EEMER4II%  BREE-T—+
FH+-_A=+-—BLFENERE
82.49%IG T 1.62% + EFEIG MY =
ZRAEEENEERAHHEEE
Ko

For the year ended 3| December 2018, the Group's gross profit increased to
RMB2,1'1.67 million, representing an increase of 59.84% as compared with
RMB1,321.15 million for the year ended 31 December 2017. The Group's gross
profit margin for the year ended 3| December 2018 was 84.1 1%, representing an
increase by 1.62% compared with the gross profit margin 82.49% for the year ended
31 December 2017. The increase in gross profit margin was primarily due to the

expansion of the sales volume of Kewei, a product with higher gross profit margin.

The table below sets forth the gross profit of the Group by therapeutic areas. TREFEKREBIZAEBHEHHE

A e

Growth as

Year ended 3| December Compared

BEt-AZt-HLEE with

2018 2017 Last Year

—B-N\F —TtE RE &

(RMB'000) % (RMBO0O) % ®)

(AR®T ) % (AREFR) % (%)

Anti-viral drugs nREEY 1,893,297 89.66% [,161,187 87.89% 63.05%
~ Including core product Kewei —Eih ROERAR

(osetamii phosphte) (EERTHE) 1,887,869 89.40% 1156384 87.53% 6326%

~ Kewei granules ~AFEA 1,383,323 65.51% 809245 6125% 7094%

— Kewei capsules -AFBE 504,546 23.89% 347,139 26.28% 45.34%

Cardiovascular drugs DB ZY) 89,982 4.26% 83,695 6.34% 751%

Endocrine and Metabolic drugs R G IE2 ] 90,235 4.27% 35,553 2.69% 153.80%

Others =it 38,153 1.81% 40,716 3.08% (6.29%)

Total Bt 2,111,667 100.00% 1,321,151 100.00% 59.84%
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Other Income

The Group’s other revenue mainly includes (i) government subsidies, including
amortization of subsidies for the construction of the production line of Kewei by
instalment in accordance with accounting standards, and other R&D subsidies and
awards granted by local government, and (ii) interest income and miscellaneous

income.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group’s other income was RMB24.60
million, representing an increase of RMB2.78 million as compared with RMB21.82
million for the year ended 31 December 2017, which was due to the increase in

government subsidies.

Other Net Income/(expenses)

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group'’s other net income was RMB5.51
million, while the Group’s other net expenses for the year ended 31 December 2017
was RMB25.42 million, which was due to the fluctuation of exchange rate between

HKD and RMB.

HAtWA
AREBEHEMUATEBIEG)BITH
By - BIER e AR S AT A
AR ERERMER - UREME
BRI % T e Bt 25 ik Bh sk B8R © K (i) )
BUATEIRWN

HE-_Z-\FH+-A=+—AHLF
E - AEESNEMKRARARE24.60
BEELT BBE-_T—+tF+=A
ET-HBLEEFENARK20NEE
TL BIARB278EE T - IR
EERBUTH BN B HIE N -

HeFRA(BX)

HE_T-N\F+=ZA=+—H1t
FE  AEBHHMFRARBAR
WosI BB MAKEREBE=Z
—tF+Z A=+ —RIEFENHHEM
FHEAARELLAET - Z# b
FERBTRARBERESHI -
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Expenses Analysis

For the year 2018, the Group's total expenses amounted to RMB1,039.45 million,
representing an increase of RMB470.09 million as compared with RMB569.36 million

for the year of 2017. The main components of the Group'’s expenses are as follows:

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENmR D

6. BN
RZZ—N\FE AEEBRHLTA
RU10394588 T R_E—+F
WARBS936BEH T BINARKE
47009B BT - AEENEREERE

AREATS
Growth as
Year ended 31 December Compared
BE+-A=+—-HLEFE with
2018 2017 Last Year
—E-N\F —T—tF FLLiE &
(RMB’000) (RMB'000) (%)
(AR¥F ) (AR¥EF7T) (%)
Distribution costs 7 SRR 653,650 372,090 75.67%
Administrative expenses THEERY 384,385 192,985 99.18%
Finance costs BhE A 1,418 4,289 (66.94%)
1,039,453 569,364 82.56%

Distribution costs mainly consist of (i) marketing expenses relating to academic
promotion activities and other marketing activities, (i) travel expenses for marketing

purposes, (iii) labour cost, and (iv) other expenses.

The increase in distribution costs was mainly due to the increase in operating cost and
travel expenses in relation to the Group's academic promotion and other marketing
activities, closely relating to the increased efforts on academic promotion of the core
product Kewei and enhancement of influence of other products. Meanwhile, the

Group enhanced its sales teams and expanded its sales force in 2018.

Administrative expenses mainly consist of (i) R&D expenses, (i) salaries and welfare
benefits for management and administrative personnel, (iii) depreciation and
amortization costs relating to our office and facilities and land use rights, and (iv)

other miscellaneous expenses.

DK AEZBIE()EBEMEER
Hith 2 BB & SRR - (i) R 8H
B2 ZHRECA - (i) TR » R (iv)
HABRLAR o

DHRARIEN - T2 EHNAKE
HEITRENMEREN A S HRSES
PR ZE M B Y IE 00 - B [ IN5R
RO EE i A Rk O R0 HE R D R AR R
HithEma 8 NZ IR - R
AEER T N\FIRHEBRKDN
B HHEBRET TR

THERRZFEEOMEER -
(VBB RITHRABMIEREF - (i)
PN E KRR & £ AR ARRE &Y
FERBHEAAR - R (iv)E M FEIER
7N o
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The increase in administrative expenses was mainly due to the increase in labour costs
and R&D expenses. For the year ended 3| December 2018, the Group's investment
in R&D amounted to RMB224.10 million in total, representing 8.93% of the revenue
and an increase of RMB127.19 million as compared to the R&D expenses in the year
ended 31 December 2017. The significantly increase of R&D expenses mainly due to

the clinical research expenditure for Hepatitis C.

Finance costs mainly consist of interests on bank loans. The decrease in finance costs
was mainly due to the Group had sufficient fund and repaid matured bank loans,

resulting in the decrease in interest expenses.

Profit Before Taxation
As a result of the above, profit before tax in 2018 was RMB1,102.32 million,
representing an increase of RMB354.12 million as compared with RMB748.20 million

in2017.

Income Tax

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group's income tax expenses were
RMB201.1'| million, representing an increase of RMB79.27 million as compared with
RMBI121.84 million for the year ended 31 December 2017, which was mainly due to

the increase in profit before tax.

Profit for the Year
For the foregoing reasons, the Group's profit for the year was RMB901.22 million for
the year ended 31 December 2018, representing an increase of RMB274.86 million as

compared with RMB626.36 million for the year ended 31 December 2017.

TREERIOEN  FERHET
PR A S Bt 85 B PR O3B NP R - VAL
E-FE-NF+-_A=1+—HLILHF
B AEBRBERASHBARE
2410887 - 5L FFER893% © 18
hEE—ZT—tF+-_A=+—H1t
FENHEBEREMARK 127198
B MEEARBENEZHRR
JFF B0 R R 9T B S AT ER -

BRBLATRF
ERERRE - BRHRAVGEMNE ZF
—tEFNARKET74820F E T - 1M
EZE-N\FHNAREILINEE
T EIARKE34.128E T ©

g
HE-Z-NE+ZA=+—HIt
FE TEENFEHREAAAR
B20lLBET BHEZE-Z—+
FH+-A=Z+-BLFEENARYE
RIB4EETIEMARENIASE
T FEZHRBRBATRFIMEE o
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Iv.

FINANCIAL POSITION

Overview

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s total assets amounted to RMB4,560.94 million,
with total liabilities of RMB882.01 million and shareholders’ equity of RMB3,678.93

million.

Net Current Assets

The following table sets forth our current assets, current liabilities and net current

assets for the date indicated.

BERENWE D

390

1. HE
RZZE-NFE+ZR=+—H &&
BEHBREEAARKEAS604BETT - 4
BEARKS0IEET BRiER
AREE367893EHETT ©

2. RBEEFE
TR#EHNBRARPR A AN REE
= RBREMRSEEFE -

As at 31 December

R+=A=+—8
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—tF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTT AREFT
Current assets REEE
Inventories w8 164,286 87,967
Trade and other receivables B 5 [k EL A FEWGRTE 1,027,332 746,961
Time deposits FEATFEFK = 346,519
Cash and cash equivalents ReRReEEER 593,746 887,183
Total current assets BEBEE 1,785,364 2,068,630
Current liabilities REEE
Trade and other payables B 5 R HEMERFKRIR 676,250 549,542
Contract liabilities AHaE 8,095 -
Bank loans RITER 53,399 10,000
Deferred income EEU S 4,379 4,379
Current taxation FETENERFR IR 70,675 76,826
Total current liabilities BRBAE 812,798 640,747
Net current assets BRBEE 972,566 1,427,883

Our net current assets decreased from RMB1,427.88 million as at 31 December 2017

to RMB972.57 million as at 3|1 December 2018, which was mainly due to a decrease

in time deposits and cash and cash equivalents, and an increase in trade and other

payables.

B FRBHEEE T —tF+=
A=T—H®HARK 427888 & TR
LPEZFE-NFT+ZA=+—HHA
R¥oNS7TEET FERBARTEH
FRARRE RS SEWRIOME
5 R E A FEATFRIRLE AN
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Gearing Ratio and Quick Ratio

Gearing ratio represents total loans and borrowings as at a record date divided by
shareholders’ equity as at the same record date. Quick ratio represents current assets
excluding inventories as at a record date divided by current liabilities as at the same

record date.

The gearing ratio and the quick ratio of the Group as at 3|1 December 2018 was 1.45%
and 1.99 times respectively. The gearing ratio and the quick ratio of the Group as at

31 December 2017 was 0.65% and 3.09 times respectively.

Bank Loans

In 2018, all indebtedness of the Group was Renminbi-denominated bank loans. As
at 31 December 2018, the balance of the Group's bank loans was RMB53.40 million,
representing an increase of RMB33.40 million as compared to RMB20 million as at
31 December 2017. The increase in bank loans was mainly due to the reclassification
of discounted note with recourse, the balance of the Group’s bank loan excluding
reclassification was RMB10 million. The Group is in good liquidity position with

sufficient funding and has no repayment risk.

Capital Expenditure

In order to meet the production demand for our products, the Group constructed
plants and buildings, purchased administration offices, machines and equipment,
acquired the technique, the ownership of approvals for manufacturing and marketing
and the right to sale of certain pharmaceutical products from Sunshine Lake Pharma
Co., Ltd. (BEREFGHEZEHGRAF]) (“Sunshine Lake Pharma”) as mentioned in
Major Purchase and Sales below with an aggregate capital expenditure of RMB796.17
million, representing an increase of RMB589.12 million as compared to RMB207.05
million in 2017.

BEXERERRES LR
ARBELRENDEABNEER
K A8 B B LA AR B 70 8% B 1 69 X SR
& o BELL RN A MRS E
E(TEEFEE)RUER RSB B
nEaE -

REER-_ZT—-NF+=ZA=+—H
MEABBLERERILED R A
1.45% K 1.991&% « REER T —+F
+ZA=+-BNERBBLERR
B E 5 5l 50.65% K% 3.091F °
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Major Purchase and Sales

On 10 July 2018, the Company entered into an acquisition agreement with
Sunshine Lake Pharma, pursuant to which the Company shall pay a consideration
of RMB505.20 million to acquire the technique, the ownership of approvals for
manufacturing and marketing and the right to sale of Clarithromycin Sustained Release
Tablets (RRAELEREF), Levofloxacin Tablets (A& & £ F), Clarithromycin
Tablets (FRR#Z F7), Moxifloxacin Tablets (£78 £ ), Olmesartan Tablets (B2
EABEFT) and Esomeprazole Magnesium Enteric-coated Tablets (R RIEh
$X15/AB %) (the “Target Products”). Such consideration included a prepayment of
RMB252.60 million and a total amount of milestone payment (with respect to one
particular Target Product, shall be payable upon the obtaining of the National Medical
Products Administration approvals for manufacturing, marketing and sale of such
Target Product and the change of ownership to such approvals from Sunshine Lake
Pharma to the Company) of RMB252.60 million. This acquisition of six generic drugs
shall expand the product portfolio of the Group. Please refer to the announcements
of the Company dated 10 July 2018, 15 August 2018 and 30 August 2018 and the

circular of the Company dated 30 July 2018 for further details.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2018, the Group did not provide any external guarantees.

Pledge of Assets
As at 31 December 2018, except bills receivable required to secure certain bank

loans, the Group had no other pledged assets.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEBNWE D

EERFHMBUER

(1)  Human Resource Summary (1) ALEFER
RZEBE-NF+ZR=+—
A AEEXFRERBA4024A

9. Employee and Remuneration Policies 9.

As at 3|1 December 2018, the Group had a total of 4,024 employees,

by age: IEFEEES -

Age Distribution FEWRoMH Number Percentage

A¥ ADL
30 or below 30BREMAT 1,696 42.15%
31-40 (inclusive) 31-405%( &) 1962 48.76%
41-50 (inclusive) 41-508%(&) 337 8.37%
Above 50 505%5A 29 0.72%
Total A&t 4,024 100%

by education: EEFAES -

Education Level NLRRE Number Percentage

A ADL
Master or above BEH(E) |16 2.88%
Bachelor AR 1,401 34.82%
Associate KE | 624 40.36%
Vocational or below BRI 883 21.94%
Total A&t 4,024 100%

(2) Remuneration Policy (2) #FHEE

REBESFIBRRERITED
HEEEHINE R AR E THEE
is determined by taking into consideration factors such as remuneration in HE=HT  SEABFIEEE
BAA - BAEEE B RIEM
REE - RARERETE RS
B E S R -

The objective of the Group's remuneration policy is to motivate and retain

talented employees to ensure the Group’s development and such policy
respect of the overall remuneration standard in the industry and employee

motivation. The management of the Company will review the remuneration

policy of employees of the Group on a regular basis.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

(3) Employee Benefits
The Group strictly complies with the Labour Law, the Labour Contract Law
and the Social Insurance Law of the PRC, under which it contributes various
social insurance premiums and housing provident fund for employees. In
addition to the statutory requirements of the PRC, the Group has established
corresponding systems such as the Corporate Annuity Plan, Housing Welfare
and Children’s Welfare, and set up public welfare facilities such as kindergarten
and infirmary room. In the future, the Group will provide employees with

more benefit and protection in accordance with its development progress.

V. OTHER SIGNIFICANT EVENTS

The Passing of the Material Asset Reorganization Project

On 6 June 2018, the Listed Companies Merger and Reorganisation Review
Committee of the China Securities Regulatory Commission (7 Bl 35 5 ES B & 18
ZEE FMARIHRELAEZEZEE) convened the working meeting, at which
the assets acquisition by issuance of shares by Guangdong HEC Technology Holding
Co,, Ltd. was unconditionally approved. HEC Pharm Co., Ltd, as the transferor, and
Guangdong HEC Technology Holding Co., Ltd., as the transferee, completed the
equity transfer registration procedures on 24 July 2018. Since then, Guangdong HEC
Technology Holding Co., Ltd. became the controlling shareholder of the Company.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEBNWE D

2. Acquisition of Six Pharmaceutical Products from Sunshine Lake Pharma
On 10 July 2018, the Company entered into an acquisition agreement with Sunshine
Lake Pharma, pursuant to which the Company agreed to acquire, and Sunshine
Lake Pharma agreed to dispose of the know-how, the ownership of the domestic
approvals for manufacturing and marketing and the right to sale of six pharmaceutical
products in the PRC at a consideration of RMB505,200,000 (the “Acquisition”), which
comprised a prepayment of RMB252,600,000 and six milestone payments totaling
RMB252,600,000. The Acquisition was approved by the independent shareholders
of the Company at the extraordinary general meeting held on 30 August 2018. For
details, please refer to the announcements of the Company dated 10 July 2018, I5

August 2018 and 30 August 2018 and the circular of the Company dated 30 July

2018.

3. Issuance of H Share Convertible Bonds

On 14 August 2018, the Company entered into a subscription agreement (the
“Subscription Agreement”) with certain entities ultimately controlled by The
Blackstone Group L.P. (the “Blackstone Fund SPVs"), pursuant to which, the
Blackstone Fund SPVs have conditionally agreed to subscribe for, and the Company

has conditionally agreed to issue, the H share convertible bonds with an aggregate

principal amount of US$400,000,000 (the “H Share Convertible Bonds").

The H Share Convertible Bonds, if issued, will bear interest at the rate of 3.0%
per annum and may be converted into 82,631,578 conversion shares at the initial
conversion price of HK$38 per share (assuming full conversion of the H Share
Convertible Bonds), representing approximately 18.28% of the existing issued share
capital of the Company as at the date of this Annual Report and approximately

15.46% of the total issued share capital as enlarged by the issue of the conversion

shares.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The proceeds from the issue of the H Share Convertible Bonds are intended to be
used for the purposes of the acquisition of drugs and other pharmaceutical products
(including active pharmaceutical ingredients), capital expenditure on production
facilities, expansion of sales and distribution networks and other purposes subject to

the prior written consent of the subscriber.

The proposed issue of H Share Convertible Bonds represents an excellent
opportunity for the Company to embrace market opportunities and enhance its
market positions in the pharmaceutical industry. At the same time, the Group plans
to tap this opportunity to introduce The Blackstone Group LP. and its affiliates as a
long-term strategic investor to help the Company carry out drug acquisitions, advance
its development strategy, operation and management, strengthen international

cooperation, and improve corporate governance and investor relations.

On 20 February 2019, all conditions precedent under the Subscription Agreement
had been fulfilled. The completion of the H Share Convertible Bonds took place on
20 February 2019. For details of the H Share Convertible Bonds, please refer to the
announcements of the Company dated 14 August 2018, |5 October 2018 and 20

February 2019 and the circular of the Company dated | | September 2018.

Inclusion of Oseltamivir, Benzbromarone and Moxifloxacin in Essential
Drug List

Oseltamivir (capsule and granule), Benzbromarone (tablet and granule) and
Moxifloxacin (tablet and sodium chloride injection) were included in the 2018 edition

of Essential Drug List.
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The Group manufactures and sells Oseltamivir Phosphate capsules and granules
("Kewei") and Benzbromarone tables (“Ertongshu”), and at the extraordinary general
meeting of the Company held on 30 August 2018, the shareholders of the Company
have considered and approved the acquisition of the technique, the ownership of the
domestic approvals for manufacturing and marketing and the right to sale of certain
products in China, including Moxifloxacin tablets, from Sunshine Lake Pharma. The
Board believes that the inclusion of Oseltamivir, Benzbromarone and Moxifloxacin
in the Essential Drug List will help increase the market penetration of the above
mentioned products, enhance the growth potentials of sales of the Group'’s
products, and benefit the subsequent launch and promotion of the acquired assets of
Moxifloxacin tablets in the market, which will benefit more patients and improve the

financial performance of the Company at the same time.

Acquisition of Yichang HEC Pharmaceutical

On 14 December 2018, the Company entered into an acquisition agreement with
HEC Pharm Co,, Ltd. (“HEC Pharm"”) and Yidu HEC Industrial Development Co.,
Ltd. ("Yidu HEC Industrial”), pursuant to which the Company agreed to acquire, and
HEC Pharm and Yidu HEC Industrial agreed to dispose of, the entire equity interests
in Yichang HEC Pharmaceutical for a consideration of RMB124,700. The Company is
a Chinese pharmaceutical manufacturing company that focuses on the development,
manufacturing and sale of pharmaceutical products. Yichang HEC Pharmaceutical is
a Chinese company mainly engaged in the manufacturing of API. The products of
Yichang HEC Pharmaceutical can be widely applied in the Company's manufacturing
of pharmaceutical products. The Company is of the view that the Acquisition will be
beneficial to the further enhancement of production by the Company, and lay a solid
foundation for the continuous launch and sales of the Company’s pipeline products in
the future. For detalils, please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 14

December 2018.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

Passing of Consistency Evaluation for Oseltamivir Phosphate Capsule
After the reporting period, the Company's oseltamivir phosphate capsule (75mg) has
been granted approval by the National Medical Products Administration for passing

the consistency of quality and efficacy evaluation of generic drugs.

Increase capital in Yichang HEC Pharmaceutical

On 25 February 2019, in order to further increase the production capacity of the
Company and to ensure its production capacity for launching subsequent reserve
products, the Company approved to use its internal funds to increase capital in
its wholly-owned subsidiary, Yichang HEC Pharmaceutical by RMB590 million for
the production and operation facilities of Yichang HEC Pharmaceutical (“Capital
Increase™). Upon the completion of Capital Increase, the registered capital of Yichang
HEC Pharmaceutical will become RMB620 million. For details, please refer to the

announcement of the Company dated 25 February 2019.

Proposed Acquisition

On 25 February 2019, the Company entered into an acquisition agreement with
Sunshine Lake Pharma, pursuant to which the Company agreed to acquire, and
Sunshine Lake Pharma agreed to dispose, the intellectual property rights, industrial
property rights and ownership rights in relation to 27 pharmaceutical products within
China at a total consideration of RMBI,626,434,600 (the “Proposed Acquisition™),
which comprised a prepayment of RMB813,217,300, milestone payments of
RMB325,286,900 and balance amounts of RMB487,930,400. The Proposed
Acquisition is subject to, among others, approval by the independent shareholders
of the Company at the extraordinary general meeting of the Company which will be
held on 10 May 2019.

For details of the Proposed Acquisition, please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 25 February 2019 and the section under “Connected Transactions”

of this annual report.
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RISK FACTORS AND RISK MANAGEMENT

Risks that may have material effects on the operation of the Group are as follows:

The risk of products failing to pass consistency evaluation

According to the Opinions of the Office of the State Council on the Commencement
of Consistency Evaluation on the Quality and Healing Effect of Generic Drugs
(Guo Ban Fa [2016] No. 8) ({ BI#5Fr %/~ E2 REF 5 1 R 2 A — Bt
FHERE R )(BIP#3£[2016]8%%)) and the Announcement on the Implementation
of Matters in Relation to the Opinions of the Office of the State Council on the
Commencement of Consistency Evaluation on the Quality and Healing Effect of
Generic Drugs issued by the CFDA on 26 May 2016 (2016 No. 106) (R EE (&
B ARENARNSRELGEMER - BMFTENER) AHEENRE)
(ZZE—RFZE106%%)), for generic drugs which have been approved for market
launch prior to the implementation of the new registration category of chemical
drugs, if the approval was not carried out according to the principle of consistency
in quality and curative effect as the original researched pharmaceuticals, such generic
drugs are subject to consistency evaluation and are required to have consistent quality
and curative effect as the original researched pharmaceuticals. For the generic drugs
which are not able to pass the consistency evaluation within the prescribed period,

no further registration will be approved.

The risk of the decline in drug prices

With continuous progress in the reform of drug prices, deepening of reforms in
the medical insurance system and the promulgation of other relevant policies and
regulations, a declining trend in drug prices will appear. On 4 May 2015, the Notice
on the Publication of Opinions on Proceeding with Reforms on Drug Prices ( (B
ENZs e 2 BRI E E R AYIBAN) ) was jointly issued by seven departments
including the National Development and Reform Commission of the PRC to
expressly cancel the drug prices originally set by the government except for narcotic
drugs and Category | psychotropic drugs. On |5 November 2018, the “Document
on Centralized Procurement of Drugs in 4+7 Cities” {473 7 %53 52 P ER BB S
was officially released and bulk purchase was first conducted in || pilot cities. On 6
December 2018, the tender for bulk purchase among the “4+7" cities was opened in
Shanghai, and tender results showed that there is a significant decrease in price of the

target products which won the bid.

VIIL.

BEBREERREREE

HAEEKEAEELERFENE RN

T~

ERELER - ENRRE
REB(BBR R EANAR RS
EMER—BETENE R (B
[016)85%) M=—F—_FRHA=+XH
REELRBEMOCRERZE(RB5
MABEENFRGEEESMESR—
BUENER) EREENRAE N
T—REFEI065)  \LRERIM
DRBEMATHE EHeFRE - ALK
IRAR BRI S R 2 AR — BUR A
CHARE-BULETE Bk
1 BIBETE & M BRI 4 B
H—E o TEAF HIRR AR @R — Bt
BN RS - R T AR -

/1

B
=

BRERTREORRE
BEERERNERERE  BER
B I R E A NEDRA - SA R E AR
HBGE AR A - ERERKE
AEETHRNBE - —T—AFA0A
mA - AEERERNAEERESS
7ERPIEE & B AR EN S HEE B in (B
RUERERHBE) - BRI
B@mME BB ERI - BUBRER
FHIENERER - —T—N\Ft+—
A+hA  4+7mEREPREX
HYEREM  TERBBELLE
AR TETHS - — - N\E+ A
NE 47 TR B RELE LR
B BRERBER  WRAETERE
KIEEFEME -

YICHANG HEC CHANGJIANG PHARMACEUTICAL CO., LTD. EERBE X RIEEZRHBERA R



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Group adopted corresponding policies in dealing with the aforesaid risks in 2018.

In respect of the consistency evaluation, the Group had a total of 23 products involved in
consistency evaluation, among which |3 products are under consistency evaluation and
|0 generic products will not undergo consistency evaluation. Currently, the Group's core
product Kewei capsules have commenced the corresponding registration and is expected
to be approved in 2019. The consistency evaluation of Kewei granules is scheduled to be

completed in 2020.

The consistency evaluation of other products, including Fudosteine Tablets (&% =118 /),
M ), Benzbromarone Tablets (K)R &
#ZERBE) and Telmisartan Tablets (K18 ), will be

Amlodipine Besylate Tablets (RIEBAE,
F7), Azithromycin Capsules (FiJZF

completed in 2019.

Except for 10 generic drugs products and the abovementioned projects which will not
undergo consistency evaluation, it is expected that the consistency evaluation of the

remaining products will be completed in or around 2020.

As for the risk of decreasing drug price, there is less competition for the Group'’s core
product, Kewei, and the cost of distribution is under control. Meanwhile, the Group is able

to achieve self-sufficiency and reduce production costs for the production of Kewei's APIs.

FUTURE OUTLOOK

Biomedicine is one of the key development sectors of “Made in China 2025", the nations’
strategic plan to become a strong manufacturing power. Following the promotion of
national policies, the biomedicine industry will be consolidated, reformed with innovations
and obtain a steady development. Coupled with factors such as China’s national economic
growth, the progression of ageing population, the acceleration of urbanization and the
universal acceptance of health awareness, healthcare has become the top priority of people’s
livelihood issues and thereby promotes the deepening of the national healthcare system
reform. Looking ahead, the national strategy will lay a high standard for the pharmaceutical
industry. Meanwhile, with the advancement of medical reform, the reshape of the
pharmaceutical industry pattern will be accelerated and the industry will approach a more

standardized, high standard and sustainable development.
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Looking forward, policies such as “consistency evaluation” and “centralized procurement”
will promote industry transformation and accelerate the survival of the fittest among the
enterprises. Pharmaceutical companies with strong R&D capabilities, diversified product
pipelines, well-developed production systems, strong brand advantages and excellent

marketing teams will gain unprecedented opportunities.

In 2019, the Group will continue to increase its academic promotion efforts to further
expand the number of high-ranked hospitals in which the core product Kewei is prescribed,
strengthen the establishment of sales teams in primary healthcare institutions and pharmacies
and explore new sales channels for Kewei. In the meantime, the Group will lay the
foundation for the promotion of upcoming product launching to ensure the stable growth
of the Group in the future. In addition, the Group will continue strengthening investment
in product innovation, enriching product portfolio, enhancing production management
capabilities of the Company to ensure high quality of products and strengthening the
establishment of sales teams and fully utilize academic promotion advantages to enhance
coverage level in medical institutions in all classes. The above measures will consolidate
the core competitiveness of the Group and enable the Group to stand out amongst the
competition in the pharmaceutical industry, thereby becoming a leading pharmaceutical

company in China.

YICHANG HEC CHANGJIANG PHARMACEUTICAL CO., LTD.
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EE EEREREEAESEN

DIRECTORS

During the Reporting Period and as at the date of this Annual Report, the Directors, Supervisors

and Senior Management are as follows:

E=

RBERARBEAFRAY % EELSR

ERABMT

Start of term of office
upon expiration of
the term of the current

session of the Board

Name Date of appointment EHIERE—EE Position

e BREAY FEESSELE R B

Mr. TANG Xinfa (F& $7%%) 4 May 2015 8 June 2018 Chairman and non-executive Director
BB L —T-RFHAMA —E-\FEXRANR EERFFNTES

Mr. JIANG Juncai (J§397) 4 May 2015 8 June 2018 Executive Director

eSSl it —T-RFHAMA —E-\FEXRANR WITES

Mr. ZHU Qiaohong (ART7HE)® 16 June 2017 8 June 2018 Executive Director

RITHFEED

Mr. WANG Danijin (£ %)
FrEEE

Mr. CHEN Yangui (FRIEHE)
BRAEHE S A

Mr. LI Shuang (ZE3%)
N Sk

Mr. MO Kit (FE7R)@
EREkE

Mr. Eddy HUANG (&)
HISEE

Mr. TANG Jianxin (32 #7)
EEHtE

Mr. FU Hailiang (<& 52)
ek

Mr. LEE Chi Ming (Z=755A)
FERELE

Notes():  Mr. ZHU Qiaohong resigned as an executive Director with effect from 20 February 2019.

@: Mr. MO Kit retired as a non-executive Director with effect from 8 June 2018.

“E—LFRATRAE

27 February 2006
—EERFA=tEHA

4May 2015
—E-RFERANA

8 June 2018
—Z-N\FRANH

4May 2015
—E-RFERANA

20 February 2019

—E-NF=-A=+H
4 May 2015
—E-RFHANH
4 May 2015
—E-RFHANH
4 May 2015
—E-RFHANH

—Z-)\FXRANE

8 June 2018
—ZT-N\FXANR

8 June 2018
—ZT-N\FXANR

8 June 2018
—ZT-N\FXANR

20 February 2019
—E-NFZA-+A

8 June 2018
—Z—)\FXANH

8 June 2018
—Z—)\FXANH

8 June 2018
—Z—)\FXANH

GE2OR

@ :

WITES

Executive Director

WITES

Executive Director

WITES

Executive Director

WITES

Non-executive Director

FEMITES

Non-executive Director

FNTESR

Independent non-executive Director

B IFITES

Independent non-executive Director

B IFITES

Independent non-executive Director

B IFITES

KRIDEEEERZE-NF A THEERT
-

ERNREER_Z-N\EXNANBREINTE
o
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Mr. TANG Xinfa (JE#%%), aged 49, is the Chairman and a non-executive Director. He joined — BB %HE @ 49955 ' AEERFIFENITES - 1R
the Company in May 2015 and has served as a non-executive Director since then. He is a member ~ —ZF—HRFH AIMARRAR] » & —EHIEEIENIT

of the Audit Committee.

Mr. Tang has extensive working experience in the following companies or entities:

Period

£

Name of Company/Entity
DR/ ERER

BE=W-tABEREZEEKE -

BREETIIRA

Position

B

g}—‘“

SEREASEN TIELER

Principal Function

TERE

Since January 2017

R

Since March 2016

E-_ZT—RFZAES

Since December 2016

B-ZE—RF+-AES

Since November 2015

E-Z—RF+—Az%5

Since December 2014

A-T-mET=AES

Since March 201 |
B-T——4=A%

Since October 2010

a-2-FF+AES
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Dongguan HEC TaiGen
Biopharmaceuticals Co., Ltd.

REFRGRK R BEE
BREERF

Shenzhen HEC Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.
YT RIG R BB R AR

Linzhi HEC Pharmaceutical Research
Co, Ltd.
W RGN EZEREBR AR

Shenzhen HEC Industrial Development
Co,, Ltd.
RINTREAERERAR AR

Yichang HEC Research Co,, Ltd.
EREICENERRAR

HEC Pharm Co., Ltd.
HERGILEEBRNBRAF

Dongguan HEC Medicine Development
and Research Co,, Ltd.
RERGHEMREFR QR

Legal representative and director

EEREAN - EF

Director

5=

Legal representative and director

EEREAN - EF

Director and general manager

EEsRmzE

Legal representative, executive

director and general manager

EERRA - MITERRAEHE

Vice chairman, executive director and

deputy general manager

BIEER  WITESREIBLE

Legal representative and executive

director

EERRARATES

Corporate management and
decision-making

NAEIRHIRE

Corporate management and
decision-making

RNAEEPORE

Corporate management and
decision-making

NEIE TR RORE

Corporate management and
decision-making

ANFEIRE R

Corporate management and
decision-making

RNAEIEERE

Corporate management and
decision-making

NAEIRHIRE

Corporate management and
decision-making

ANFEIRE R

HERBARIEXRDERAH
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Period Name of Company/Entity Position Principal Function

fE88 DE/EREE Bt EERRE

Since May 2010 Linzhi HEC Pharmaceutical Investment Director Corporate management and

BE-ZT—ZFHAZES Co., Ltd. = decision-making
MERGIHEEREBEER AT RAVEREREK

Since September 2009 Ruyuan HEC Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. Director Corporate management and

BE-ZZNFNAZES FRRIG R EEZEBR AR BF decision-making

NREIREREK
Since September 2005 Sunshine Lake Pharma Co., Ltd. Director Corporate management and
BE-ZTRFNAZES BRRGEEEFR AR BF decision-making

Since December 2004
B-TEmFE+=AES

Dongguan HEC Industrial Development
Co,, Ltd.
REMRBAEEERERAA

EERERA - EE

Since September 2002 to Shenzhen HEC Industrial Development Chief of the office

September 2005 Co., Ltd. WAEEE
B-ZZ-FhAZ YRS A EXEREGR AT
ZZETRHFNA

Mr. Tang received a master degree in literary aesthetics from the Department of Chinese of Xiamen

University in September 2002.

Mr. ZHU Qiaohong (5R153#), aged 50, is an executive Director and the deputy general manager
of the Company. He joined the Company in May 2002, and has served as the deputy general
manager of the Company since May 2002, and served as an executive Director of the Company

since June 2017.

Mr. Zhu Qiaohong has also been the vice chairman of Pharmaceutical Profession Association of
Hubei Province since April 2015, and has served as a supervisor of Yichang HEC Pharmaceutical
Co., Ltd. (a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) since June 2005. Mr. ZHU was the director
of GMP office of Apeloa Kangyu Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. from October 1993 to May 2002, and
a technician of the General Security Station of the State-owned Ecological Forest (Bl A RER
THMRE(RFELEUL) of Dongyang City from August 1990 to October 1993. Moreover, Mr. Zhu
graduated with a bachelor degree in science from Jilin University in July 1990. He was recognised as
an engineer in pharmaceutical engineering by the Bureau of Human Resources and Social Security of

Jinhua (formerly known as the Bureau of Personnel of Jinhua (&2 AZE/3)) in August 1999.
% g

Mr. Zhu resigned as an executive Director on 20 February 2019.

Legal representative and director

NEIERERE

Corporate management and
decision-making
NAEIRHIRE

Corporate management and
decision-making

NEEEERER

BRENR_TT_FNAK
BEERTEL -

EFARBHRXREE

RIGHELE - 5058 - RARAMITEERILL
B o N = BE-FRAMARRF E:;f‘—;:
FHAREEARRNBIELE YA -T—+F
NARBEEARBNNTESE -

KTk EER T —RF A REE Rt E BEET
%%gﬂéﬁvé:ggﬁixﬂ@mﬁmﬁa
BEMBAREERGLEEERARMES  Kit
EE-NMN=F+AZEET-_FAAHBEEENR
TEEBRRREGRARIGMPHRHAETEM - W H
—AAEFNRE-AN=F T+ AHEETEERET
B LR NS EREBIERME  pod - KRk
R—ANEFLARERENKE  BUSIESET
B o —ANNFNA -« S ETANERMIT
SRER(REETASR)IABEIRESETR
B o

REER-_E-NE_A-THBENTES -
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Mr. JIANG Juncai (#1974, aged 37, is an executive Director and the general manager of the
Company. He joined the Company in May 2015 and has served as an executive Director since then.

He is a member of the Remuneration and Evaluation Committee.

Mr. Jiang served as a director of Yidu HEC Industrial Development Co., Ltd. from March 2012 to
May 2015. Prior to that, Mr. Jiang was a director of Yichang Shancheng Cordyceps Sinensis Co., Ltd.
(BB UK EL HBEEAHRAF]) from March 2012 to July 2015, and successively served as a
researcher at the biochemistry division, a researcher and deputy head of the traditional Chinese
medicine division and the deputy head of the zoological and botanical division of Sunshine Lake

Pharma from July 2006 to May 2012.

Mr. Jiang graduated with a master degree in science from Shenyang Pharmaceutical University in

June 2006.

Mr. WANG Danjin (£ }5£), aged 49, is an executive Director and a deputy general manager of
the Company. He joined the Company in February 2006, and has served as an executive Director

since then.

Mr. Wang has also served as a supervisor of HEC Pharm from December 2010 to July 2015, and
a director of Yichang HEC Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. from April 2006 to January 2018. Prior to
joining the Company, Mr. Wang was the head of production department of Jilin Tonghua Dongri
Pharmaceutical Joint Stock Co,, Ltd. (FME LR B ZEERH FIRAF]) from March 2002 to
January 2006, and a technologist at Liaoning Dandong Pharmaceutical Factory (& 284 4 B8 B %4 ER)
from November 1991 to February 2002.

Mr. Wang graduated with a bachelor degree from Shenyang Pharmaceutical University (73555 Z£7%1K
E2) through correspondence courses in January 2008. He is recognised as a licensed pharmacist by
Ministry of Human Resources and Social Security of the People’s Republic of China (formerly known
as Ministry of Personnel of the People’s Republic of China), and was recognised as a pharmacist-in-
charge by Bureau of Human Resources and Social Security of Dandong (formerly known as Bureau

of Personnel of Dandong (F}E 1 A % /F) in October 2001.

36

YICHANG HEC CHANGJIANG PHARMACEUTICAL CO., LTD. E&

BEAKE V5 RATESRARFLLHE -
MR ZE—RFRAANARRAE - LR —EEER
TES B - bRFHEEZREEKE -

BREA-Z-——F-AE"ZT-HFHAGHME
BHTRGAEEERERATNES - UbAT - &
EEGR T —F=ZAZ"ZFT-OFLAHBE
FEEBKHBLREERRARNES » IR
EERNFLAZE_ T —FHAHMAREEER
RESNBEZEYCEFRARE - Eh EMAER
K EIFT R A K BE YRR -

EIRREE 5 RATEERARAILL
2o R —REREAMARRR - WR—EE
ERTES 5 -

FTEEBZ-ZEF+_AE_Z-HFLAE
EIEERGANES  URE TR FMA
T N\F-AEHERGEEERAREME
BEE - ENMARRBZA  FRER-_ZTT_F=
RE_ZERF-ANMLESHEBIERAEE
O BRAREEREE » UER—AN—F+—
RAE-ZZ -5 AHMEEEE N REERET
25 o
FEAR-ZENE - AEERNBEGEN KRB RE
M OBUSBELRM - thARBHEARKMBEANE
BT S REBRPEARKMBEAEZE) R
MEZERER - RR —F+AESARTA
NERILERER(RARTARER)RANIE
BERDETE -

—77

REARTHEERGARDA



PROFILES OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EE EEREREEAESEN

Mr. CHEN Yangui (Ff3%%E), aged 37, is an executive Director. He joined the Company in May
2014, serving as the head of the sales department, Mr. Chen has served as an executive Director

since May 2015.

In addition, Mr. Chen has served as an executive director of Dongguan Yangzhikang Pharmaceutical
Co., ltd. (RE=mBZEEBE AR T AR since August 2018, has also served as a general
manager and an executive director of Yichang HEC Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. since March 2016 and
January 2018, respectively, a legal representative of Yichang HEC Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. since
January 2018, a director of Dongguan HEC TaiGen Biopharmaceuticals Co., Ltd. (RZ2E YK
SEEIEERETLAF]) since January 2017, a supervisor of Ruyuan HEC Medical Instrument
Co, Ltd. GURRBG Y BERM AR A7) since July 2012 and a director of Ruyuan HEC
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. since March 2010. Mr. Chen joined Dongguan HEC Medicine Development
and Research Co., Ltd. in 2005, and successively held positions as a researcher, the deputy head
of research and development department and the head of synthesis department before he was

appointed as the deputy head of research institute and the head of generic drug department.

Mr. Chen graduated with a master degree in science from Hunan University in June 2006.

Mr. LI Shuang (Z3%), aged 38, is an executive Director and the deputy general manager of the
Company. He joined the Company in August 2005 and worked as a member of the insulin research
team. He has served as the deputy general manager of the Company since May 2015 and served as

an executive Director since June 2018.

Mr. Li has also served as the deputy head of the Company'’s insulin factory since October 2013 and
the head of APl department of that factory since February 2006. Mr. Li was the head of purification
department of the Company's insulin factory from December 2008 to September 201 3.

Mr. Li graduated with a bachelor degree in engineering from China Three Gorge University (= I5¢K
£ in June 2004.
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Mr. Eddy HUANG (& 1)), aged 43, was appointed as a non-executive Director on 20 February

2019. He is a member of the Nomination Committee.

Mr. Huang is a senior managing director of Blackstone's Private Equity Group. Prior to joining
Blackstone, Mr. Huang was a managing director at Morgan Stanley Private Equity Asia where
he focused on private equity investments in China. Mr. Huang received an M.B.A. from Harvard

Business School in 2002 and a B.A. from Yale University in 1997.

Mr. TANG Jianxin (JE£#), aged 54, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director
in May 2015. He is the chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of the Remuneration and

Evaluation Committee.

Moreover, Mr. Tang was an independent director of Sino Great Wall Co., Ltd. (SZSE stock number:
000018) from December 2015 to December 2018, and has served as an independent director
of Pingdingshan Tianan Coal Mining Co., Ltd. (SSE stock code: 601666) since May 2013. He has
been an independent director of Zhongbai Holdings Group Co., Ltd. (SZSE stock code: 000759)
from December 201 | to December 2017 and an independent director of Shenzhen Huapengfei
Modern Logistics Co., Ltd. (SZSE stock code: 300350) from August 2010 to August 2016. He was
an independent director of Wuhan Sanzhen Industry Holding Co., Ltd. (SSE stock code: 600168)
from June 2009 to June 2015, and an independent director of Wuhan Zhongnan Commercial
(Group) Co, Ltd. (SZSE stock code: 000785) from May 2008 to May 2014. Prior to that, Mr. Tang
served as an independent director of Wuhan Accelink Technologies Co., Ltd. (SZSE stock code:
002281) from September 2006 to September 2009 and an independent director of Hubei Chutian
Expressway Co., Ltd (1t KSR AN AR A E]) (SSE stock code: 600035) from April
2002 to April 2008. Mr. Tang has been a professor of the Accounting Department of Economics
and Management School of Wuhan University since 2004 and a doctoral tutor at Wuhan University
since 2006. He served as the dean of Accounting Department of Economics and Management
School in the same university from 2005 to 2015. He worked for the postdoctoral research center

of the accounting department of Renmin University of China from 2000 to 2002.

BEWELE  BH R-E-NAF-A-THREZE
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—tF AR EERERBROAERATOR
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Mr. Tang received his bachelor degree from the Economics Department of Wuhan University in
June 1985, and then obtained a master degree in economics and a doctoral degree in economics
from Wuhan University in September 1988 and January 1999 respectively. Mr. Tang was granted
independent auditor qualifications by the National Audit Office of the People’s Republic of China in
December 1992, and Certified Public Valuer qualification by the Chinese Institute of Certified Public

Valuers in December 1996.

Mr. FU Hailiang (/8%%), aged 47, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director
in May 2015. He is the chairman of the Remuneration and Evaluation Committee and a member of

the Nomination Committee.

Mr. Fu has been a partner and the head of administration function of Hubei S&H Law Firm since
May 2005. He was a partner of Hubei Haohan Law Firm (#3b&#8ERMETEFT) from October
2000 to May 2005 and an associate at Wuhan Third Law Firm (EZE™ 8 =2 EEHT) from
November 1996 to October 2000. Mr. Fu has been a council member of the Wuhan Lawyers
Association and the chief of the Association of Finance, Securities and Law Industry (%%ﬁ?ﬁ e
HE LB E) since February 2014.

Mr. Fu graduated with a professional certification in financial management from Wuhan University
in July 1993, and graduated with a bachelor degree in law from Zhongnan University of Economics
and Law in June 1998. After that, he graduated with a master degree in law from Wuhan University
in February 2003. Mr. Fu has been admitted to practice PRC law in June 1998 and was recognized
as an excellent lawyer of Hubei by the Department of Justice of Hubei and the Hubei Lawyers
Association (i1t & RAN 7€) in March 201 1.

Mr. LEE Chi Ming (

in May 2015. He is the chairman of the Nomination Committee and a member of the Audit

HBA), aged 65, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director

Committee.

Mr. Lee has also served as a director of Ever East Consultants Limited in Hong Kong since August
2013 and served as a director of Knowledge Transfer, Office of Research and Knowledge Transfer
Services in the Chinese University of Hong Kong since November 2016. Prior to that, Mr. Lee
served as an executive science director in the research of central nervous system and pain control
and a global product director of AstraZeneca Pharmaceuticals Co. Ltd, a section head, associate
director and project manager at Bayer Corporation and a senior group leader of neuroscience
at Abbott Laboratories. He also worked as a lecturer and then a senior lecturer at the Chinese

University of Hong Kong from September 1982 to February 1992.

Mr. Lee received a bachelor degree in science and a master degree in biochemistry from the
University of Hong Kong in June 1975 and July 1977 respectively, and a doctoral degree in
pharmacology from the University of Cambridge in July 1980 before he completed his postdoctoral
research at the Johns Hopkins University in July 1982.
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SUPERVISORS E=x
Start of term of office
upon expiration of
the term of the current
session of the Board
of Supervisors
Name Date of appointment EHIEREREE Position
HE BEEAH FEEEEEHERRE B
Ms. HUANG Fangfang (&35 75) 4 May 2015 8 June 2018 Chairman of the Board of Supervisors
=R AL —E-hFHAMA “Z-N\FXANE EEETR
Mr. WANG Shengchao (T B5i8) 21 July 2017 8 June 2018 Employee representative supervisor

TSR E —E—+tFtA=+—H

Mr. LUO Zhonghua (78 f2ZE)
BEESLE

16 June 2017
—ZT—+FRATRH

8 June 2018

o o

Ms. HUANG Fangfang (75 75), aged 37, is a Supervisor of the Company. She joined the
Company in May 2015, and has been the chairman of the Board of Supervisors since then. She has
also served as the executive deputy head of the generic drug department of Sunshine Lake Pharma
Co,, Ltd. since June 2014, and the head of formulation department of Sunshine Lake Pharma Co.,
Ltd. since February 2009. Prior to that, Ms. Huang was the head of analysis section under the
formulation department of Sunshine Lake Pharma Co., Ltd. from July 2006 to February 2009, the
head of formulation department of Sunshine Lake Pharma Co,, Ltd. since February 2009, and the
executive deputy head of the generic drug department of Sunshine Lake Pharma Co., Ltd. since June
2014.

Ms. Huang graduated with a master degree in science from Sun Yat-sen University in June 2006.

Mr. WANG Shengchao (E518), aged 36, is an employee representative Supervisor and the
deputy chief of the quality division of the Company. He joined the Company in May 2012 as a
quality controller of the quality division, and served as the vice director of quality assurance of the
quality division of the Company since April 2015. Mr. Wang held the position of the quality assurance
director of the quality division of the Company from May 2016 to June 2017, and served as the
deputy chief of the quality division of the Company since July 2017.

Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Wang worked as a researcher of new traditional Chinese
medicines in Hebei Yiling Pharmaceutical Group (A[Jt A48 B ZZE2[@]) from July 2008 to March
2010, a pharmaceutical analysis researcher in Pharmaron (Beijing) New Medicines Technology Co.,
Ltd. (FERR(bAC (Jb) FEERMTARR A F]) from April 2010 to May 2011, and an inspection
engineer and inspection supervisor of the quality department in Lepu (Beijing) Medical Equipment

Co, Ltd. (#3% (dbm) BESWIKHD AR AF]) from June 2011 to May 2012.
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Mr. Wang graduated from Shenyang Pharmaceutical University in July 2008 with a master degree in

science.

Mr. LUO Zhonghua (&8 %), aged 35, is a Supervisor of the Company. He joined Dongguan
HEC Medicine Development and Research Co., Ltd. (a subsidiary of Shenzhen HEC Industrial
Development Co., Ltd. (RIITTERIG B %2R AR A 7)), the controlling shareholder of the
Company, since June 2005 to engage in the research and development of APIs. He is currently the
head of the generic drug API synthesis department and deputy head of the generic drug division in

Dongguan HEC Medicine Development and Research Co., Ltd.

Mr. Luo graduated from the Central South University in June 2005 with a bachelor's degree

in pharmaceutical engineering and Sun Yat-sen University in 2015 with a master’s degree in
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pharmaceutical analysis, respectively. FILKRE - BUS S HATIE 247 -
SENIOR MANAGEMENT EREEAE
Date of joining Date of
Name the Group appointment Position Responsibility
®E MAFEEBH BZRIEEH B BE
Mr. JIANG Juncai 4 May 2015 4 May 2015 General manager Overall day-to-day management
BIOARE “ZT-hFRANA “Z-hFRANA PG SE BRENATERE
Mr. WANG Danjin 27 February 2006 4 May 2015 Deputy general manager Operational management
FEEE ZZTRF-RAZ+H+EH ZZ-hFRANA AlEE HEEE
Mr. LI Shuang 7 August 2005 4 May 2015 Deputy general manager Operational management
FREE e AV R = —Z-n¥HAWA Blese LEEE
Mr. ZHU Qiaohong I'I May 2002 I'l May 2002 Deputy general manager Operational management
RIDHSEE ZTT-FRA+-H ZET-FHA+—H AlEaE BEERE
Mr. LEI Xiantong(" 4 May 2015 4 May 2015 Chief financial officer Financial management
e obe ) “T-hFRANA “Z-hFHANA s MisEE

Mr. ZHANG Qiang
REITE

23 February 2018

- \#ZA=+=H

25 February 2019

“T-NF-A=-+HH

Chief financial officer

MisseE

Financial management

HBER
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EX EERSREEAREN

Date of joining Date of

Name the Group appointment Position Responsibility
nE MAZREE B EZRIEAM B BE
Mr. PAN Sanxiong® 4 May 2015 4 May 2015 Secretary of the Board Day-to-day operation of the Board
EIEFEED —hERANA —Z-nFHAmA ExenE EreHELEE
Mr. PENG Qiyun | July 2016 15 October 2018 Secretary of the Board Day-to-day operation of the Board
FHERE “2-RFtA-R “Z-N\F+A+hH EzenE ERQNARELE
Notes(: Mr. LEI Xiantong resigned as the chief financial officer with effect from 25 February 2019. fEEn : BEARMELEERZT-NF_AZTRBEFEY
TEHERE o
@:; Mr. PAN Sanxiong resigned as the secretary of the Board with effect from |5 October 2018. O FE=HEREER T \FT+A+ABHTEES

For the biography of Mr. JIANG Juncai (§571), Mr. WANG Danjin (£ fH#), Mr. ZHU Qiachong
(5?{15;\#\) and Mr. LI Shuang ($§1§) please refer to “Directors” in this section.

Mr. LEI Xiantong (& 5C1f), aged 49, joined the Company in May 2015, and served as the chief

financial officer of the Company.

Mr. Lei has been the chief financial officer of HEC Pharm from December 2010 to May 2015.
Mr. Lei has also been the deputy head of financial department of Yidu Dongyangguang Industrial
Development Co,, Ltd. from January 2004 to December 2010 and a staff member at the financial
department from September 2001 to January 2004. Mr. Lei held positions relating to financial

accounting in various companies before that.

Mr. Lei graduated with a professional certification in financial accounting from Zhongnan University
of Economics (currently known as Zhongnan University of Economic and Law) in June 1997. Mr. Lei
was recognised as a registered tax agent of China by the Ministry of Human Resources and Social

Security of the People’s Republic of China.

Mr. Lei Xiantong resigned as the chief financial officer on 25 February 2019.
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EE EEREREEAESEN

Mr. ZHANG Qiang (555%), aged 43, is the chief financial officer of the Company. Mr. Zhang
joined the Company in February 2018 and was appointed as the chief financial officer of the

Company on 25 February 2019 and is responsible for the financial management of the Company.

Mr. Zhang has been the head of finance department of the Company since February 2018. Mr.
Zhang has 20 years of experience in auditing, accounting and corporate finance. Prior to joining
the Company, Mr. Zhang acted as an assistant auditor of Yichang Changjiang Accounting Firm* (&
ERTIZEEMESAT) from March 1999 to September 2001. He acted as the financial auditor
EMHERR
2005 and served as the head of the finance department of HEC Pharm Co,, Ltd. from May 2005 to

of Yichang County Military Audit Bureau* (& & /@) from October 2001 to May

February 2018.

Mr. Zhang graduated from Wuhan University of Hydraulic and Electrical Engineering (E/£7/K | E&
JIKE2) with a college degree in financial accounting in June 1997. Mr. Zhang is an intermediate
accountant and a PRC certified public accountant.

Mr. PAN Sanxiong (& — ), aged 37, joined the Company in May 2015 and has served as the

secretary of the Board.

Prior to that, Mr. Pan was a representative of the securities department of HEC Pharm from April
2010 to April 2015, responsible for investor communication, handling financing and corporate
secretarial matters. Mr. Pan also worked in the securities department of Starway Bio-technology Co.,

Ltd. in Guangdong (F& 3 27 £ M EHE A% 1D AR 22 A]) from October 2008 to April 2010.

Mr. Pan graduated with a bachelor degree in management from Guizhou University of Finance
and Economics in 2007. He obtained a Qualification Certificate of Board Secretary issued by
the Shanghai Stock Exchange in November 2010 and passed the qualification examination for

practitioners in the securities industry held by Security Association of China in November 2009.

Mr. Pan resigned as the secretary of the Board on |15 October 2018.
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EX EERSREEAREN

Mr. PENG Qiyun (2EXE), aged 29, is the secretary of the Board. He joined the Company in
July 2016, and has served as the assistant to secretary of the Board since then, and served as the

secretary of the Board since October 2018.

Mr. Peng graduated from Qingdao University with a bachelor of science degree in mathematics
and applied mathematics in June 2013, and obtained a master’s degree in finance from Guangdong

Finance College in June 2017.

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES
Mr. PENG Qiyun (I E)

For the biography of Mr. Peng Qiyun (231 Z), please refer to “Senior Management” in this section.

Ms. NG Wing Shan (& 5k i)

Ms. Ng Wing Shan (= #kH) was appointed as a joint company secretary of the Company on
24 July 2015. Ms. Ng is an assistant vice president of SWCS Corporate Services Group (Hong
Kong) Limited (formerly SW Corporate Services Group Limited) and is responsible for assisting
listed companies in respect of professional company secretarial work. She has over 10 years of
professional experience in the company secretarial field and is a fellow member of The Hong Kong
Institute of Chartered Secretaries and The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators in

the United Kingdom.
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REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors now presents the Annual Report and the audited financial statements of the

Group (the “Financial Statements”) for the year ended 31 December 2018 to Shareholders.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
The Board of Directors currently consists of nine Directors, comprising four executive Directors,
two non-executive Directors and three independent non-executive Directors. The incumbent

Directors during the year ended 3| December 2018 and as at the date of this Annual Report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. JIANG Juncai

Mr. WANG Danjin

Mr. CHEN Yangui

Mr. ZHU Qiaohong (resigned on 20 February 2019)
Mr. LI Shuang (appointed on 8 June 2018)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. TANG Xinfa (Chairman)

Mr. MO Kit (retired on 8 June 2018)

Mr. Eddy HUANG (appointed on 20 February 2019)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. TANG Jianxin

Mr. FU Hailiang

Mr. LEE Chi Ming

Mr. ZHU Qiaohong resigned from his positions as an executive Director and a member of the

nomination committee of the Board due to other commitments on 20 February 2019.

Mr. MO Kit was a non-executive Director of the first session of the Board and retired at the expiry

of the first session of the Board on 8 June 2018.

EEERE

EERRUARRREEAREEE—T— \F1+=
A=+—B LS ENFRREECNBRE (T
HRD) -

EEg

BAl  EFGRENREF HPEFENENTE
= MEFRTEER=2FILIFNTES - NE
B2 \F+-A=+—BLFEARAFRA
B EREEET

HYITES

BHA L

FrEESEA

PRAAE A
KIGHAEE(RZE-NFZAZ+HEHT)
FREE(R B NEXANBEZE)

FHITES

BB EE(EER)
EARFERZE—NEXBNBEME)
BEREE(RZT-—NF_AZTHEZT)

BIUFHTES
L
gt
FEAEE

RORAEEREMERRERR  R-_F-LF_H
ZHRABEARFTRTEEREZRRELESS
B2 7% e

B
[l

ENFERFEEFTGHIFNTES  BNFE—
EEFSEHERSBIZZE—-N\FXANR)ER
e

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 & 45



REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
EEERE

PRINCIPAL BUSINESS

The Company is a PRC pharmaceutical manufacturing company that focuses on the development,
manufacturing and sale of pharmaceutical products in the therapeutic areas of anti-virus, endocrine
and metabolic diseases and cardiovascular diseases. For further information of the principal business

of the Company, please refer to the section “Business Review" of this Annual Report.

SHARE CAPITAL
As of 31 December 2018, the total share capital of the Company was RMB452,022,850, divided
into 452,022,850 shares of RMB1.00 each. Details of movements in the share capital of the

Company during the year 2018 are set out in Note 24 to the Financial Statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED SECURITIES OF THE
COMPANY
Neither the Company nor its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any listed securities of

the Company for the year ended 31 December 2018.

DEBENTURES IN ISSUE

The Company did not have any debentures in issue for the year ended 31 December 2018.
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REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT

Save as disclosed in the Management Discussion and Analysis on pages |0 to 32 of this Annual
Report and the section headed "“Proceeds from H Share Convertible Bonds” on page 72 of this
Annual Report, the Company did not enter into any equity-linked agreement, nor did any equity-

linked agreement exist during the year ended 3| December 2018.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION
The Company has purchased appropriate liability insurance for its Directors, Supervisors and senior

management. The permitted indemnity provisions are set out in such liability insurance.

Save as disclosed above, no permitted indemnity provision was made by the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2018 and no permitted indemnity provision was in force as at the Latest

Practicable Date.

PLEDGING OF SHARES BY THE CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER
The Controlling Shareholder didn't pledge any of its shares in the Company to secure the
Company's debts or to secure guarantees or other support of the Company's obligations for the

year ended 31 December 2018.

LOAN AGREEMENTS OR FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE OF THE COMPANY

The Company didn’t provide any financial assistance nor guarantee to its affiliated companies for
the year ended 31 December 2018, which gives rise to a disclosure under Rule 13.16 of the Listing
Rules. The Company didn't enter into any loan agreement with covenants relating to specific
performance of its Controlling Shareholder nor breach the terms of any loan agreements for the

year ended 31 December 2018.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company did not adopt any share option scheme.
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REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
EEERE

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS
Pursuant to the Articles of Association and the laws of the PRC, the Company is not subject to any
pre-emptive rights requiring it to propose new issues to its existing shareholders in proportion to

their shareholdings.

RESULTS

The audited results of operations of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year ended
31 December 2018 are set out in the Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other
Comprehensive Income on page | 19. The financial condition of the Company and its subsidiaries for
the year ended 31 December 2018 is set out in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
on pages 120 to 121. The consolidated cash flow of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year

ended 31 December 2018 is set out in the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement on pages 123.

Discussion and analysis about the operating performance and significant elements affecting the
results of operations and financial condition of the Company during the year are set out in

Management Discussion and Analysis of the Annual Report on page 10 to page 32.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the year and a discussion on the Group's future
business development are provided on pages 7 to 8 and pages 10 to 32 of this Annual Report,
respectively. Description of possible risks and uncertainties that the Group may be facing can be
found on pages 30 to 3| of this Annual Report. Particulars of important events affecting the Group
that have occurred since the end of the financial year are provided on note 29 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements. An analysis of the Group’s performance during the year using financial key

performance indicators is provided on pages |5 to 25 of this Annual Report.

In addition, further information of the Company's environmental policies, performance and initiatives
can be found in the section heading “Environmental Policies and Performance” of this Report of the
Board of Directors. The Company’s compliance with relevant laws and regulations which have a
significant impact on the Company are provided in the section heading “Compliance with Laws and
Regulations” of this Report of the Board of Directors. An account of the Company's relationships
with its employees, customers and suppliers are disclosed in the section heading “Relationship with

Stakeholders” of this Report of the Board of Directors.
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REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board resolved to recommend payment of final dividend of RMBO0.60 (tax inclusive) per share
for the year ended 3| December 2018 (the “2018 Final Dividend”) with an aggregate amount
of approximately RMB271.21 million to Shareholders whose names are listed on the Company's
register of members as at 18 June 2019, subject to the approval by the Shareholders at the AGM
to be held on Thursday, 6 June 2019. The 2018 Final Dividend will be denominated and declared
in RMB. The Company will pay dividends in respect of domestic shares in RMB and dividends in
respect of H shares in HKD. Subject to the approval of the relevant resolution at the AGM, the

2018 Final Dividend is expected to be paid on or around 19 July 2019.

Pursuant to the Enterprise Income Tax Law of the People's Republic of China (/R # A R £F1
Bl ¥FT15Fi)%) ) and its implementation rules, and other relevant provisions, the Company is
required to withhold and pay a 10% enterprise income tax when paying the proposed 2018 Final
Dividend to non-residential enterprise shareholders listed on the Company's register of members
of H shares. Any H share registered in the name of a non-individual registered shareholder, such as
HKSCC Nominees Limited, other nominees or trustees or other organizations or corporates, will
be deemed as shares held by a non-residential enterprise shareholder, and therefore the enterprise

income tax on the receivable dividend in respect of such shares will be withheld.

EEERE

RERE
EEgHAERMERE T \F+ZA=1+—
BIEFENRAREERAREOTT(EH) (1=

—N\FREBEDFRZZE—NAFATN\BE
PIARDRIRRAMAE - BSBEHOAREEL7121
BB WAGKRREARABR-_Z—NLEN

ARB(ESME)BTHRRBFRG FIER - 7
AEE - ZZ2-NFERPREFEUARBTER
Tk ° RERKRBHAAREIRN - MHARR S A
BB TTIRN  FABABRRBRBF A EE
& —E-N\FERPREFETHENR_Z-NELA
THNASATZIRE -

REB(PEARKMBE B EPTEEE) R A B MG
Bl AREAMBERE - ARBERBIIARDFIH
BBRA M IEE REERRRMNEZ T —N\F
NEPRL BB - ERBIE 0% R ERER -
ERARRPREZ(RIEA)BRAT - Hitsiz R
ARZFEAREMBLHEREIFEASLRRA
FEROHE  BREEHEEREERRSAN
Bt - WE AR Z S R IR B IRIN RS

i o

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 & 49



REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
EEERE

Pursuant to the Individual Income Tax Law of China ({F % A REFMBE@EAFTERIE))
and its implementation provisions, the Notice of the State Administration of Taxation on the
Issues Concerning Taxation and Administration of Individual Income Tax After the Repeal of the
Document (Guo Shui Fa [1993] No. 045) (Guo Shui Han [2011] No. 348) (Bl R S48 BN
BT 3L[1993]04557 ST RE LL IR A BIE A PRSIV E IR R @ AL (BT K201 113485%)) and
other related laws and regulations, the Company shall, as a withholding agent, withhold and pay the
personal income tax at the tax rate of 10% generally for individual Shareholders of H shares. For
individual Shareholders of H shares receiving dividends who are citizens from countries or regions
that have entered into tax treaties with the PRC with tax rates lower than 10%, the Company will
apply on behalf of them to seek entitlement of preferential tax treatments pursuant to such Notice,
and upon approval by the competent tax authorities, the excess amounts withheld will be refunded.
For individual Shareholders of H shares receiving dividends who are citizens from countries or
regions that have entered into tax treaties with the PRC with tax rates higher than 10% but lower
than 20%, the Company will withhold the withholding tax without any application at the agreed
rates under such treaties when the Company distribute dividends. For the individual Shareholders of
H shares receiving dividends who are citizens of countries or regions without taxation treaties with

the PRC or any other circumstances, the Company will withhold the tax at a rate of 20%.

Pursuant to the requirements under the Notice on Tax Policies for Shenzhen-Hong Kong Stock
Connect Pilot Program (Cai Shui [2016] No. 127) (Cai Shui [2016] No. 127) ({BEREBIK
EMi5R 5B BRI R BT BER @A) (FI5[2016]1275%)) promulgated by
Ministry of Finance of the PRC, State Administration of Taxation and China Securities Regulatory
Commission on 5 November 2016, for dividends received by domestic individual investors from
investing in H shares listed on the Stock Exchange through Pilot Program of the Shenzhen-Hong
Kong Stock Connect (*‘Shenzhen-Hong Kong Stock Connect”), the Company shall withhold and pay
individual income tax at the rate of 20% on their behalf in accordance with the register of individual
domestic investor as provided by the China Securities Depository and Clearing Corporation Limited
("CSDCCL"). For dividends received by domestic enterprises from investing in H shares listed on
the Stock Exchange through Shenzhen-Hong Kong Stock Connect, the Company will not withhold
the income tax of dividends for domestic enterprise investors in accordance with the register of
the mainland enterprise investors as provided by CSDCCL and the tax payable shall be declared
and paid by those domestic enterprise investors themselves, subject to corporate income taxes

according to relevant laws and regulations or exempt from the enterprise income tax.
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REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The aforesaid non-residential enterprises and foreign individuals may enjoy the concessionary tax
rate in accordance with the relevant provisions of treaties or arrangements for avoidance of double
taxation entered into between their country (region) and PRC, and the Announcement No. 60 in
2015 of the State Administration of Taxation: Administrative Measures for Nonresidents to Enjoy
the Treatments of Tax Treaties ((GEERMNFAZI TP EFBEIEPHE) ) (the "Measures”)
after completing relevant procedures. The aforesaid Shareholders shall provide complete
information as required by the Measures to the Company by 25 June 2019. The Company will file
tax return to enable the aforesaid Shareholders to enjoy the concessionary tax rate stipulated in the
Measures. The Company assumes no responsibility and disclaims all liabilities whatsoever in relation
to the tax status or tax treatment of the Shareholders of H shares of the Company and for any
claims arising from any delay in or inaccurate determination of the tax status or tax treatment of
the Shareholders of H shares of the Company or any disputes over the withholding mechanism or

arrangements.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

An extraordinary general meeting of the Company will be convened on Friday, 10 May 2019
(the “EGM") to approve the proposed major transaction and connected transaction under the
acquisition agreement dated 25 February 2019 entered into between the Company and Sunshine
Lake Pharma. Please refer to the announcements of the Company dated 25 February 2019 and 25

March 2019 for details.

In order to ascertain Shareholders’ entitlement to attend and vote at the AGM to be held on
Thursday, 6 June 2019 and the EGM, the register of members of the Company will be closed from
Wednesday, 10 April 2019 to Thursday, 6 June 2019 (both days inclusive), during which periods no

transfer of shares will be registered.

In order to qualify for attending and voting at the AGM, all unregistered shareholders of the
Company shall lodge transfer documents with the Company’s Share Registrar in Hong Kong,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen'’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong for registration before 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday,
9 April 2019.

In order to ascertain Shareholders’ entitlement to the proposed 2018 Final Dividend, the register of
members of the Company will be closed from Thursday, 13 June 2019 to Tuesday, 18 June 2019

(both days inclusive), during which periods no transfer of shares will be registered.
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In order to qualify for receiving the proposed 2018 Final Dividend (subject to the approval by
the Shareholders at the AGM), unregistered shareholders of the Company shall lodge transfer
documents with the Company's Share Registrar in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited at the above mentioned address for registration before 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday,

12 June 2019.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of the Company and its subsidiaries during

the year of 2018 are set out in Note 10 to the Financial Statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company during the year 2018 are set out in
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity, of which details of reserves available for distribution
to equity Shareholders are set out in Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity. The Company's
reserves available for distribution to equity shareholders as at 31 December 2018 represents the

retained profits of approximately RMBI,363.3 million (2017: RMB777.0 million).

BANK BORROWINGS AND OTHER BORROWINGS
Details of bank borrowings and other borrowings of the Company and its subsidiaries as at 3|

December 2018 are set out in Note 20 to the Financial Statements.

INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
The partial information and the biographical details of Directors, Supervisors and senior management

of the Company are set out on page 33 to page 44 of the Annual Report.

The Company has received an annual confirmation of independence from each of the independent
non-executive Directors pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, and considers all the

independent non-executive Directors to be independent of the Company.

SERVICE CONTRACTS OF DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS

The Company has entered into service contracts with the Directors. The principal particulars of
these service contracts are (I) each of the contracts is for a term of three years following each
Director's respective appointment date; and (2) each of the contracts is subject to termination in
accordance with their respective terms. The service contracts may be renewed under the Articles

of Association and applicable rules.

The Company has entered into contracts with the Supervisors in respect of, among others,
compliance with relevant laws and regulations, the Articles of Association and provisions of

arbitration.
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Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors or Supervisors has entered into a contract of service
with the Company which is not determinable by the Company within one year without payment of

compensation, other than statuary compensation.

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS

The remuneration of each executive Director are determined pursuant to the decisions of the
Shareholders’ general meeting, and with reference to the duty, responsibility and performance of the
executive Directors, results of the Group and other factors which may be considered as relevant
and appropriate. The non-executive Directors do not receive remuneration from the Company.
The remuneration of independent non-executive Directors are determined with reference to
their duties and responsibilities within the Company, the Company’s remuneration policy and the

prevailing market conditions.

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and Supervisors in 2018 are set out in Note 7 to the
Financial Statements. None of the Directors or Supervisors waived any emoluments during the year
ended 31 December 2018.

Details of the emoluments of each senior management of the Company (excluding Directors who

also hold executive positions) in 2018 are set out below:

Emoluments of each senior management of the Company (excluding Directors who also hold

executive positions) are set out below:

EEERE

B EXFAREESN  HEERREFEEARFGL
ARRRE R — ¢WTH§A’1E( ETE R ERR M) 48

LER RIS EH)

ESRESENHE
HWITEENHMORERRAGHNRAEMNEE - A
BHM2RATEEORE - EENKR - &%
B2 2648 R AT B AR MEAR A A E B A LA SR A T 8
E o FERITE S TMEARRDBIEREM - B IERIT
EENF @NTJ%%TBZ#E/‘ZK AZBBERE - K
RAEIFMMERER LBRITH IR EE

BEEREEN T /\FMNFBHRETBEERE
a7 - BE—ZE—N\F+-_A=+—HBLLFE "
MEEFHESHETAME -

BEARASRERANB(MBERETHEGNE
EIN=F- N\FEEOFHFEINNT

BEARRABRERAR (TMBERETHEBENE
%)Mﬁﬁﬂ&ﬂ? :

Salaries,
allowances and
benefits in kind

Contributions to
defined
contribution
retirement
benefit schemes

Discretionary

RMB’000 RMB’000 bonuses 2018 Total
el 11 EEHFR RMB’000 RMB’000
REWEF %U"f;]f‘%%k BigIEA  —F-N\FHEG
AR®TT AR®TT AR®TT AR®TT
Mr. Lei Xiantong Chief financial officer 203 16 105 324
Eptith ks P54
Mr. Peng Qiyun (i) Secretary of the Board 30 3 50 83
THERA®) EEEWE
Mr. Pan Sanxiong (ii) Secretary of the Board 153 I3 - 166
b it A (1) EEEWE
Total 386 32 I55 573
5
(i) Mr. Peng Qiyun was appointed as secretary of the Board on 15 October 2018. 0) THELAN T )\F+A+HBEZTAES

(i) Mr. Pan Sanxiong resigned as secretary of the Board on |5 October 2018.

TRE -

iy BESHEER-T-)\FTA+ABREESTEW
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DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENT
OR CONTRACTS

At the end of the year of 2018 or at any time during the year, there were no transactions,
arrangement or contracts of significance subsisting in relation to the Group's business to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party, directly or indirectly, and in which any Director or

Supervisor (or an entity connected with any Director or Supervisor) had a material interest.

ARRANGEMENT TO PURCHASE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

During the Reporting Period, neither the Company, its holding company, any of its subsidiaries nor
fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors of the Company to acquire
benefits by means of acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body

corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS
For the year 2018, none of the Directors or their associates had any competing interests in any
business that constitutes or may constitute direct or indirect competition with the Company'’s

businesses.

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND
CHIEF EXECUTIVE IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2018, none of the Directors, Supervisors and chief executive of the Company
had any interests or short positions in the Shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company
and any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO), which were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8
of Part XV of the SFO (including those taken or deemed as their interests and short position in
accordance with such provisions of the SFO), or which were required, pursuant to section 352 of
the SFO, to be entered in the register kept by the Company referred to therein, or which were
required, pursuant to the Model Code, to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange

were as follows.

54

YICHANG HEC CHANGJIANG PHARMACEUTICAL CO., LTD.

EEREERRS - ZHRE0HER

RZB— \FRRFANEFKRE - ARBREE
AERARMESET IR EEHES(HEZE
EREFAMENER) ERIMEAEAELS

HAEEEBAR  ADNAEMNEERS - it

BARGREREE 2 LB

RBERRA - BHEARTF] - B g E A
BRI RRME QR 2T R HE - BER
RAEEAFEBARNDAREAEMEARRZR
e ERERE &L o

EERRBEBOER

RZZE-NFER  BESEFRENHE ALK
REIEB BN E RS EERF ARSI
BEARFER -

EE  BEERESTHRABERG - AERORE
EETEENESRAA
R-ZE-\F+_A=+—08 HEEE E=}
RRBRSITHABERRE R H AL
(T&RES LB RMIEXVED) B - 12RRM
SEEETHEEAREE S B RIEXVEET
N FE8D A MG AN T M P E Mok R (RIS
HIREE S LR GRIINZERERR AT R
BHRERMRR)  RAREE S MAEERDIE352
{FRBAB BRI b AR R FE B LM AR
BmRAR - REARBIREST RIS AR R LB
Mt MORE ©

]]

HERBARIEXRDERAH



REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
EEEHRE

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES FERFRRRMDHIER

As at 31 December 2018, to the knowledge of the Directors, the persons (other than the RZZE—N\F+ZA=+—8 RESFA - 75
Directors, Supervisors or chief executive of the Company) who have an interest or short position in AT (EF  EFAARFHZHITHAERIN AR
the Shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company A BIR& 17 sk AR BER% (D #E B 7B AR 1K 38 55 K R & 1545
pursuant to Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and as recorded in the register required to be  ZEXVEBE2 K B3P 3h[A A A BREREREOAR
kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO were as follows: KR SRR E 5 R R RO 5 3361678 T W71

ARFMBRMOBRBAR -

Number of
Number of underlying Approximate Approximate
Shares/underlying shares held under percentage of percentage of
Shares held equity derivatives relevant class total issued
(shares) (shares) of share capital share capital
BERS/ IRAFTETA REERRA BRAIREEE
Name of Shareholders Types of Shares Capacity HERGHE BEERERASE LR L e R
RR## RHER a4 (&) (&) (%) *)
Guangdong HEC Technology Holding Co, Ltd. Domestic Shares Beneficial owner 226,200,000 (L) - 100% (L) 50.04% (L)
BRRBHEERRN AR LA MAR EEEBA
Shenzhen HEC Industrial Development Co, Ltd. #2 Domestic Shares Interest in controlled 226,200,000 (L) - 100% (L) 50.04% (L)
HITEBRELERER AR WA corporation
REHEEER
Shaoguan Xinyuneng Industrial Investment Domestic Shares Interest in controlled 226,200,000 (L) - 100% (L) 50.04% (L)
Company Limited 2 AR corporation
DB ERRABRAR? REHEEER
Ruyuan Yao Autonomous County Yuneng Electric  Domestic Shares Interest in controlled 226,200,000 (L) - 100% (L) 50.04% (L)
Industrial Co, Ltd? NER corporation
ARERE R GBRETEERRAM REHEEER
Ruyuan Yao Autonomous County Xinjing Domestic Shares Interest in controlled 226,200,000 (L) - 100% (L) 50.04% (L)
Technology Development Co, Ltd? AR corporation
ARERB RS R R ERARAR) REHEEER
Mr. Zhang Zhongneng® Domestic Shares Interest in controlled 226,200,000 (L) - 100% (L) 50.04% (L)
KRR = corporation
REHEEER
Ms. Guo Meilan Domestic Shares Interest in controlled 226,200,000 (L) - 100% (L) 50.04% (L)
el L = corporation
REHEEER
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Number of
Number of underlying Approximate Approximate
Shares/underlying shares held under percentage of percentage of
Shares held equity derivatives relevant class total issued
(shares) (shares) of share capital share capital
HERS/ IRAFTETA REERRA BRAREEE
Name of Shareholders Types of Shares Capacity HERAZA BEEEBRAZA LR HEAE A
RR## BEE L0 (&) (&) (%) *)
North & South Brother Pharmacy Investment H Shares Beneficial owner 81,456,400 (L) - 36.07% (L) 18.02% (L)
Company Limited HiX ERHAA
B RREERAER LA
H Shares Beneficial owner 75,000,000 (5) - 3321%(5) 16.59% (5)
HiR EHREEA
North & South Brother Investment H Shares Interest in controlled 81456400 (L) - 3607% (L) 1802% (L)
Holdings Limited® Hik corporation
RiEHEBIE
H Shares Interest in controlled 75,000,000 () - 3321%(5) 1659% (5)
Hii% corporation
R
Mr.MO Kit H Shares Interest in controlled 81,456,400 (L) - 36.07% (L) 18.02% (L)
Nk Hik corporation
St mik
H Shares Interest in controlled 75,000,000 () - 3321%(5) 1659% (5)
Hik corporation
SEtAEER
Sanxing Electric (Hong Kong) Company Limited H Shares Beneficial owner 13,480,400 (L) - 597% (L) 298% (L)
Hi& ESERA
Ningbo Sanxing Medical Electric Co, Ltd? H Shares Interest in controlled 13,480,400 (L) - 597% (L) 298% (L)
Hi& corporation
REHERER
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Number of
Number of underlying Approximate Approximate
Shares/underlying shares held under percentage of percentage of
Shares held equity derivatives relevant class total issued
(shares) (shares) of share capital share capital
BERS/ IRAFTETA REERRA BRAIREEE
Name of Shareholders Types of Shares Capacity HEROEE BEHEBROEE =R HBAEA
BREH RHER a4 (&) (&) (%) *)
AUX Holdings Co, Ltd* H Shares Interest in controlled 13,480,400 (L) - 597% (L) 298% (L)
Hi& corporation
REHERES
Mr. Zheng Jianjiang® H Shares Interest in controlled 13480400 (L) - 597% (L) 298% (L)
BT A Hi& corporation
REHERES
Ms. He Yiju’ H Shares Interest in controlled 13480400 (L) - 597% (L) 298% (L)
el Hi& corporation
REHERES
e RERERAERARAR H Shares Other 11705490 (1) - 5.18% (1) 259% (1)
HiR it
China Intemational Capital Corporation Limited® H Shares Interest in controlled 11705490 (L) - 5.18% (L) 25% (L)
PEERSBROERAR: Hil corporation
FislamiEs
Stephen A, Schwarzman® H Shares Interest in controlled - 82631578 (L) 3659% (L) 18.28% (L)
Hi% corporation
SEHERES
The Blackstone Group LP? H Shares Interest in controlled - 82631578 (L) 3659% (L) 18.28% (L)
Hi% corporation
FislamiEs
Blackstone Dawn Pte. Ltd”? H Shares Beneficial owner - 82217924 (1) 3641% (L) 18.19% (L)
Hi% BEEAA

(8] — Long position

S) — Short position

The calculation is based on the total number of 452,022,850 shares in issue of the Company as at

31 December 2018, comprising 226,200,000 Domestic Shares and 225,822,850 H Shares.

FEDREARAR-_ZE—NF+_A=1+—
B2 31T 0 42 #452,022,850 M1 H @ B
226,200,0008% A& f% }.225,822,850A% HA%
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Notes:

58

Mr. Tang Xinfa is a director of Shenzhen HEC Industrial Development Co., Ltd..

The shareholding information of the shareholders of the Company as at 3|1 December 2018 are based on
the information recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under section 352 of the
SFO.

As at 3|1 December 2018, Shenzhen HEC Industrial Development Co., Ltd. owned 27.97% equity interest
in Guangdong HEC Technology Holding Co., Ltd, therefore Shenzhen HEC Industrial Development Co.,
Ltd. is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Guangdong HEC Technology Holding Co., Ltd..

Ruyuan Yao Autonomous County Yuneng Electric Industrial Co., Ltd. owned 42.34% equity interest
in Shenzhen HEC Industrial Development Co., Ltd. and 58% equity interest in Shaoguan Xinyuneng
Industrial Investment Company Limited, which owned 27.00% equity interest in Shenzhen HEC Industrial
Development Co., Ltd, therefore Ruyuan Yao Autonomous County Yuneng Electric Industrial Co., Ltd.
is deemed to be interested in the Shares which are interested by Shenzhen HEC Industrial Development
Co,, Ltd..

Ruyuan Yao Autonomous County Xinjing Technology Development Co., Ltd. owned 30.66% equity
interest in Shenzhen HEC Industrial Development Co., Ltd. and 42% equity interest in Shaoguan
Xinyuneng Industrial Investment Company Limited, which owned 27.00% equity interest in Shenzhen
HEC Industrial Development Co,, Ltd., therefore Ruyuan Yao Autonomous County Xinjing Technology
Development Co,, Ltd. is deemed to be interested in the Shares which are interested by Shenzhen HEC
Industrial Development Co.,, Ltd..

As at 3|1 December 2018, Mr. Zhang Zhongneng (“Mr. Zhang') owned 99.69% equity interest in Ruyuan
Yao Autonomous County Yuneng Electric Industrial Co., Ltd., therefore Mr. Zhang is deemed to be
interested in the Shares which are interested by Ruyuan Yao Autonomous County Yuneng Electric
Industrial Co., Ltd..

As at 31 December 2018, Ms. Guo Meilan (“Ms. Guo™) owned 99.51% equity interest in Ruyuan Yao
Autonomous County Xinjing Technology Development Co,, Ltd,, therefore Ms. Guo is deemed to be
interested in the Shares which are interested by Ruyuan Yao Autonomous County Xinjing Technology
Development Co., Ltd.. Ms. Guo is the spouse of Mr. Zhang and is deemed to be interested in the Shares
which are interested by Mr. Zhang under the SFO.

As at 31 December 2018, North & South Brother Investment Holdings Limited owned 100% equity
interest in North & South Brother Pharmacy Investment Company Limited and is deemed to be
interested in the Shares which are interested by North & South Brother Pharmacy Investment Company
Limited. Mr. MO Kit owned 100% equity interest in North & South Brother Investment Holdings Limited
and therefore, he is deemed to be interested in the Shares which are interested by North & South

Brother Investment Holdings Limited.
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6. As at 31 December 2018, Ningbo Sanxing Medical Electric Co., Ltd. owned 100% equity interest in
Sanxing Electric (Hong Kong) Company Limited and is deemed to be interested in the Shares which
are interested by Sanxing Electric (Hong Kong) Company Limited. AUX Holdings Co., Ltd. and Mr.
Zheng Jianjiang owned 32.08% and 16.47% equity interest in Ningbo Sanxing Medical Electric Co., Ltd.

respectively.

Mr. Zheng Jianjiang owned 85% equity interest in Ningbo Yuanhe Electronics Technology Co., Ltd and
owned 85% equity interest in Ningbo Yuanxing Industrial Investments Co., Ltd. Also, Ningbo Yuanhe
Electronics Technology Co., Ltd and Ningbo Yuanxing Industrial Investments Co., Ltd owned 35% and
65% equity interest in AUX Holdings Co., Ltd. respectively. Therefore, AUX Holdings Co., Ltd. and Mr.
Zheng Jianjiang are deemed to be interested in Shares which are interested by Ningbo Sanxing Medical
Electric Co,, Ltd.

7. As at 31 December 2018, Ms. He Yiju is the spouse of Mr. Zheng Jianjiang and is deemed to be interested
in the Shares which are interested by Mr. Zheng Jianjiang under the SFO.

8. As at 31 December 2018, China International Capital Corporation Limited owned 100% equity interest in
PR ERERAEEAMRAR and is deemed to be interested in the Shares which are interested by
TERRRERAEEEARAR.

9. This represents the Shares to be issued upon the exercise of the conversion right attached to the H
Share convertible bonds, which price being initially HK$38 per H Share, subject to adjustment. Stephen
A. Schwarzman through The Blackstone Group L.P. and its directly and indirectly controlled entities are
deemed to be interested in the unlisted derivatives — convertible instruments in relation to 82,217,924
Shares held by Blackstone Dawn Pte. Ltd. and in relation to 413,654 Shares held by Blackstone Dawn
Holdings ESC (Caymand) Ltd..

Save as disclosed above, as at 3|1 December 2018, the Directors were not aware of any interests
or short positions owned by any persons (other than the Directors, Supervisors or chief executive
of the Company) in the Shares or underlying shares of the Company which are required to be
disclosed to the Company pursuant to Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which are
required to be recorded in the register of the Company required to be kept under section 336 of

the SFO.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACT
No contract concerning the management and administration of all or any substantial part of our

business was entered into by the Company or existed in 2018.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Group has conducted certain non-exempt connected transactions during the year of 2018.

Connected Transactions

On 10 July 2018, the Company entered into an acquisition agreement with Sunshine Lake Pharma,
pursuant to which the Company agreed to acquire, and Sunshine Lake Pharma agreed to dispose
of the know-how, the ownership of the domestic approvals for manufacturing and marketing and
the right to sale of six pharmaceutical products in the PRC at a consideration of RMB505,200,000
(the "“Acquisition”), which comprised a prepayment of RMB252,600,000 and six milestone payments
totaling RMB252,600,000. HEC Pharm is a controlling shareholder of the Company. Shenzhen
HEC Industrial controls approximately 75.00% shareholding interests in HEC Pharm and also holds
approximately 51.84% equity interests in Sunshine Lake Pharma, therefore, Sunshine Lake Pharma
is a connected person of the Company by virtue of being an associate of HEC Pharm. As a result,
this acquisition (the “Acquisition”) also constitutes a connected transaction of the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The Acquisition was approved by the independent shareholders
of the Company at the extraordinary general meeting held on 30 August 2018.

For the reasons of entering into the transaction, the terms of payment and other detailed
information, please refer to the announcements of the Company dated 10 July 2018, 15 August
2018 and 30 August 2018 and the circular of the Company dated 30 July 2018.

On 14 December 2018, the Company entered into an acquisition agreement with HEC Pharm
and Yidu HEC Industrial Development Co., Ltd. ("Yidu HEC Industrial”), pursuant to which the
Company agreed to acquire, and HEC Pharm and Yidu HEC Industrial agreed to dispose of, the
entire equity interests in Yichang HEC Pharmaceutical at a total consideration of RMB 124,700,
including RMB 105,995 payable to HEC Pharm and RMB18,705 payable to Yidu HEC Industrial.

Shenzhen HEC Industrial is a controlling shareholder of the Company. Both HEC Pharm and Yidu
HEC Industrial are subsidiaries of Shenzhen HEC Industrial. Accordingly, each of HEC Pharm and
Yidu HEC Industrial constitutes a connected person of the Company by virtue of being an associate
of Shenzhen HEC Industrial and this acquisition constitutes a connected transaction of the Company

under Chapter |4A of the Listing Rules.

For the reasons of entering into the transaction, the terms of payment and other detailed

information, please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 14 December 2018.
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On 25 February 2019, the Company entered into an acquisition agreement with Sunshine Lake
Pharma, pursuant to which the Company agreed to acquire, and Sunshine Lake Pharma agreed to
dispose, the intellectual property rights, industrial property rights and ownership rights in relation
to 27 pharmaceutical products within the PRC at a total consideration of RMB1,626,434,600
(the “Proposed Acquisition”), which comprised a prepayment of RMB813,217,300, 27 milestone
payments totalling RMB325,286,900 and two balance amounts totalling RMB487,930,400. The
Parent Company is a controlling shareholder of the Company. Shenzhen HEC Industrial holds
approximately 53.32% equity interests in the Parent Company and Sunshine Lake Pharma is an
indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of Shenzhen HEC Industrial. Therefore, Sunshine Lake Pharma
is a connected person of the Company by virtue of being an associate of the Parent Company.
Accordingly, the transaction contemplated thereunder constituted a connected transaction of the
Company. Pursuant to Rule [4A81 of the Listing Rules, the transactions under the Acquisition on
10 July 2018 and this acquisition shall be aggregated. As a result, this acquisition constitutes a major
transaction and a connected transaction of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
The Proposed Acquisition is subject to, among others, approval by the independent shareholders of

the Company at the extraordinary general meeting to be held on 10 May 2019.

For the reasons of entering into the transaction, the terms of payment and other detailed
information, please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 25 February 2019 and page

29 of this Annual Report.

Continuing Connected Transactions
The Group has conducted certain non-exempt continuing connected transactions during the year of

2018:
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Annual caps Actual transaction

for 2018 value in 2018
(RMB million) (RMB million)
—®-NE  R-F-NEW
Connected transactions under Connected persons FELR BRERXSE
BERXSER BEAL (AR¥EER) (ARBEET)
Energy Purchase HEC Pharm 24.521 14.953
Yichang HEC Power Plant Co., Ltd.
REERLIR HERBGK 24.521 14.953
HERBGHANEEERAA
2. Purchase of Packaging Materials and HEC Pharm 40 24.855
Chemical Raw Materials Shaoguan HEC Packaging and Printing
Co,, Ltd.
2. RBEEMHRMEERE HEERBGK 40 24.855

HERG L BEERBIBRA R
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Annual caps

Actual transaction

for 2018 value in 2018

(RMB million) (RMB million)

—E-N\F R=ZZ-N\FH

Connected transactions under Connected persons FE LR EBRSE

BEXZER BEAL (AR¥EER) (AR¥EER)

3. Purchase of APls HEC Pharm 4.5 3484

3. REBIRHEIEE HERBGK 45 3484

4. 2018 Liquid Waste Processing Agreement HEC Pharm 3 2.579

4. B \FEEEBTKIGE HERGKE 3 2579

5. Framework Equipment Purchase Agreement Yidu Changjiang Machine and Equipment 29.5 6.239

Co,, Ltd.

5 REBEEXRDS HERITIEMREARQA 295 6239

6. Framework Pharmaceutical Products and Guangdong HEC Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. 9 2318
APls Sales Agreement HEC Medicine Retail Chain Co,, Ltd.

6. EmRRHEEHEERT ERRGAEXAR AT 9 2318
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Framework Energy Procurement Agreement

On 6 December 2015, the Company entered into a framework energy procurement
agreement with Shenzhen HEC Industrial in relation to the purchase of electricity and steam
from Shenzhen HEC Industrial and its subsidiaries from time to time. The framework energy
procurement agreement took effect upon the Listing Date and shall be valid for a period of
three years ended in 2018. On 22 December 2017, the Company entered into the 201 8-
2020 framework energy procurement agreement with Shenzhen HEC Industrial with a
term of three years, effective from | January 2018 to 31 December 2020. On 24 August
2018, the Board resolved to adjust the original annual caps under the 2018-2020 framework
energy procurement agreement from the existing RMB 14,521,000, RMB31,940,000 and
RMB39,519,000 to RMB24,521,000, RMB4 1,940,000 and RMB49,518,400 for the years
ended 31 December 2018, 3| December 2019 and 3| December 2020, respectively.

Pricing Policy

According to the framework energy procurement agreement, the price for the electricity
to be charged under the 2018-2020 framework energy procurement agreement was
determined with reference to the reply from Yichang Municipal Price Bureau (B & T ¥1EB)
to Yichang HEC Power Plant Co., Ltd. on direct supply of electricity price in Yidu District.
The price for the steam to be charged under the 2018-2020 framework energy procurement
agreement was determined with reference to the heat supply price of enterprise of heat
supply from the heat pricing list of the heat supply enterprise issued by Yichang Municipal
Price Bureau (E 2T ER).

For the reasons of entering into the transaction and other details, please refer to the
prospectus of the Company dated |5 December 2015 and the announcements of the
Company dated 22 December 2017 and 24 August 2018.

Framework Packaging and Chemical Materials Purchase Agreement

On 6 December 2015, the Company entered into a framework packaging and chemical
materials purchase agreement with Shenzhen HEC Industrial in relation to the purchase of
certain packaging and chemical materials from Shenzhen HEC Industrial and/or its associates
(other than the Group) for the packaging and manufacturing of our pharmaceutical
products. The framework packaging and chemical materials purchase agreement took effect
upon the Listing Date and shall be valid for a period of three years ended in 2018. On 24
February 2017, the Board resolved to adjust the original annual cap for the year 2017 under
the framework packaging and chemical materials purchase agreement from the existing
RMB 18,829,000 to RMB23,829,000.
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On 22 December 2017, the Company entered into the 2018-2020 framework packaging and
chemical materials purchase agreement with Shenzhen HEC Industrial with a term of three
years, effective from | January 2018 to 31 December 2020. On 24 August 2018, the Board
resolved to adjust the original annual caps under the 2018-2020 framework packaging and
chemical materials purchase agreement from the existing RMB20,000,000, RMB25,200,000
and RMB32,000,000 to RMB40,000,000, RMB45,200,000 and RMB62,000,000 for the years
ended 31 December 2018, 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2020, respectively.

Pricing Policy

According to the framework packaging and chemical materials purchase agreement, when
selecting supplier of the packaging and chemical materials, the Company will compare the
quotations of Shenzhen HEC Industrial and/or its subsidiaries with the existing market price
of relevant packaging and chemical materials. The price and terms offered by Shenzhen HEC
Industrial and/or its subsidiaries were fair and reasonable and no less favorable than those

offered by independent third party suppliers.

For the reasons of entering into the transaction and other details, please refer to the
prospectus of the Company dated |5 December 2015 and the announcements of the

Company dated 24 February 2017, 22 December 2017 and 24 August 2018.

Framework API Purchase Agreement

On 6 December 2015, the Company entered into a framework AP purchase agreement
with Shenzhen HEC Industrial for the purchase of certain APIs from Shenzhen HEC Industrial
and/or its subsidiaries (other than the Group) for the production of our pharmaceutical
products, mainly azithromycin, clarithromycin and roxithromycin products. The framework
API purchase agreement took effect upon the Listing Date and shall be valid for a period of
three years ended in 2018. On 22 December 2017, the Company entered into the 2018-
2020 framework API purchase agreement with Shenzhen HEC Industrial with a term of

three years, effective from | January 2018 to 31 December 2020.

YICHANG HEC CHANGJIANG PHARMACEUTICAL CO., LTD.
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Pricing Policy

According to the framework APl purchase agreement, when selecting supplier of the API,
the Company will compare the quotations of Shenzhen HEC Industrial and/or its subsidiaries
with the existing market price of relevant APl. The price and terms offered by Shenzhen
HEC Industrial and/or its subsidiaries were fair and reasonable and no less favorable to those

offered by independent third party suppliers.

For the reasons of entering into the transaction and other details, please refer to the
prospectus of the Company dated |5 December 2015 and the announcement of the

Company dated 22 December 2017.

2017 Liquid Waste Processing Agreement

On 24 February 2017, the Company entered into the 2017 liquid waste processing
agreement with HEC Pharm, pursuant to which, HEC Pharm has agreed to provide liquid
waste processing service to the Company. The term of the 2017 liquid waste processing
agreement is from 24 February 2017 to 3| December 2019. On 24 August 2018, the Board
resolved to adjust the original annual cap under the 2017 liquid waste processing agreement

from the existing RMB3,000,000 to RMB4,200,000 for the year ended 31 December 2019.

Pricing Policy
HEC Pharm will only charge the service fees based on the actual cost incurred, which is
more favorable than the term that can be obtained by the Company from independent third

parties.

For the reasons of entering into the transaction and other details, please refer to the

announcements of the Company dated 24 February 2017 and 24 August 2018.
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Framework Equipment Purchase Agreement

On 24 February 2017, the Company entered into the framework equipment purchase
agreement with Shenzhen HEC Industrial, pursuant to which, the Company has agreed to
purchase customized equipment from Shenzhen HEC Industrial and/or its associates. The
term of the framework equipment purchase agreement is from 24 February 2017 to 3|
December 2019. On 24 August 2018, the Board resolved to adjust the original annual caps
under the framework equipment purchase agreement from the existing RMB9,500,000 and
RMB5,500,000 to RMB29,500,000 and RMB15,500,000 for the years ended 31 December
2018 and 31 December 2019, respectively.

Pricing Policy

Under the framework equipment purchase agreement, the price for the customized
equipment will be determined with reference to the Consumption Quota and Unit Pricing
Table for General Installation Works in Hubei Province (1t & BALE TREFEET
N B {H{EER)) issued by the Department of Housing and Urban-Rural Development
of Hubei Province in 2013. The Consumption Quota and Unit Pricing Table provides pre-
determined formulas for service fees calculation by setting out each category of fees to be

charged and the formula for calculating the fees in different scenarios under each category.

For the reasons of entering into the transaction and other details, please refer to the

announcements of the Company dated 24 February 2017 and 24 August 2018.

Framework Pharmaceutical Products and APIs Sales Agreement

On 24 February 2017, the Company entered into the framework pharmaceutical products
and APIs sales agreement with Shenzhen HEC Industrial, pursuant to which, Shenzhen HEC
Industrial and/or its associates have agreed to purchase pharmaceutical products and APls
from the Company. The term of the framework pharmaceutical products and APIs sales

agreement is from 24 February 2017 to 3| December 2019.

Pricing Policy

As the Company also sells pharmaceutical products and APIs to independent third parties,
the fees to be charged shall not be lower than the price charged to any independent third
parties.

For the reasons of entering into the transaction and other details, please refer to the

announcement of the Company dated 24 February 2017.
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Review by and Confirmation of Independent Non-executive Directors of the
Company
The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the above continuing connected

transactions, and confirmed that such transactions were:

() carried out in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(ii) made on normal or better commercial terms (as defined in the Listing Rules); and

(i) carried out according to the terms in the relevant transaction agreements, which are fair and

reasonable, and in the interests of the Shareholders as a whole.

External auditor’s report on the Group’s continuing connected transactions

The Company's auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s continuing connected transactions
in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) "“Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with reference
to Practice Note 740 “Auditor's Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong
Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor
has issued its letter to the Board containing the auditor's findings and conclusions in respect of the
continuing connected transactions disclosed by the Group on pages 61 to 62 of the Annual Report
in accordance with Listing Rule [4A.56. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the
Company to the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

Details of the related party transactions of the Group are set out in Note 27 of the Consolidated
Financial Statements. Apart from the connected transactions and continuing connected transactions
as disclosed in this Annual Report, none of the related party transactions constituted connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions under Chapter [4A of the Listing Rules, which
are subject to announcement or independent shareholders’ approval requirements. The Company
has complied with disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in
respect of the connected transactions and the continuing connected transactions as set out in the

Annual Report.
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NON-COMPETITION AGREEMENT

The Company had entered into a non-competition agreement on 6 December 2015 (the “Non-
competition Agreement”) with HEC Pharm, Linzhi HEC Pharmaceutical Investment Co., Ltd. (#k
CRIGHEERLEFR AR, Dongguan HEC Industrial Development Co., Ltd. (R HR
[ EHIZEREAMR A A]), Shenzhen HEC Industrial, Ruyuan Yao Autonomous County Yuneng
Electric Industrial Co., Ltd. (FLIR¥EE B /A ZRELEFEEFMR 2 7)), Ruyuan Yao Autonomous
County Xinjing Technology Development Co., Ltd. (FLRE& B A% AEHTERBR A
7)), Mr. ZHANG Zhongneng (5RF §E) and Ms. GUO Meilan (3B#588) (collectively, “the Then
Controlling Shareholders™), under which such Then Controlling Shareholders agreed not to, and to
procure their subsidiaries (other than the Group) not to, compete with us in our businesses and
granted us options to acquire the businesses of production and sale of APIs and overseas sale of
pharmaceutical products operated by the Then Controlling Shareholders and/or its subsidiaries (other

than the Group) and certain future new business.

The Then Controlling Shareholders, the Parent Company, a subsidiary of Shenzhen HEC Industrial,
and Shaoguan Xinyuneng Industrial Investment Company Limited (BARE¥T BB RE B %K E B R A F)),
a subsidiary of Ruyuan Yao Autonomous County Yuneng Electric Industrial Co., Ltd., have confirmed
in writing to the Company of their compliance with the Non-competition Agreement for disclosure

in this Annual Report during the Reporting Period.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the Non-competition Agreement and had
determined that the Then Controlling Shareholders and their subsidiaries have not been in breach

of the Non-competition Undertaking during the Reporting Period.

Save as disclosed above, during the Reporting Period, the Directors (including independent
non-executive Directors) did not make any decisions in relation to whether to exercise or terminate

an option or a right of first refusal and take up or waive any business opportunity.

STRATEGIC COOPERATION AGREEMENT

We refer to the section headed “Business” in the prospectus of the Company dated |5 December
2015. As disclosed in the prospectus, we have entered into the Strategic Cooperation Agreement
with Shenzhen HEC Industrial, pursuant to which we have a pre-emptive right to acquire the
right to manufacture and sell new pharmaceutical products being developed by HEC Research
Group (including Yichang HEC Research Co., Ltd. (B & RF5 B2 AR A 7)), Linzhi HEC
Pharmaceutical Investment Co., Ltd. (N2 R[5 2L EFR A A]) and their respective
subsidiaries, being the subsidiaries of Shenzhen HEC Industrial). During the year of 2018, in
consideration of the potential market of certain pharmaceutical products developed by Sunshine
Lake Pharma and the Company's long-term development strategy, the Company exercised the
pre-emptive right under the Strategic Cooperation Agreement to acquire six pharmaceutical
products from Sunshine Lake Pharma (a subsidiary of HEC Research Group). Please refer to page
26 and page 60 of this annual report. In addition, considering the future product structure and sales
strategy of the Company, the Board has approved to give up the pre-emptive right to acquire to
manufacture and sell Moxifloxacin hydrochloride Eye Drops (E&f& & gayb 255 R /R) in year 2018.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the total amount of procurement from the five largest
suppliers of the Company accounted for 44.83% of the total amount of procurement of the year.
Among the five largest suppliers for the year of 2018, HEC Pharm and Shaoguan HEC Packaging
and Printing Co., Ltd. are subsidiaries of Shenzhen HEC Industrial; the single largest supplier was
Shaanxi Jiahe Phytochem Co. HEC Pharm, Ltd. and our purchase from that company accounted for

13.80% of the total purchase amount during the year.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the total amount of sales to the five largest customers
of the Company accounted for 17.27% of the total revenue of sales of the year. The sales to the

largest customers accounted for 5.89% of the total revenue of sales of the year.

Save as disclosed above, during the year of 2018, to the knowledge of the Directors, none of the
Directors, their close associates, or Shareholders of the Company (which, to the knowledge of the
Directors, owned more than 5% of the number of issued Shares of the Company) had interests in

the five largest suppliers or customers of the Company.

MAJOR ACQUISITION
I On 10 July 2018, the Company entered into an acquisition agreement with Sunshine Lake
Pharma, pursuant to which the Company shall pay a consideration of RMB505.20 million to
acquire the technique, the ownership of approvals for manufacturing and marketing and the

right to sale of Clarithromycin Sustained Release Tablets (Fe RLf#IZ= 412 ), Levofloxacin
Tablets (A2 & £ /), Clarithromycin Tablets (7R 722 F), Moxifloxacin Tablets (B 7

Y E ), Olmesartan Tablets (B3 18 /) and Esomeprazole Magnesium Enteric-coated

Tablets (R RER M EGAR

prepayment of RMB252.60 million and a total amount of milestone payment (with respect

%) (the "Target Products”). Such consideration included a

to one particular Target Product, shall be payable upon the obtaining of the National Medical
Products Administration approvals for manufacturing, marketing and sale of such Target
Product and the change of ownership to such approvals from Sunshine Lake Pharma to the
Company) of RMB252.60 million. Please refer to the announcements of the Company dated
10 July 2018, 15 August 2018 and 30 August 2018 and the circular of the Company dated
30 July 2018 for further details.
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2. On 14 December 2018, the Company entered into an acquisition agreement with HEC
Pharm and Yidu HEC Industrial, pursuant to which the Company agreed to acquire
the entire equity interests in Yichang HEC Pharmaceutical at a total consideration of
RMB 124,700, including RMB 105,995 payable to HEC Pharm and RMB8,705 payable to Yidu
HEC Industrial. Please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 14 December

2018 for further details.

CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in this Annual Report, at no time during the year of 2018 had the Company or any
of its subsidiaries entered into any contract of significance with the Controlling Shareholder or any
of its subsidiaries, nor had any contract of significance been entered into for the services provided

by the Controlling Shareholder or any of its subsidiaries to the Company or any of its subsidiaries.

RETIREMENT AND EMPLOYEE BENEFITS SCHEME
Please refer to the Note 5(b) to the Consolidated Financial Statements for detailed information on

the retirement and employee benefits scheme.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE
As a company listed on the Stock Exchange, the Company always strives to maintain a high level of
corporate governance and had complied with all the code provisions of the Corporate Governance

Code as set out in Appendix |4 of the Listing Rules for the year ended 31 December 2018.

PUBLIC FLOAT
Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and to the knowledge of the
Directors, the Company has maintained a public float of no less than 25% of the issued shares as at

the date of this Annual Report, which was in line with the requirement under the Listing Rules.
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USE OF PROCEEDS
Proceeds from the Global Offering
According to the final results of the Global Offering, the net proceeds raised from the Global

Offering are approximately HK$1,307.5 million (approximately RMB1,095.4 million).

In view of the relatively low interests rate on deposits and in order to enhance the efficiency of
use of the net proceeds from the Global Offering and avoid exchange loss, based on the latest
construction budget for the new oral formulation production plant and new insulin production
plant, the Board resolved on 22 December 2017 to reallocate the unutilised net proceeds originally
allocated to (i) new oral formulation production plant and (ii) promotional and marketing activities
of approximately RMB701.4 million for (i) the new insulin production plant and (i) working capital
and general corporate purposes, including the payment of the patent royalties in connection with

oseltamivir phosphate and cash dividends to the Shareholders.

As at 31 December 2018, details of utilization of the net proceeds raised from the Global Offering

are as follows:
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Proceeds from H Share Convertible Bonds

On 14 August 2018, the Company entered into a subscription agreement the (“Subscription
Agreement'’) with certain entities ultimately controlled by The Blackstone Group L.P. (the “Blackstone
Fund SPVs"), pursuant to which, the Blackstone Fund SPVs have conditionally agreed to subscribe
for, and the Company has conditionally agreed to issue, the H share convertible bonds with an

aggregate principal amount of US$400,000,000 (the “H Share Convertible Bonds").

The H Share Convertible Bonds, which bear interest at the rate of 3.0% per annum and may be
converted into 82,631,578 conversion shares at the initial conversion price of HK$38 per share
(assuming full conversion of the H Share Convertible Bonds), representing approximately 18.28%
of the existing issued share capital of the Company as at the date of this Annual Report and
approximately 15.46% of the total issued share capital as enlarged by the issue of the conversion

shares.

The proceeds from the issue of the H Share Convertible Bonds are intended to be used for
the purposes of the acquisition of drugs and other pharmaceutical products (including active
pharmaceutical ingredients), capital expenditure on production facilities, expansion of sales and

distribution networks and other purposes subject to the prior written consent of the subscriber.

The proposed issue of H Share Convertible Bonds represents an excellent opportunity for the
Company to embrace market opportunities and enhance its market positions in the pharmaceutical
industry. At the same time, the Group plans to tap this opportunity to introduce Blackstone
as a long-term strategic investor to help the Company carry out drug acquisitions, advance its
development strategy, operation and management, strengthen international cooperation, and

improve corporate governance and investor relations.

On 20 February 2019, all conditions precedent under the Subscription Agreement had been fulfilled.
The completion of the H Share Convertible Bonds took place on 20 February 2019. The Company
has received the net proceeds from the issue of the H Share Convertible Bonds, after deduction
of expenses payable in connection with the Proposed Issue, of approximately US$398 million. The
Company intends to allocate the net proceeds from the issue of the H Share Convertible Bonds in
the following manner: (i) 60% to 70% on the acquisition of drugs and other pharmaceutical products
(including active pharmaceutical ingredients), (i) 20% to 30% on capital expenditure on production
facilities, (iii) 10% to 20% on expansion of sales and distribution networks and other purposes
subject to the prior written consent of the Subscriber, respectively. As at the date of this annual
report, the net proceeds from H Share Convertible Bonds has not been utilized. No exercise of
conversion rights under the H Share Convertible Bonds were issued by the Company as at the date

of the annual report.

Details of the H Share Convertible Bonds were disclosed in the announcements of the Company
dated 14 August 2018, 15 October 2018 and 20 February 2019 and the circular of the Company
dated | | September 2018.
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SIGNIFICANT LEGAL PROCEEDINGS
For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Company was not engaged in any litigation or
arbitration of material importance and no litigation or claim of material importance is known to the

Directors to be pending or threatened against the Company.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Company includes two independent non-executive directors, namely
Mr. Tang Jianxin and Mr. Lee Chi Ming and one non-executive director, namely Mr. Tang Xinfa. With
professional qualification and experience in finance, Mr. Tang Jianxin was appointed as the chairman
of the audit committee. The primary duties of the audit committee are to make independent
recommendations on the effectiveness of our financial reporting procedures, internal control and
risk management systems and maintaining good relationship with external auditors of the Group, so as
to assist the Board, supervise the audit process and perform other responsibilities and related duties
assigned by the Board. The audit committee will meet with the external auditors of the Company
and in-house auditors, and review their plans, internal audit procedures, their results of audits and

review of the risk management and internal supervision system.

The audit committee of the Company has reviewed the Group's 2018 annual results announcement,
the Annual Report and the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2018

prepared in accordance with the IFRS.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Company is committed to the sustainable development of the environment and the society.
In recognition of the potential climate impact due to manufacturing of pharmaceutical products,
the Company strives to enhance the environmental performance of its pharmaceutical products
manufacturing and development through eco-friendly operational measures as well as supporting
a number of external charters with regard to energy efficiency and carbon reduction. In addition,
during the Reporting Period, the Group had continually increased investment in research and
development, upgrading its technology, improved production process, focused on the establishment
of drug quality system, extended the life cycle of pharmaceutical products and lowered the cost in
order to offer safe, efficient, affordable pharmaceutical products and services. The Group constantly
strengthened environment protection, optimized the production process and improved the
utilization rate of the production facilities for the purposes of energy saving, emission reduction and
environment protection. The Group emphasized harmonious development with nature to protect
the sustainable development of the environment. The Group also improved clean production as
well as environmental protection construction, and proactively supported environmental protection

and charitable matters in the community.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group recognises the importance of compliance with regulatory requirements and the risk of
non-compliance with such requirements could lead to the termination of operating licences. The
Group has been allocating system and staff resources to ensure ongoing compliance with rules and
regulations and to maintain cordial working relationships with regulators effectively through effective
communications. During the year of 2018, the Group has complied, to the best of our knowledge,
with all relevant rules and regulations that have a significant impact on the Company, including but
not limited to the Company Law of the PRC, the Securities Law of the PRC, the Code of Corporate
Governance for Listed Companies, the Listing Rules, the Law of the PRC on the Administration
of Drugs, the Measures for the Administration of Drug Registration and the Good Manufacture

Practice of Drugs.

RELATIONSHIP WITH STAKEHOLDERS

The Company recognizes that our employees, customers and business associates are keys to our
sustainable journey. We strive to achieve corporate sustainability through engaging our employees,
providing quality services for our customers, collaborating with business partners and supporting our

community.
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The Company places significant emphasis on human capital. The Company provides a fair workplace,
promoting non-discrimination and diversity to our staff, together with competitive remuneration
and benefits, as well as a range of opportunities for career advancement based on employees’
merits and performance. The Company administers its employee health and safety management
system and ensures the adoption of the principles across the Group. The Company provides regular
trainings for staff to keep them abreast of the latest developments in the market and industry, in the

form of both internal trainings and trainings provided by experts from external organizations.

To enhance customer satisfaction and promote a customer-oriented culture within the Company,
we take ‘Customer First’ as one of our core values. We value the feedback from customers through
daily communication, regular inspections and etc. We have also established the mechanism about
customer service, support and complaints. When dealing with a customer complaint, we treat it as
an opportunity to improve our relationship with the customer, addressing the concern in a timely

manner and in accordance with international standards.

We believe that our suppliers are equally important in driving quality delivery of our products. We
proactively collaborate with our business partners (including suppliers and contractors) to deliver
quality sustainable products and services. We have included certain requirements in our standard
tender documents. These requirements include regulatory compliance, labour practices, anti-
corruption and other business ethics. We assure the performance of our suppliers through supplier
approval process and by conducting factory audits/site visits and spot checks on the delivered goods

at site during the contractual periods.

AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year ended 3| December 2018 have
been audited by KPMG who retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment at the
AGM. A resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG as the Company’s auditors will be proposed
for shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming AGM. The Company did not change the auditor for

the past four years.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY MBRE
Summary of results of operation and the assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five financial ~ AEEBERAEAMBREENKELELE  EENAG

years is set out on page 3 in the Annual Report. BESFINARFHRNER ©

On behalf of the Board REESES

YiChang HEC ChangJiang Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. HERBARIEZROGERAA
TANG Xinfa s

Chairman EHE

Hubei, the PRC T E#E

22 March 2019 —T-AF=ZA-+-H




REPORT OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

In 2018, all members of the Board of Supervisors complied with the requirement of the Company
Law of the PRC, the Articles of Association, as well as relevant regulations to diligently and honestly
perform their duties. They independently exercised their power under the law to ensure the
standard operation of the Company and protect the interests of the Company and the investors.
The Board of Supervisors supervised the Company's operation plans, use of proceeds from financing
activities, connected transactions, production and operation activities of the Company, financial
position and performance of duty of Directors and senior management of the Company as well as
the operation of subsidiaries, and facilitated the compliant operation and healthy development of

the Company. The report of main works of the Board of Supervisors for the year is set forth below:

I. BASIC ASSESSMENT OF THE COMPANY’S OPERATION AND
MANAGEMENT ACTIVITIES AND PERFORMANCE IN 2018

In 2018, the Board of Supervisors strictly complied with the requirement of the Company
Law of the PRC, the Articles of Association, the Rules of the Procedures of the Board of
Supervisors as well as relevant laws and regulations to honestly perform its supervise duties
in pragmatically protecting the interests and rights of the Company and the many minority

Shareholders.

After having attended each of the meetings of the Board of Directors and the Shareholders’
general meetings in 2018, the Board of Supervisors is of the opinion that the Board of
Directors has eamestly implemented resolutions of the Shareholders’ general meetings and
faithfully performed fiduciary duties, it has not conducted any acts which would damage the
interests of the Company and the Shareholders. Each resolution of the Board of Directors
has been in compliance with the requirement of the Company Law of the PRC and other
laws and regulations as well as the Articles of Association. The Board of Supervisors
supervised the production and operation activities of the Company during its session period.
[t considers that the management members of Company earnestly implemented every
resolutions of the Board with due diligence and conducted no acts of violation in the course

of business.
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DETAILS OF MEETINGS OF BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

During the Reporting Period, the Board of Supervisors held three meetings in aggregate:

M

@

On 23 March 2018, the first meeting of 2018 of Board of Supervisors was convened
and approved the resolutions in relation to Work Report of Board of Supervisors
for 2017, 2017 Final Accounts Report of the Company, The Plan Regarding
Dividend Distribution for 2017 and The Proposal Regarding Continuing Connected

Transactions for 2017 were considered and approved.

On 10 April 2018, the second meeting of 2018 of Board of Supervisors was
convened and approved the resolution in relation to The Proposal Regarding
Change of session of the Board of Supervisors of the Company was considered and

approved.

On 24 August 2018, the third meeting of 2018 of Board of Supervisors was convened
and approved the resolution in relation to the interim results announcement for the
six months ended 30 June 2018, Interim Report for the six months ended 30 June

2018 and declaring the interim dividend.

THE SUPERVISORY OPINION FROM THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS ON
RELATED MATTERS OF THE COMPANY IN 2018

m

Financial Conditions of the Company

The Board of Supervisors conducted inspection with regard to the financial
conditions of the Company’s own segment and its subsidiaries after having taken
into account the actual situation of the Company in ways of hearing reports from
financial department and regular auditing and other methods, thus strengthening the
supervision over the Company's financial affairs. The Board of Supervisors of the
Company is of the view that the Company and each of its subsidiaries have established
their own independent financial departments with separate financial books and have
conducted auditing independently, and that they have complied with Accounting Law
of the PRC as well as relevant financial regulations and rules. In 2018, the financial
management of the Company and each of its subsidiaries was carried out on a
standard basis and the accounting statements gave a true and accurate picture of the

actual situation of the Company and each of its subsidiaries.
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Details of Connected Transactions

During the Reporting Period, the ordinary connected transactions between the
Company and its connected persons have all been considered and approved on the
meetings of the Board of Directors or Shareholders’ general meetings (if applicable)
of the Company. The connected transactions were carried out in accordance with
contracts or agreements in arm’s length with no damages to the interests of the

Company.

4. COMPREHENSIVE OPINION FROM BOARD OF SUPERVISORS ON THE

COMPANY’S SITUATION IN 2018

M

@

©)

During the Reporting Period, members of Board of Supervisors earnestly performed
duties and supervised the Board of Director’'s performance of duties and its
implementations of the Company’s decision procedures by attending meetings of the
Board of Directors. The Board of Supervisors is of the view that each resolution and
decision procedure has been arrived by the Board of Directors in due compliance of
the requirements of the Company Law of the PRC, the Articles of Association and
the Rules of the Procedures of the Meetings of the Board of Directors and are legal

and effective.

During the Reporting Period, the senior management members of the Company
fulfilled their duties in accordance with the Articles of Association and relevant laws
and regulations of China. With aims to protect the interests of the Company and
its Shareholders, they earnestly implemented the resolutions of the Shareholder’s
general meetings of the Company, fulfilled obligations of fiduciary and due diligence so
as to facilitate the Company to carry out a standard operation, democratic decision,
management science, clear targeting and continuing innovation, having achieved

favorable economic benefits without acts of violation.

The Board of Supervisors has honestly reviewed the financial reports for 2018 and
other relevant information. It considers that such reports give an objective view of
the Company's financial conditions and operating results. The operating results of the

Company for 2018 are true and accurate and the control over cost is effective.
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(4)  Opinion Regarding the Company's Self-Appraisal on its Internal Control

The Company has, taking into account of the Company’s actual situation, established
and developed an internal control system that covers all areas of the Company
according to the relevant requirements of the Listing Rules, Company Law of the PRC
and Articles of Association. Such system has ensured that the Company’s operating
activities are in a normal and ordinary course and has safeguarded the security and
integrity of the Company's assets. The institutional framework of the internal control
of the Company is complete and the internal auditing department and personnel
allocation are in place, which has ensured that the implementation of and supervision
over key activities under the Company's internal control are sufficient and effective. In
2018, no circumstances under which the Company would violate the Guidelines for
Internal Control of Listed Companies and the internal control system of the Company
occurred. The Board of Supervisors considers that the Company's self-appraisal on its

internal control gives a comprehensive and true picture of the actual situation of the

internal control of the Company.

Chairman of the Board of Supervisors
HUANG Fangfang
Hubei, the PRC

22 March 2019
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Board is pleased to present this corporate governance report.

The Group strive to maintain high standards of corporate governance to enhance Shareholders’
value and safeguard Shareholders’ interests. The Company’s corporate governance principles
emphasize the importance of a quality Board, effective internal controls and accountability to

Shareholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICE
The Company had complied with all the code provisions as set out in Appendix |4 of the Listing

Rules during the year ended 3| December 2018.

The Company will review its corporate governance practices regularly to ensure its compliance with

the corporate governance code.

COMPLIANCE WITH MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS
The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its

code regarding Directors’ and Supervisors' dealings in the Company's securities (the “Model Code”).

The Company has made specific enquiry to all of the Directors and Supervisors and all of the
Directors and Supervisors have confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code for the

year ended 31 December 2018.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Board composition

The Board is responsible for overseeing the Group's strategic development, and determining the
objectives, business strategies and policies of the Group. The Board also monitors and controls

operating and financial performance in pursuit of the Group's strategic objectives.

At the 2017 annual general meeting of the Company held on 8 June 2018, Mr. JIANG Juncai, Mr.
WANG Danjin, Mr. CHEN Yangui, Mr. ZHU Qiaohong and Mr. LI Shuang were re-elected or
elected (as the case may be) as executive Directors of the second session of the Board, Mr. TANG
Xinfa was re-elected as the non-executive Director of the second session of the Board and Mr.
TANG Jianxin, Mr. FU Hailiang and Mr. LEE Chi Ming were re-elected as the independent non-
executive Directors of the second session of the Board. The Directors of the second session of the
Board will serve for a term of three years. Mr. ZHU Qiaohong resigned as a non-executive Director
and Mr. Eddy HUANG was appointed as a non-executive Director on 20 February 2019. The term
of office of Mr. Eddy HUANG commenced on 20 February 2019 and shall end at the expiry of
the second session of the Board. The Board currently consists of nine Directors, comprising four
executive Directors, two non-executive Directors and three independent non-executive Directors.
The Directors who held office during the year ended 31 December 2018 and up to the date of this

Annual Report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. JIANG Juncai

Mr. WANG Danjin

Mr. CHEN Yangui

Mr. ZHU Qiaohong (resigned on 20 February 2019)
Mr. LI Shuang (appointed on 8 June 2018)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. TANG Xinfa (Chairman)

Mr. MO Kit (retired on 8 June 2018)

Mr. Eddy HUANG (appointed on 20 February 2019)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. TANG Jianxin

Mr. FU Hailiang

Mr. LEE Chi Ming

The Directors have no financial, business, family or other material/relevant relationships with each

other.

The biographies of the Directors are set out in the section headed "Profiles of Directors,

Supervisors and Senior Management” of this Annual Report.
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Each of the Directors (including non-executive Directors but except Mr. Eddy HUANG) has
entered into a service contract with the Company. The principal particulars of these service
contracts are: (a) each of the contracts is for a term of three years commencing from 8 June
2018 (being the date of their appointments approved by the 2017 annual general meeting of the
Company) until the expiration of the second session of the Board; and (b) each of the contracts
is subject to termination in accordance with their respective terms. The service contracts may be

renewed in accordance with the Articles of Association and the applicable rules.

Mr. Eddy HUANG has entered into a service contract with the Company. His term of office as a
non-executive Director commenced on 20 February 2019 and shall end at the expiry of term of the

second session of the Board.

As at the date of this Annual Report, the Board at all times complied with the requirements of the
Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three independent non-executive Directors with
at least one independent non-executive Director possessing appropriate professional qualifications

or accounting or related financial management expertise.

The Company has received written confirmation from each of the independent non-executive
Director of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers
all independent non-executive Directors to be independent in accordance with the independence

guidelines as set out in the Listing Rules.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE BOARD

The Articles of Association states the functions and powers of the Board, including:

. To convene the general meetings, submit relevant matters to the general meetings for

passing, and report on its work to the Shareholders;

. To implement the resolution of the general meeting;

. To decide on the business plans and investment schemes of the Company;

. To formulate the Company's proposed annual financial budget and final accounts;

. To formulate the Company'’s profit distribution plan and plan for making up for losses;

. To formulate proposals for the increase or reduction of the Company’s registered capital,

and plans for the issue of corporate bonds or other securities and the listing plan;
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To draw up plans for material assets acquisition or disposal, purchase of the Company's

Shares, or merger, demerger, dissolution or change of the form of the Company;

To decide on the establishment of the Company's internal management organization;

To appoint or remove the Company's general manager and secretary of the Board; to

appoint or remove other senior management officers pursuant to the general manager's

nominations, and to determine the abovementioned matters relating to the remuneration,

incentives and punishments of the senior management officers;

To formulate the Company’s basic management system;

To formulate proposals for any amendment to the Articles of Association;

To decide on the matters such as merger, division, reorganization or dissolution of the

Company's wholly-owned subsidiaries and subsidiaries;

To change the use of the placement to the extent beyond the decision of the general

meeting as required by laws and regulations;

To decide on the establishment of special committees under the Board and to appoint or

remove its person-in-charge;

To propose at the general meetings a resolution in respect of candidates for independent

Directors and replacement of independent Directors;

To propose at the general meetings for the appointment, renewal or remove of accountants’

firm conducting auditing for the Company;

To hear the work report and inspect the work of the general manager;

To manage information disclosure of the Company;

To formulate the equity incentive plan;
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. Save as otherwise required to be decided by the general meetings under laws and
regulations and the Articles of Association, the Board exercises its power to make decisions
on external investments (including capital increase and equity transfer of the invested

enterprises), financing, risk management and trust management, external guarantees, etc;

. To decide on other major affairs of the Company, save for matters to be resolved at the

general meetings as required by the PRC Company Law and the Articles of Association;

. To exercise other functions and powers as granted by the Articles of Association or the

general meetings of the Company; and

. To conduct other matters as required by PRC laws and regulations.

In addition, the Board undertakes corporate governance function, including:

. To establish and review the Company’s corporate governance policies and codes;

. To review and supervise the training and sustained professional development of the

Company's Directors, Supervisors and senior management officers;

. To review and supervise the Company's policies and codes in connection with compliance

with laws and regulatory requirements;

. To establish, review and supervise the codes of conduct and compliance handbook (if any)

applicable to Directors and employees;

. To review the Company's compliance with the Code on Corporate Governance Practices

and the disclosures made in the Corporate Governance Report.

The Board had reviewed the Company's corporate governance policies and codes; the training
and sustained professional development of the Company's Directors, Supervisors and senior
management officers and the policies and codes in connection with compliance with laws and
regulatory requirements. Also, the Board had reviewed the Company’s compliance with the Code
on Corporate Governance Practices and the disclosures made in the Corporate Governance

Report.
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The Group’s management team, which possesses extensive operating experience and industry
knowledge, has been delegated by the Board with the authority and responsibility for the day-to-
day management of the Group. During the year, the Board considered and approved the annual
budget and its performance under management supervision together with the business reports from
the management. The Board also reviewed and approved the annual results for the year ended
31 December 2018, the interim results for the six months ended 30 June 2018 and other critical
business operations. The Board also assessed the internal control and the financial matters of the

Group.

In addition, this Corporate Governance Report has been reviewed by the Board in discharge of its

corporate governance function.

OPERATION OF THE BOARD
Meetings of the Board of Directors shall be held at least 4 times each year. Such meetings shall be

convened by the Chairman of the Board.

In case of any of the followings, the Chairman of the Board shall convene an interim meeting of the

Board of Directors within 10 days:

. When proposed by Shareholders representing one tenth of voting rights or more;
. When proposed by one third of Directors or more;

. When the Chairman of the Board deems it necessary;

. When proposed by two or more independent Directors;

. When proposed by the Board of Supervisors; or

. When the general manager proposes the convening of the interim meetings of the Board of
Directors.
86 YICHANG HEC CHANGJIANG PHARMACEUTICAL CO., LTD.
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To convene a regular or interim meeting of the Board of Directors, a written notice shall be sent
to all Directors and Supervisors |4 days prior to the date of a regular meeting or 3 days prior to
an interim meeting. By written consent of all Directors present at the meeting, the above time limit
may not be observed. The office or other department designated by the Board of Directors is
responsible for serving the written meeting notice to all Directors and Supervisors by direct service,
fax, e-mail or other means. If an interim meeting of the Board of Directors needs to be held quickly
due to urgent circumstances, a meeting notice may be given at any time by telephone or other oral

methods, provided that the convener makes an explanation thereof at the meeting.

Meetings of the Board of Directors may be held only if more than one half of the Directors are
present. Each Director shall have one vote. Unless specified otherwise in the laws, administrative
regulations or the Articles of Association, resolutions of the Board must be passed by more than

half of all the Directors.

Directors shall not vote the resolution on the approval of contract, arrangement or other
suggestions that they or their associates maintain interests inside (which shall not be included in the
quorum of the relevant meetings). Even though such Directors claim to vote, the votes will not be
counted, unless otherwise specified in laws, administrative regulations, relevant regulatory regulations

or rules.
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In 2018, the Board held |2 meetings and the attendance records of Directors at the Board meetings

were as follows:

Name of Directors:

RIZ-N\F BZQDETNREHE BFHE
EEggRREMRENT

Meeting attended/

Number of Board meetings convened

HEER CHESESEAY

EEpE:

Mr. TANG Xinfa BRI
Mr. ZHU Qiachong® RITH A
Mr. JIANG Juncai BTkt
Mr. WANG Danjin FrHEEAE
Mr. CHEN Yangui PRI e A
Mr. MO Kit( ERFEO
Mr. TANG Jianxin BEF kA
Mr. FU Hailiang gk
Mr. LEE Chi Ming ZEREE
Mr. LI Shuang® FHTEO

Notes():  Mr. MO Kit retired as a non-executive director of the Company with effect from 8 June 2018.

@: Mr. LI Shuang was appointed as an executive director of the Company with effect from 8 June 2018.

®: Mr. ZHU Qiaohong resigned as an executive director of the Company with effect from 20 February
2019.

NOMINATION, APPOINTMENT AND REMOVAL OF DIRECTOR

The Company has formulated a formal and transparent procedure for the appointment of new
Directors to the Board. Nomination of new Director is first considered by the Nomination
Committee and the Remuneration and Evaluation Committee and then recommended to the Board
for consideration. All newly nominated Directors are subject to the approval of the Shareholders
at the general meetings of the Company. Removal of members of the Board are also subject to the

approval of the Shareholders at the Company's general meetings.

DIRECTOR’S TRAINING

The Directors are continually updated on the statutory and regulatory regime and the business
environment to facilitate the discharge of their responsibilities. Continuing briefing and professional
development for Directors will be arranged by the Company where necessary. Individual Directors
also participated in the courses relating to the roles, functions and duties of a listed company
director or further enhancement of their professional development by way of attending training

courses or via online aids or reading relevant materials.

12/12
12/12
12/12
12/12
12/12

2/12
12/12
12/12
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10/12
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The Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional development to develop
and refresh their knowledge and skills. This is to ensure that they could make contribution to the
Board based on their possessing of comprehensive professional attainment. In 2018, all Directors
have participated in continuous professional development and provided to the Company a record

of training they received.

The list below summaries the training received by the Directors for the year ended 31 December

2018:
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Attending seminar, conference and
workshop related to director’s duties/
reading materials like newspaper,
journals and updates relevant

to corporate governance

HERESHEAEOTNS -

EERARE

Name of Directors BIEER  HlansRa
BEEgS AREEEAREEETEN
Mr. TANG Xinfa EREE v

Mr. ZHU Qiaohong® RITHFLES Vv

Mr. CHEN Yangui PRFEEE A vV

Mr. JIANG Juncai Bkt v

Mr. MO Kit() EARFKEN Vv

Mr. WANG Danjin TEeE v

Mr. TANG Jianxin R v

Mr. FU Hailiang HE=EE v

Mr. LEE Chi Ming ERRSE A Vv

Mr. LI Shuang® L Vv

Notes(: Mr. MO Kit retired as a non-executive director of the Company with effect from 8 June 2018.

@: Mr. LI Shuang was appointed as an executive director of the Company with effect from 8 June 2018.

@ Mr. ZHU Qiaohong resigned as an executive director of the Company with effect from 20 February
2019.

2O ERFEER T N\FRANBRERRFZENR
TE=-

@ FREER-Z-NFRANBEZERERAFH
TES -

O RGRAEEER T -NAF-_AZ+HEHEERQF]
HITES -
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CHAIRMAN AND GENERAL MANAGER

The roles and duties of the Chairman of the Board and the general manager of the Company are

separate and held by different persons and have been clearly defined in the Articles of Association.

Mr. TANG Xinfa and Mr. JIANG Juncai act as the Chairman of the Board and the general manager

of the Company respectively.

The Chairman of the Board, Mr. TANG Xinfa, a non-executive Director is entitled to exercise the

following functions and powers:

90

To preside over Shareholder’s general meetings, to convene and preside over meetings of

the Board of Directors;

To procure and inspect the implementation of the resolutions of the Board of Directors;

To sign the share certificates, corporate bonds and other negotiable securities issued by the

Company;

To sign important documents of the Board of Directors and other documents to be signed
by the legal representative of the Company, and to exercise the functions and powers of the

legal representative;

To organize and establish various systems and harmonize the operation of the Board of

Directors;

To hear the regular or non-regular work reports of the senior management officers of the

Company, and give guidance on the implementation of the resolutions of the Board of

Directors;

To nominate the list of the secretary candidates of the Board of Directors; and

Other functions and powers conferred by the laws, regulations or the Articles of Association,

and the Board of Directors.

EERRAKE
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BARATEE - BRARSRARIE - FHE
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Mr. JIANG Juncai, an executive Director and general manager of the Company, is responsible to the ~ ANARIHITEEFRALIEBH A AN EESEE

Board of Directors and exercise the following functions and powers: RATE 51

. To be in charge of the production, operation and management of the Company, and report . FRARATNEELEETRTIE  WRES

to the Board of Directors; WETLE
. To organize and implement the resolutions of the Board of Directors, annual business plans HAHREREFERE  ARARFELETE
and investment schemes of the Company; MEETR

. To prepare the annual financial budget plan, and final account plan of the Company, and . BEIANRFENKEERR - REFER
make recommendations to the Board of Directors; YRESEgRbESE

. To prepare the basic management system and plan for establishment of the Company's ~ « RETARRMERE R EMA SRS

internal management organization; FEHE

. To formulate specific rules of the Company; . FIEANTABRE

. To request the Board of Directors to engage or dismiss other senior management officers; . REESTETHERBEMSREREA
and 8: Rk

. To engage or dismiss the responsible managers except those who shall be engaged or . BELERERERESSREIEREN

dismissed by the Board of Directors. SMNVBBEEEBASR
BOARD COMMITTEES EEEeZ5E
The Board had delegated certain responsibilities to various committees. The Company had EX B BREERTEZEEERE - XARIE

established three Board committees, being the Nomination Committee, Remuneration and RY=fAZE@ZE< - fELEE < - HFEE
©

Evaluation Committee and Audit Committee. ZZBEREZEE

Nomination Committee REZESR

The Company has established a Nomination Committee with written terms of reference in AR BB B _E AR BIFTEE |4FT 8 2B AT RIRK
compliance with the Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 4 to the Listing Rules. VREEZEE  WHTEEEMBESGE - B 18
Currently, the Nomination Committee consists of three members, namely Mr. LEE Chi Ming (an ~ ZZB@m =2 BHMK » BIZERELE OB IE
independent non-executive Director), Mr. Eddy HUANG (a non-executive Director) and Mr. FU  #1TE %) » A AGERITES ) MBS L
Hailiang (an independent non-executive Director), among whom Mr. LEE Chi Ming serves as the (B IFITESR) @ HPEERILEHTIREEZE

chairman of Nomination Committee. SWER °
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The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to review the composition of the Board, assess
the independence of independent non-executive Directors and make recommendations to the

Board on the appointment and removal of Directors.

In evaluating and selecting any candidate for directorship, the following criteria should be considered

by the Nomination Committee and/or the Board:
. Character and integrity.

. Qualifications including professional qualifications, skills, knowledge and experience and
diversity aspects under the board diversity policy of the Company that are relevant to the

Company's business and corporate strategy.

. Any measurable objectives adopted for achieving diversity on the Board.

. Whether the candidate would be considered independent with reference to the
independence guidelines set out in the Listing Rules for an independent non-executive

Director.

. Any potential contributions the candidate can bring to the Board in terms of qualifications,

skills, experience, independence and gender diversity.

. Willingness and ability to devote adequate time to discharge duties as a member of the

Board and/or Board committee(s) of the Company.

. Such other perspectives that are appropriate to the Company’s business and succession
plan and where applicable, may be adopted and/or amended by the Board and/or the
Nomination Committee from time to time for nomination of directors and succession

planning.

REZECNTERE AERES MK EAMK
A B FMITE SN B Y MUARREESREE
EMBERES -

R REREANBEESER  REZEER
HEESHEE THILER

« mREHE -
< B BREXAR - BRI AEEREAR
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« REFEFTEXEZITCMERM A
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The Company had adopted a board diversity policy to achieve the diversity of members of the
Board and maintain an appropriate balance of diversity perspectives of the Board that are relevant
to the Company's business growth. The Company recognizes and embraces the benefits of having a
diverse Board and sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an essential element in maintaining
the Company's competitive advantage. The Company believes that greater diversity of Directors is
good for corporate governance and is committed: (i) to attract and retain candidate(s) for Board
with a combination of competencies from the widest possible pool of available talent; (i) to maintain
a Board with diversity perspectives at all levels, in particular, those are aligning with the Company's
strategy and objectives; (iii) to assess regularly the diversity profile of the Board and the progress on
achieving diversity objectives, if any; (iv) to ensure that the selection and nomination of Directors
positions are appropriately structured so that a diverse range of candidates can be considered by
the Company; and (v) to ensure that changes to the Board's composition can be managed without

undue disruption.

The Nomination Committee will review annually the structure, size and composition of the
Board and where appropriate, make recommendations on changes to the Board to complement
the Company’s corporate strategy. In reviewing and assessing the Board composition and the
nomination of directors (as applicable), Board diversity has to be considered from a number of
aspects, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background, professional

qualifications and skills, knowledge and industry and regional experience.

The Nomination Committee will discuss and where necessary, agree on the measurable objectives
for achieving diversity on the Board and make recommendation to the Board. When determining
such measurable objectives, the Nomination Committee will consider a number of aspects, including
but not limited to, the diversity of the Board composition in aspects of gender, age, cultural and
educational background, professional experience, skills, knowledge and industry and regional

experience. The Nomination Committee will review the measurable objectives on a regular basis.
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ARE

The Nomination Committee will adopt the following procedures for appointment/re-election of

director:

(@) Appointment of New Director

(i

(V)

The Nomination Committee and/or the Board should, upon receipt of the proposal
on appointment of new director and the biographical information (or relevant details)
of the candidate, evaluate such candidate based on the criteria as set out above to

determine whether such candidate is qualified for directorship.

If the process yields one or more desirable candidates, the Nomination Committee
and/or the Board should rank them by order of preference based on the needs of

the Company and reference check of each candidate (where applicable).

The Nomination Committee should then recommend to the Board to appoint the

appropriate candidate for directorship, as applicable.

For any person that is nominated by a Shareholder for election as a Director at the
general meeting of the Company, the Nomination Committee and/or the Board
should evaluate such candidate based on the criteria as set out above to determine

whether such candidate is qualified for directorship.

Where appropriate, the Nomination Committee and/or the Board should make recommendation

to Shareholders in respect of the proposed election of Director at the general meeting.

(b) Re-election of Director at General Meeting

(i

94

The Nomination Committee and/or the Board should review the overall contribution
and service to the Company of the retiring Director and the level of participation and

performance on the Board.

The Nomination Committee and/or the Board should also review and determine

whether the retiring Director continues to meet the criteria as set out above.

The Nomination Committee and/or the Board should then make recommendation
to Shareholders in respect of the proposed re-election of Director at the general

meeting.

REZESRMUTERERE EENEF

() ZREHES
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The Nomination Committee adopted the following conditions on the nomination of Director

candidates:

The Director shall be elected or replaced by general meetings of the Company. When a general
meeting is held by the Company, the Board, the Board of Supervisors or Shareholders who
individually or in aggregate holding more than 3% of the Shares may propose resolutions to the

convener of the general meeting in relation to the election of Directors.

A candidate of Director must comply with the relevant qualification set out in the Company Law of
the PRC, the Articles of Association and other applicable laws and regulations. The Board shall have
a balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the requirements of the

Company's business.

The Nomination Committee adopted the following procedures on the nomination of Director

candidates:

Each Director candidate should be individually proposed. The intention to nominate a candidate as
Director and the written notice of such candidate regarding his willingness to accept the nomination
shall be given to the Company no later than seven days prior to the date scheduled for such general

meeting.

The details of the candidate of Director shall be fully disclosed by a proposal of election of Director,

which shall at least include the following:

(1) Personal information including but not limited to education background, work experience

and other appointments;

(2)  Whether there is any connected relationship between him/her and the Company or the

controlling shareholders and de facto controller of the Company;

(3)  The number of shares of the Company held by him/her; and

(4)  Whether subject to punishment by China Securities Regulatory Commission and other

relevant securities regulatory authorities and sanctions by the stock exchange.

Where an appointment of Director comes into effect upon the approval from the general meeting,

an announcement must be published in accordance with the relevant Listing Rules.

The Nomination Committee is entitled to propose its nomination of Director candidates to

the Board according to the Articles of Association, the terms of reference of the Nomination

Committee and other applicable laws and regulations.
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In 2018, the Nomination Committee held 3 meetings and had reviewed the structure, combination
and balance (including expertise, knowledge and experience (including board diversity)) of the
Board, discussed and proposed the candidates for the second session of the Board and the Board
of Supervisors, assessed the independence of independent non-executive Directors and reviewed
and approved the proposed appointment of Mr. Eddy HUANG as a new Director. The attendance

records of Directors at the Nomination Committee meeting were as follows:

Name of Directors

RZZF-N\F REZBECDHETIRAGRLER
NEEGNEE  EeREN(e ? FREE ~ AR
KR(EREFEZ L) IwEkERF_EE
EERERBANFE_EEFENEEEA - T
BYFATESNBEV ERERBEEZREWLE
RMEF - EFHFRAZBSEHABWREN
™

Meeting attended/

Number of Nomination Committee convened

E=pnsd HEER BHREZEETHRY
Mr. LEE Chi Ming FRERLE 3/3
Mr. ZHU Qiachong) SRIGHE A Ao 33
Mr. FU Hailiang (RNEERp A 3/3
Note:  Mr. ZHU Qiaohong resigned as an executive director of the Company and member of Nomination O RIREEERZZ-NF_AZTHEELRRF

Committee with effect from 20 February 2019.

In 2018, the Nomination Committee reviewed the composition of the Board in accordance with
the requirements as stipulated in the Corporate Governance Code and concluded that the Board
comprised members with diversified backgrounds and skills which ensured balance and safeguarded

the interests of Shareholders as well as the public.

The Nomination Committee had considered the diversification factors and reviewed the
professional qualifications, skills, knowledge and relevant experience in relation to the business and
strategy of the Company of Mr. JIANG Juncai, Mr. WANG Danjin, Mr. CHEN Yangui, Mr. ZHU
Qiaohong, Mr. LI Shuang, Mr. TANG Xinfa, Mr. TANG Jianxin, Mr. FU Hailiang and Mr. LEE Chi
Ming and considered that each of them have the balanced talent, experience and professional
knowledge appropriate to meet the business needs of the Company. Pursuant to the above, the
Nomination Committee has nominated the abovementioned persons to the Board for re-election
or election (as the case may be) at the 2017 annual general meeting of the Company held on 8

June 2018.
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Remuneration and Evaluation Committee

The Company had established a Remuneration and Evaluation Committee with written terms of
reference in compliance with Rule 3.25 of the Listing Rules and the Corporate Governance Code as
set out in Appendix |4 to the Listing Rules. The Remuneration and Evaluation Committee consists
of three members, namely Mr. FU Hailiang (an independent non-executive Director), Mr. JJANG
Juncai (an executive Director) and Mr. TANG Jianxin (an independent non-executive Director),

among whom Mr. FU Hailiang serves as the chairman of Remuneration and Evaluation Committee.

The primary duties of the Remuneration and Evaluation Committee are to advise on and formulate
the remuneration and evaluation policy in respect of Directors, senior management and other

managing members of the Group and make recommendations to the Board.

In 2018, the Remuneration and Evaluation Committee held 2 meetings, at which the resolutions
in relation to the remuneration of executive Directors and senior management of the Company
in 2017 and the remuneration policy for the executive Directors and senior management for
2018 were discussed and proposed. The attendance record of Directors at the Remuneration and

Evaluation Committee meeting was as follows:

Name of Directors

TEERWE

FMRELESS
ARREARE LW ARBE325 A & B R Bk 8
I4FTEN R EVATRIK I BN EZE & - I

THEERERE - Y EEEZE R =—FNE
MR - BB B IETES) - BI9A %

EITES) RERM LB IFTES)
PRESEEHEFMEERZRENEE -

H

FHEEREEENEIERER
WEBABREMERKERZER
BER - WRESERHEER -

SLAREESE -
11 E B LR

iz

R-_F-N\F FHEAERZEEERT2R
& BLAwmkERETEEREAB_TLFA
RAATEFLSRELRBHFHNORZRER-F
—N\ERTESRSREEENHMEE - EFH
FHMEEZR B ERRBREEMT

Meeting attended/Number of Remuneration and

Evaluation Committee convened

EEHS HEEER CHFNEEREEETRRY
Mr. FU Hailiang INpisEnyivtas 2/2
Mr. JIANG Juncai B4k AE 212
Mr. TANG Jianxin R4 22
In 2018, the Remuneration and Evaluation Committee assessed the performance of executve ~ RZT—\F « HFMLEZZE 2T ENTES
Directors, reviewed the remuneration policy, considered and approved the proposed 2019 RD - BAFEBCR - FRRIEZT-NFH

Director’s fees for executive Directors and made recommendation to the Board on the Directors’

fees for non-executive Directors.

Remuneration of Directors and senior management
The Company has established a formal and transparent procedure for formulating policies on
remuneration of senior management of the Group. Details of the remuneration of each of the

Directors for the year ended 3| December 2018 are set out in Note 7 to the Financial Statements.

TEFNEFRLEENNNEFSEAIFNTE
ENEEHE -

ESREREBABNTMH
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Remuneration paid to the senior management (excluding the Directors) by bands for the year

ended 31 December 2018 is set out below:

Remuneration bands (RMB)

TREIBE-T-NF+-_A=+—HILFER
EREAXNTEREBAS(TBRES)NH
A

Number of individuals

FHER(ARY) AE
Nil to 1,000,000 TEHE 3
Audit Committee BREESY

The Company had established an Audit Committee with written terms of reference in compliance
with Rule 321 of the Listing Rules and the Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix
I4 to the Listing Rules. The Audit Committee consists of three members, namely Mr. TANG
Jianxin (an independent non-executive Director), Mr. LEE Chi Ming (an independent non-executive
Director) and Mr. TANG Xinfa (a non-executive Director), among whom Mr. TANG Jianxin serves as

the chairman of Audit Committee.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to oversee the financial reporting system and
internal control procedures of the Company, review the financial information of the Company and

consider issues relating to the external auditors and their appointment.

The work performed by the Audit Committee in 2018 included review of the annual results of
the Company for the year ended 31 December 2017, interim results of the Company for the
six months ended 30 June 2018 and listen to the report of risk management and internal control
system of the Company by Internal Audit and Risk Department. The Audit Committee also
reviewed the adequacy and effectiveness of the risk management and internal control system and
making recommendation to the Board for improvement of internal control, credit control and risk

management.

In 2018, the Audit Committee held 2 meetings and the attendance records of Directors at the

Audit meeting were as follows:

AR F BRI TR RIS 321 6 SA B = #51 RIIB 8%
AP EEA TN BZEZEE  XHERLE
EREE - BREEem =Rk AN - BIER
MAECBYIFRITES)  TERRECELIEN
TER)REMEELECEATES) - EhEEN
TEHEEZZEENERE -

ERZBENTIEZRAREBEARTNBM KRR
FEAMEERRF - AR RANHBERARE
ZHEINIEE R A E AN EE -

ERZEER T\ FONTIERRBEMARFE
E-TEHFT AT -RLEFENFEEE -
ARRBE-Z—\FRA=ZTHINEANTH
FERERRIEZLERISPIEARDRNRRE
BERAMEZERSNSRE - ERZE TR AR
ERRATENRRRBRRAY  ARBBER
MEE - FEEGIREREENEFSREES

R-T-N\F FEZZBECETIRER BF
HEBZZE e ABMRENT

Meeting attended/
Number of Audit Committee convened

HEEHE CHEXESEEEAY

Directors

BEEpE

Mr. TANG Jianxin BEF kA
Mr. LEE Chi Ming TERSLE
Mr. TANG Xinfa ERTE L

98

212
212
212

YICHANG HEC CHANGJIANG PHARMACEUTICAL CO., LTD. EERBE X RIEEZRHBERA R



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Audit Committee also reviewed and discussed the auditor's remuneration for 2018 and

recommended the Board to re-appoint KPMG as the Company’s auditor for the year of 2018.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the Consolidated Financial Statements
of the Company for the year ended 3| December 2018. The Directors consider that the Group
has adequate resources to continue in business for the foreseeable future and are not aware of
material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going

concemn.

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and understandable assessment of annual
and interim reports, inside information announcements and other disclosures required under the

Listing Rules and other statutory and regulatory requirements.

The management has provided to the Board such explanation and information as are necessary to
enable the Board to carry out an informed assessment of the Company's Consolidated Financial

Statements, which are put to the Board for approval.

INTERNAL CONTROLS AND RISK MANAGEMENT

It is the responsibility of the Board of Directors to ensure that the Company maintains sound and
effective internal controls to safeguard the Shareholders’ investment and the Group's assets at all
times. In preparation for the Listing, we engaged an internal control consultant to perform certain
procedures in May 2015 in respect of assessing our internal control. Upon completion of such
procedures, the internal control consultant provided us with a number of assessment results and
the relevant recommendations, which we have adopted in full. In particular, we have adopted a
series of internal control policies, procedures and programmes designed to achieve effective and
efficient operations, reliable financial reporting and compliance with applicable laws and regulations.

Highlights of our internal control system include the following:

. Internal Audit. We put in place the internal audit charter that clearly states the objectives,
organisation, functions and responsibilities, working scope and procedures of our internal
audit functions. We established an internal audit department that is responsible for internal
auditing and execution of antibribery measures in accordance with the internal audit charter.

The internal audit department reports to our senior management and the Audit Committee.
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Risk Management. The Company has set up procedures in respect of risk management to
meet internal control targets. The Company, on the basis of the target setting, identifies
the risks in the process of intemal control through daily and regular assessment procedures
and methods, classifies the risks and prepares the Company’s risk list, continually conducts
risk analysis, tracks the constantly changing business environment and business activities
and carries out dynamic assessments. As the responsible unit of risk monitoring, each
department of the Company establishes a risk monitoring index system to conduct daily
risk monitoring of the unit, especially the key indicators of major risks. For the identified
risks, each department of the Company will formulate plans and measures to response
risks. Each department is responsible for the implement of the risk corresponding plans. The
department of internal control management monitors the results of the risk corresponding
measures, forms risk response evaluation reports. In addition, the department of internal
control management regularly summarizes, analyses and evaluates the risk response situation
of the Company as a whole, compiles a report on the implementation of the Company's risk

response and reports to the general manager's office.

Internal Control Defects and Self-Appraisal. The Company adopts qualitative and quantitative
methods to establish standards for defect identification. The Company's auditing
department undertakes the responsibility to track and review the implementation of the
defects rectification found in the supervision and evaluation, as well as the implementation
of the management recommendations and internal control inspection rectification
recommendations made by the external auditors. The Company’s auditing department
is entitled to supervise and direct the rectification scheme, verify the effectiveness and
appropriateness of the control measures, make recommendations for improvement and
requests relevant departments to make necessary adjustments to the rectification measures
to ensure the realization of risk control targets. The management of the Company authorizes
relevant departments to investigate and analyze the internal control defects identified during
the supervision process by the external regulatory and internal and external auditors and
carry out corresponding rectification measures and reviews the implementation of each such
measure. The Company's self-appraisal is a form of realization of internal supervision and a
process of comprehensive evaluation on the effectiveness of internal control and issuance of

self-appraisal reports on a regular basis.
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. Listing Rules Compliance. We have adopted various policies to ensure compliance with the
Listing Rules, including but not limited to aspects related to corporate governance, connected
transactions, notifiable transactions, inside information and securities transactions by the
Directors. We have designated staff to monitor our compliance with Listing Rules and other
applicable laws and regulations who have the power to investigate relevant incidents if any

and communicate with the related authorities or advisers.

. Code of Conduct. Our code of conduct explicitly communicates to each employee our values,
acceptable criteria for decision-making and our ground rules for behaviour. Our code of
conduct also includes whistle-blowing policies to encourage all employees to speak up against
any sub-standard behaviour. We also established an anti-money laundering management
group and a related working group that are responsible for monitoring and supervising the

implementation of our code of conduct and our anti-money laundering policies.

The Board has the overall responsibility for maintaining sound and effective risk management and
internal control systems for the Group to ensure that major risks that may impact on the Company's
performance are appropriately identified and managed to provide reasonable, though not absolute,
assurance against material misstatement or loss and to manage rather than eliminate the risk of

failure to achieve business objectives. These measures are regularly reviewed and updated.

The Board, on the basis of the target setting, identifies the risks in the process of internal control
through daily and regular assessment procedures and methods, classifies the risks and prepares the

Company's risk list.
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The Company understands its obligations under the SFO and the Listing Rules and the overriding
principle that inside information should be announced immediately after such information comes
to our attention and/or it is the subject of a decision unless it falls within the SFO safe harbours.
Meanwhile, the Company has set up an inside information management system, the insider internal
reporting obligations, reporting procedures and liability of disclosure of information of the personnel
concerned has been clearly stated, and the Company shall arrange self-examination in a timely
manner in accordance with the provisions of the relevant regulatory authorities. The real-time
monitoring performed by the Company may involve the inside information, and should organize
intermediary agencies to determine whether the information belongs to an inside information and
practical, if it has fulfilled the disclosure requirements, will soon organize the disclosure and will
strictly control the scope of the monitoring before the disclosure, the volatility of share price will be
monitored until the disclosure of inside information is completed; if the disclosure requirements are

not satisfied, the Company will also maintain strict confidentiality.

The main functions of the risk management and internal control systems are to safeguard assets, to
ensure proper maintenance of accounting records and provide reliable financial reporting, and to

ensure compliance with relevant legislation and regulations.

The Company will review the internal control and risk management twice a year. The Board has
reviewed the intemal control and risk management system for the year ended 3| December 2018

and confirmed its effectiveness and appropriateness.

The Company's internal audit function is performed by the Internal Audit and Risk Department.
It is responsible for conducting independent reviews of the appropriateness and effectiveness of
the Company's internal control and risk management system. It also assesses the risks inherent in
particular business or functional areas, including fraud or corruption, and conducts reviews or audits
to provide reasonable, though not absolute, assurance that adequate governance and controls are in

place to address such risks.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION BB AT &
The statement of the external auditor of the Company about its reporting responsibilities for the — ZN/2 RSN 1% ENAT A B8 H GLAR & B ISR R BAEH
Consolidated Financial Statements is set out in the “Independent Auditor's Report” on pages 108 to AR ETHRAHNE 1082 | I1I8E M B % EAD

8. B IR -
During the year ended 3| December 2018, the remuneration paid/payable to the Company's ~ERFHIBE - ZT—NF+_A=+—HILFE -
external auditor, KPMG, is set out below: SN T AR BN E S B A=
FTEIE B
Amount
RMB
KX
AR
Annual audit services FEEFEZRB 1,300,000
Non-audit services IEEZ RS 1,450,000
Total fees BREE 2,750,000
The non-audit services were interim review service and other services. AL IR B BRI B AR A S EL M AR A% ©
GENERAL MEETINGS BREAE

During the Reporting Period, the Company held an annual general meeting of 2017 on 8 June RIBEHR - ARTIR -—E—N\EXANBLETT
2018, an extraordinary general meeting on 30 August 2018 and an extraordinary general meeting, T ERBEEAE R -ZT— )\FENE=F
H Shareholders class meeting and Domestic Shareholders class meeting held on |5 October 2018, AEFEEREAS PR-Z—N\E+A+HRBSE
and the attendance records of the Directors at the general meetings were as follows: TR E A e « HIRAR AR @ R N AR E

AEHE  BERHRERRASNBERCSNT:

Meeting attended/

Name of Directors Number of general meetings convened
EEpE HEER BHERRAERE
Mr. TANG Xinfa EFEEL 3/3
Mr. ZHU Qiachong® RITHE A 33
Mr. JIANG Juncai B9 Ak 33
Mr. WANG Danjin FrEEEE 373
Mr. CHEN Yangui PRIEAE ST 33
Mr. MO Kit() ERFKLEO 13
Mr. TANG Jianxin Efeaipit 3/3
Mr. FU Hailiang (RNEERp 3/3
Mr. LEE Chi Ming FRERLE 3/3
Mr. LI Shuang® BRI EQ 2/3
Notes(: Mr. MO Kit retired as a non-executive director of the Company with effect from 8 June 2018. 0 EARAEEERZZE—N\ERNANBEREARREEH
TEE -
@: Mr. LI Shuang was appointed as an executive director of the Company with effect from 8 June 2018. @ FEREAN T N\EFENANBEZTERQFTHR
TEE -
®:; Mr. ZHU Qiaohong resigned as an executive director of the Company with effect from 20 February O RIGEEAPR _ZE—NF_A-+tHEEART
2019. BITES -

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 £ 103



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERER/|E

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTORS

The Company considers that effective communication with Shareholders is essential for enhancing
investor relations and investor understanding of the Group's business performance and strategies.
The Company also recognizes the importance of transparency and timely disclosure of corporate
information, which will enable Shareholders and investors to make the best investment decisions.
The general meetings of the Company provide a forum for face-to-face communication between

the Board and the Shareholders.

Shareholder rights
Right to propose to convene extraordinary general meeting
Pursuant to the Articles of Association, the Shareholders request for the convening of the

extraordinary general meeting or meeting of class Shareholders shall follow the procedure below:

Shareholders individually or jointly holding a total of 10% or more of the shares carrying the right
to vote at the meeting sought to be held may sign one or more written requests of identical form
and substance requesting the Board to convene an shareholders’ extraordinary general meeting or
a meeting of shareholders of different classes and state the subject of the meeting. The Board shall
convene a Shareholders’ extraordinary general meeting or a class meeting as soon as possible after
having received the above-mentioned written request. The shareholding referred to above shall be

calculated as of the day on which the written request is made.

If the Board fails to issue an announcement on the convening of meeting within 30 days after
receiving the above-mentioned written request, the proposing Shareholders are entitled to submit
a written request to the Board of Supervisors on the convening of Shareholders’ extraordinary

general meeting or meeting of the class Shareholders.

If the Board of Supervisors fails to issue an announcement on the convening of meeting within
30 days after receiving the above-mentioned written request, the Shareholders individually or
collectively representing 10% or more of the Company's voting Shares at the proposed meeting
for at least consecutive 90 days may convene the meeting on their own within four months after
the Board of Directors receives the request. The convening procedures shall be the same as the

procedures for the convening of Shareholders’ general meeting by the Board of Directors.
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Shareholders’ right to propose resolutions at the general meeting

Shareholder(s) individually or jointly holding 3% or more of the total voting shares of the Company
shall be entitled to propose an interim resolution and submit the same to the convener. The
convener shall issue a supplemental announcement of shareholders’ general meeting within 2 days
after the receipt of such proposal and submit such interim resolution to the shareholders’ general
meeting for consideration and approval. The contents of an interim resolution shall fall within
the authority of the shareholders’ general meeting and maintain topics for discussion and specific

matters to be resolved.

The Company sets out the following contact details for the Shareholders to communicate with the
Company:

Telephone number 86-0769-81768866
Company website www.hec-changjiang.com
E-mail address giumigi@hec.cn

penggiyun@hec.cn

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS
There had been no significant changes in the Articles of Association during the year ended 31
December 2018 and such Articles of Association are available on the HKExnews website of the

Stock Exchange and our website.

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. PENG Qiyun and Ms. NG Wing Shan act as joint company secretaries of the Company. For
the biography of Mr. Peng and Ms. Ng, please refer to the section headed "Profiles of Directors,

Supervisors and Senior Management” of this Annual Report.

Ms. Ng is an assistant vice president of SW Corporate Services Group (Hong Kong) Limited and her
primary corporate contact person at the Company is Mr. Peng, another joint company secretary. In
compliance with Rule 329 of the Listing Rules, each of Mr. Peng and Ms. Ng has undertaken no less

than |5 hours of relevant professional training during the year ended 31 December 2018.
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NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING

The Company had entered into a non-competition agreement on 6 December 2015 with HEC
Pharm, Linzhi HEC Pharmaceutical Investment Co., Ltd. (FRZ RIFHEEE IR EHR R 7)),
Dongguan HEC Industrial Development Co., Ltd. (REEM R IGH B EZER AR A 7)), Shenzhen
HEC Industrial, Ruyuan Yao Autonomous County Yuneng Electric Industrial Co., Ltd. (FL/R¥#E
BEREBEREEFEEARAT) Ruyuan Yao Autonomous County Xinjing Technology
Development Co,, Ltd. (FLIR¥ETE B/a BT R B RER AR A R]), Mr. ZHANG Zhongneng (5=
A 8E) and Ms. GUO Meilan (S[1E7). Please refer to page 68 of this Annual Report for details.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the Non-competition Agreement and had
determined that the Then Controlling Shareholders and their subsidiaries have not been in breach

of the Non-competition Undertaking during the year ended 31 December 2018.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board adopted the dividend policy on 14 December 2018, setting out the principles and
guidelines that the Company intends to apply in relation to the declaration, payment or distribution

of its net profits as dividends to the shareholders of the Company.

The Board adopt the policy that, in recommending the declaration of dividends, the Company shall
maintain adequate cash reserves for meeting its working capital requirements and future growth as

well as its Share value. The Company do not have any pre-determined dividend payout ratio.
The Board is responsible for submitting recommendations in respect of dividend payments, if any,

to the Shareholders’ general meeting for approval, subject to the Articles of the Association and all

applicable laws and regulations and the factors set out below.
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The Board shall also take into account the following factors of the Group when considering to

recommend the declaration and payment of dividends:

. Distributable profits;

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TEERWE

EEeLEREATRREN  EREZETIE
BAAKEMREE

. A IR A

. Financial condition; . BEFSAROS

. Cash flow; . WEME

. Expected future capital expenditure; . TEEARRERFZ

. Return to the Shareholders; . ARER B %R :

. Capital requirements; . BEARFEN

. Finance costs; . EATERA

. The external financing environment; and . INEPROEIRIE ¢ I

. any other factors that the Directors may deem relevant. . EETRERAHBANEMLESE -

Depending on the conditions and factors as set out above of the Company and the Group,  f8FARA G N AERH FilligFENEE  EE&0

dividends may be recommended by the Board for a financial year or period: FEBRF E K EEEREE IR NHIRRE

. interim dividend; . AR S

. final dividend; . FERE

. special dividend; and . FRIRE &

. any distribution of net profits that the Board may deem appropriate. . EEESRESBENDFDE -

Dividends shall be distributed by the Company to its Shareholders in proportion to their respective A% 2 AN A FIRIRIL R A &R H IR T HH HAR D
shareholdings according to the resolutions adopted at the Shareholders’ general meeting. The  LLIIRE - AR AR AE TSR ASBENEATIK
Company may declare and pay dividends by way of cash or scrip or by other means that the MIRMNARE - BERESFRERGOIEMPR - £
Board considers appropriate. Any dividend unclaimed shall be forfeited and shall be reverted to the  {a] RBELAI IR B UL K BIRIE A R ZEREHF A

Company in accordance with the Articles of Association. Ra] e
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Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of

YiChang HEC ChangJiang Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.
(Incorporated in the People’s Republic of China with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of YiChang HEC Changliang Pharmaceutical
Co,, Ltd. (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries (‘‘the Group”) set out on pages |19 to 221, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2018, the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended and notes to the

consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated
financial position of the Group as at 3| December 2018 and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs") issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (“IASB”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure

requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (‘*HKSAs") issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of
the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”)
together with any ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial
statements in the People’s Republic of China, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with these requirements and the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have

obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance
in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in

forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
18 M % BT 3R

BRERSER

RERMINEXRAL - BRECFTESEMATZA

HEa P BmiPREENEIE - RIEER

FAVBRENBRUTKRERFEELEER M
ERUFERERERER

Timing of revenue recognition

LON: A E

PR E IR TIRE 17| ) RETEHR

Refer to Note 3 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on page |71.

The Key Audit Matter
BEERER

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EERTHNERER %

Revenue of the Group mainly comprises sales of pharmaceutical products to
a large number of distributors.

BEEENEXBATIEBERZED HEHE ERNEA -

The Group enters into standard sales contracts with each distributor and
manufactures and sells its products in accordance with the terms agreed in
the sales contracts.
BEEERRDHBREERR]RE
R © SHE B o

HEHE HE S RARIE & RAE

Once the products leave the warehouse and are delivered to the location
designated by the distributor, the control of the goods are considered
to have been transferred to the distributor and revenue is recognised
accordingly.

BRI EWEXE S HEEC AR - AReESIERR S
EEBAEDHEE - BULEREERA -

Our audit procedures to assess the timing of revenue recognition included

the following:

BARHE 2 R R A RSN EZ T2
. obtaining an understanding of and assessing the design,

implementation and operating effectiveness of management's key
internal controls in relation to revenue recognition;

o T RRAIRHE R R AR AR RORET - M7 B
TTEVERIE

. inspecting sales contracts with customers, on a sample basis, to
understand the terms of the sales transactions including the terms
of delivery and acceptance and any sales return arrangements to
assess the Group's revenue recognition policies with reference to the
requirements of the prevailing accounting standards;

2 BEBHMEREREPHEINHESR  THREEKREEN IR

BRFHEGT - UEE BREEZRAERRHHNOBRR
SEA e RN ERED B
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The Key Audit Matter
HRELER

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EERTFNEERLE

The Group’s sales contracts are standardised and do not include terms
relating to discounts or rebates and do not permit sales return except for
where the products are damaged or defective.
ESEHESHBEITNFEHESR - TR HEITERFIE
Fe RBEABOTE - RERESMEIN - TEZEMEANRE -

We identified the timing of revenue recognition as a key audit matter
because revenue is one of the key performance indicators of the Group and
therefore there is an inherent risk of manipulation of the timing of recognition
of revenue by management to meet specific targets or expectations.
HAAIBERIL S X WANERRE T —(ERREREER - AREELRA
2 BREMERNEEREZ— FEEEEBRBBRMAZERIEAER
REEAZR S E B IR ENE A AR -

. inspecting goods delivery notes and logistics records, on a sample
basis, to assess whether revenue transactions recorded just before
and after the financial year end date had been recognised in the
appropriate financial period on the basis of the terms of sale as set
out in the sales contracts;

9 BEmEREEREEER YRGS URELREEEAR
REAENEZWARBDIRIZIHE & FIRE A FAC AR E7E
Golp e il

. inspecting underlying documentation for manual journal entries and
adjustments relating to revenue raised during the year which were
considered to be material or met other specific risk-based criteria;
and

2 REEEE W AR RREARLA A H AL E R BR G AH
FIDHERFEOSFEM - &

. inspecting actual sales returns and credit notes recorded after the
financial year end and evaluating whether the related adjustments to
revenue had been recorded in the appropriate financial period.

2 BEEERKXAREREAHERD RIFHE MO - BT
HERAEY & E AT R DA A LR MR IRKR A -
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Loss allowance for trade receivables

FEW RSB IR R

Refer to Note [6 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on pages 189 to [ 90.

R A B EIRAMN 16 RFE I89H 2 190 E B ZFTEE °

The Key Audit Matter
HRERER

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EERTFNERLE

The carrying value of the Group's gross trade receivables as at 31 December
2018 totalled RMB747.75 million, against which a loss allowance of
RMB13.42 million was recorded.

“E-NFT-A=t—H BERENEEEFEASREAARKE
74775BE BT STEZRSRSBIEBBARE 328 ET

Management measured the loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime
expected credit loss, based on estimated loss rates. The estimated loss rates
take into account the ageing of trade receivable balances, the repayment
history of the Group’s customers, current market conditions, customer-
specific conditions, and forward-looking information. According to the past
experience of the Group, the loss patterns for different customers are not
significantly different. Therefore, the receivables are not segmented when
calculating the loss allowance based on aging information.
EEEREGEBERREANBESRANERERE RN ET
BEIREE - A BRI REEETEROERR - EEEERH
BRESE - BOTMR  FENABBEAKAELER - B B5E
MBELER  TREFPHEREATEEAER - Bt - ERERER
BERFTEERRER - WERNEWFIRETAAE

Our audit procedures to assess the loss allowance for trade receivables

included the following:

HARHE R RERBEN BT EERE

o obtaining an understanding of and assessing the design,
implementation and operating effectiveness of key intemal controls
relating to credit control, debt collection and the estimation of the

loss allowance;

a TR ERERES - B R ERR R SRR

RS EIEBIRRRET » BIT BT TRV AZRIE
. obtaining an understanding of the key data and assumptions of

the expected credit loss model adopted by the management,
including the historical default data and the assumptions involved in

management’s estimated loss rate;

o THREBERANEREEEREANEIEHEREBR 215
R ENEE R ER BN ERE S KRR
. Assessing the reasonableness of management'’s loss allowance

estimates by examining the information used by management to form
such judgements, including testing the accuracy of the historical default
data and evaluating whether the historical loss rates are appropriately
adjusted based on current economic conditions and forward-looking
information;

o BIBREE IR G B2 B P R R BB AT B 02 fE RS 1R A
ARt AN - BIEREE L EOBURERIE KGR LR
BEEGREEANEERT AR IEERMELEE B
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The Key Audit Matter
HRELER

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EERTFNEERLE

We identified the loss allowance for trade receivables as a key audit matter
because the assessment of the loss allowance requires the exercise of
significant management judgement.
FATERI R BER KA AT B R — (R BA S X FIR - B REIER
FREA U EETEFERRN I HEEE - BEFHRRER
28 A EERE IR HIE

pu]

. assessing the classification of individual balances in the trade receivable
ageing report by comparing the details in the trade receivable ageing
report with the underlying goods delivery notes and invoices, on a
sample basis; and

2 BRBEUEA - L AR R AR B R AR R A0 H B B8 I B
£ A EIARUGTIRSREERREC D M ERE N

. comparing cash receipts from debtors subsequent to the financial year
end relating to trade receivable balances at 3| December 2018 with
bank statements and relevant underlying documentation, on a sample
basis.

o MikREEERARBREERFEROKE - RITEERX
B - WE-T— N\F+ A =+—BRENEKRERER
BRLLY -
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Capitalisation of intangible assets

BIEEERL

Refer to Note | | to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on page 182.

B A B R AN | R E 82 H B a B R ©

The Key Audit Matter
HRERER

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EERTFNERLE

As disclosed in Note | | to the consolidated financial statements, the Group
capitalises costs incurred in the development of its pharmaceutical products if
they meet the criteria for capitalisation as set out in the prevailing accounting
standards.

MONER & B SRR || PR ER LB
BARMEERINFRBHERAELRAXBETER

BiBEERHERIRTH

This involves significant management judgement in both determining when
the criteria for capitalisation are met and in identifying the relevant costs to
be capitalised. As at 3| December 2018, the carrying value of capitalised
development costs of intangible assets totalling RMB129.47 million.
EHEEEEENEAFE - AETEE MR EER KB E
MEBHEERER - RZZE—N\F+ZA=+—0H  EEMMLWERE
ERBERAREESRSARE 1294788 °

Our audit procedures to assess the capitalisation of intangible assets included

the following:
BFRHE BN EEEMEMBRIEFBIE TSR
o obtaining an understanding of and assessing the design,

implementation and operating effectiveness of management's key
internal controls in relation to the capitalisation of intangible assets;

a TEREMFHEERER AT EEENMERMHAFNEEZARZ
EHHIRRET BT RBTTE AL

. obtaining the commercial and technical feasibility report prepared
by the Group's researchers and assessing the reasonableness of the
commercial and technical feasibility by reference to the industry and

market information;

« B EREMEARRHMNEEREMATERS  FHER
ERFWATHENSIRE - B 2ETERTISEM
. challenging management's assessment of the fulflment of the criteria

for capitalisation of intangible assets as set out in the prevailing
accounting standards by discussing with the Group's researchers
the development progress and commercial application of each
development project;
2 FiRE EEEARASNH
CEREEEHENRESR
BRTE

EHRBABNRBEE R EER
ERIFFE BT EEE A AR
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The Key Audit Matter
HRELER

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EERTFNEERLE

We identified the capitalisation of intangible assets as a key audit matter
because of the significant level of management judgement involved in
determining the timing and amount of development costs capitalised.
BPBEHBETEEENMEE —ERREREER BRSPS REANER
EHE - NEECEMERERANKEREHE -

. inspecting a sample of items capitalised during the year with relevant
underlying documentation, including clinical trial expenses, staffing cost
and etc,; and

o MEESFANBEMCBE RAAEXY - BFEHRKARAIK
BTHARE

. obtaining the profit forecast prepared by the management for
each development project and assess the appropriateness of key
assumptions by making enquiries of management and researchers and
comparing the sales data with comparable companies.

o RSERERSEMEIRRRENEMNRY  EBREREER
MRAEBELEARIBATELRAANHERE  FHELE

RRNEBIE -
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Information other than the consolidated financial statements and auditor’s report
thereon

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises all the
information included in the annual report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our

auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we

do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to
read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or

otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this

other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the consolidated financial statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to

liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing

the Group's financial reporting process.

B B R E

REMBHRRUI G EAE R R H IR B H %
Y E
ERAYHEMERRERE -
FEsmmEER  BETE
FEUL B H B BEI IR -

HEHBIEFRT
AR e MR R A

BPEEAMBHRRIFENBERLREEELMME
£t o AT E E M E R BRI AR E SR o

REZARAMBHEME - RAOINEEEHEE M
AR eMmERRMEN ST EERSPHREER
MEEZBRETERNENFEEATR - T
RS AR

HERMPERE TN TERBEMERBREXR
BERfRA - ARSI —FE - RIBLLEA
HESHE -

EENGEMBRRARENERE
E=AAERERE S ERE 8 GAMH B
BHSEURBERFFOINEEREREIEE
RMINBZELEEMBHRER  LEEEEARR
REUR A TSRV TR ABAES - ARER
B BImER MR FERR KRR SR

ME R EERRERL -

EREESVBRRE  EEEA
FERKZEMREN  IREESEREAHNER
(ER) - RIFEFAER BEEBER ek
& - HRIL 2N EEMER RTINS - BRI
EERRAUKERE/ERNENE

it B&KE

EXREREZEY
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and
to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other

person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these

consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain

professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

0 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than
for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,

misrepresentations or the override of interal control.

0 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing

an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

116
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BB RRAERTEREM S M ERAMBRE
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HARIEER R ECERETERN TEZ —
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. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of TR ERERRE UWREEME

accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the directors. HREHEENEEEEESARE -

. Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors' use of the going concern basis of accounting ~ « REEERAUFEBLERENNEER
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related BEE  WIBBEERNEBIZRE  BE2
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue TEYE BEEEFECENENBRELRRE
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to FNEGRBEREEATEERE - WHRK
draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial PMREREEEATEEREER  HMHE
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions ZEENRE P IRBEE R AT B HRERANE
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, ERIEE S REHEERETE - BE:T
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern. BANER - BANEHREEREEZEE

WEBHMESNEREE - AT - ARE
HRIERATEEY EEETHARRER

g -
. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial AR A SRR (B IEEE W E ) (RS
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements W BENADY  ARGEMBEHREESE
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. N R R PRABER 5 N EIE -

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities ~ « B EEEASERBIERETINMEER
or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial BB TNBIZERE @« UG M SRR
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the Group RER - RMBESEEE  ZEMHAT =
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion. EEMNBZITIE - BMBEARMNEZER

EEREEL
We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the planned scope B ML EZ TIERET IS E TR - EFIZBES

and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal A== 2R (B E N 2PHEHI A B Kk ) R E =18

control that we identify during our audit. HEZZEGETAR
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We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence and communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and, where applicable,

related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of

such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Lam Kai Wa.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
|0 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

22 March 2019

BAFMERZBESFELRY  BRAMCETE
BB BIEENR - WA HAER AR
BREMB N EENE M EEIARBRRER
EGNER) - BEZZESETEE -

HIBRRERZEQER  BEWLITAMGS
BHEBRECIENSREESER  IBRREXE
8 o BIPERIER IR RFHEBE NS EHNE
BEENBEAT  BREBRBEELSEETAIER
HH T RERGHEBRRANTUW FEREOM M A
EERSEH TIAKE - BRIRFSEXEERE T
et EEIE -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
nv_\éﬁﬁ_ﬁﬁﬁ{m%@q&é%

for the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-_Z—)\F+-A=1+—HIFE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AAREEZ5)

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
(Note)
(P&
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
ips ARBTT ARETFT
Revenue E S 3 2,510,476 1,601,567
Cost of sales HERK A (398,809) (2804 16)
Gross profit =5 %,_I_I_I_,_é_‘l i 1,321,151
Other income Hapdg A 4 24,601 21,823
Distribution costs DA (653,650) (372,090)
Administrative expenses THEERY (384,385) (192,985)
Other net income/(expenses) HA (R )45 5,509 (25,415)
Profit from operations fed eyl 1,103,742 752,484
Finance costs BE A 5(a) (1,418) (4.289)
Profit before taxation BR B AR 5 1,102,324 748,195
Income tax Frig it 6 (201,106) (121,838)
Profit for the year FERRF 901,218 626,357
Profit and total comprehensive income BEALUTEBNERERR
for the year attributable to: ZHERZEE
Equity shareholders of the Company NNV T 942,536 647,101
Non-controlling interests FEPERR A A 13 (41,318) (20,744)
Profit and total comprehensive income FRRAREHKEDEE
for the year 901,218 626,357
Basic and diluted earnings per share BREAREBERA 9 RMB2.09 RMBI.43
AR#2.09T AR 43T

Note: The Group has initially applied IFRS 15 and IFRS 9 at | January 2018. Under the transition methods

chosen, comparative information is not restated. See Note |(c).

The notes on pages 124 to 221 form part of these financial statements. Details of dividends payable to

equity shareholders of the Company attributable to the profit for the year are set out in Note 24(b).

MiEE : AEEER=F—N\F— A —HaRERBERTE
HEAERIE 155 R BEFR B % HE A RIE T - RE
P& @ETE - BRBIILEREM - BIGEI() °

BI4EEN | B2 WK ZEM B RE —D -
BRAFREFIF RN A RESRROREFHSE - 8
R E24(b) °
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e BESARR &

at 31 December 2018

RZE—N\F+=ZA=1+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AAREZ5)
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+tF
+=A=+—-B +ZA=+—H
(Note)
(BIE)
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
liEss ARBTR AREFT
Non-current assets FRBEE
Fixed assets BEE&E
— Property, plant and equipment e E RN 10 1,198,617 590,390
— Interests in leasehold land held for own use —RIFGLHEREEAZ
under operating leases THE ks 10 152,862 79,835
1,351,479 670,225
Intangible assets M A E Il 498,604 374,170
Goodwill kS 12 75,896 75,896
Prepayments TEA 708 14 817,509 558,81 |
Deferred tax assets EETRRIBEE 23(b) 32,088 28,243
2,775,576 | 707,345
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE I5 164,286 87,967
Trade and other receivables B 5N EMEWGIE 16 1,027,332 746,961
Time deposits EHITER - 346519
Cash and cash equivalents ReKREEEIER |7 593,746 887,183
1,785,364 2,068,630
Current liabilities REEE
Trade and other payables B 5 REMERNRIA 19 676,250 549,542
Contract liabilities BRAE 18 8,095 -
Bank loans RITER 20 53,399 10,000
Deferred income EEW 21 4,379 4379
Current taxation FEATRNEARR IH 23(a) 70,675 76,826
812,798 640,747
Net current assets REEETHE 972,566 1,427,883
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBEE 3,748,142 3,135,228
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
RE BRI

at 31 December 2018

RZZE-NF+ZA=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AARBEZ51)
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
—ZE-N\F —E—tF
+=A=+-B +=A=+-A
(Note)
(FaE)
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
B aE AR®TT ARETTT
Non-current liabilities FREEME
Bank loans RITE 20 - 10,000
Deferred income w0 20 69,214 64642
... S 69214 Gz
Net assets BEE 3,678,928 3,060,586
Capital and reserves ERNEE
Share capital A& AR 24(c) 452,023 452,023
Reserves &t 24(d) 2,981,933 2,355813
Total equity attributable to equity QBRI R L AR
shareholders of the Company 3,433,956 2,807,836
Non-controlling interests FEIE PR RE S I3 244,972 252,750
Total equity ErER 3,678,928 3,060,586
Approved and authorized for issue by the board of directors on 22 March 2019. B HREHEFER - NF=A=-+T=H#
HERAXIETES o
Tang Xinfa Chen Yangui
E#TE R A
Director Director
2= 2=

Note: The Group has initially applied IFRS 15 and IFRS 9 at | January 2018. Under the transaction methods it AEBER=_Z—N\F— A —BaXERRRTEE
chosen, comparative information is not restated. See Note | (c). EZERSE |55 R BRI A RSB 9%k o RIR
FrE@ER % - BAFIILERER - BRI -

The notes on pages 124 to 221 form part of these financial statements. F 124820 B2 MEERZEM G HREKR— -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
for the year ended 31 December 2018
BE-F\Et-A=t+—AIL5E

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AAREEZ5)
Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
RAFRERRES
Non-
Share Capital Statutory Retained controlling Total
capital reserve reserve earnings Total interests equity
Bx  EAEE EERE  REEA & FERES aER
Note RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000
it ARETT AREBTR ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETR
Balance at | January 2017 RZB-tE-F-AMEE 450823 458,434 64636 483914 2457,807 - 2457807
Changes in equity for 2017: TE-LEREET:
Issue of ordinary shares BTERR 24(3) 1200 18,144 - - 19,344 = 19,344
Acquistion of equity interests in a subsidiary WE—RNEARRE 12 - - - - - 27349 273494
Total comprehensive income for the year ERZERANLE - - - 647,101 647,101 (20744) 626357

Dividends approved in respect of the previous ~ #tEBAFERS

year 24(b) - - S B (135607) S (I3607)
Dividends approved in respect of the current year  §t EAEE RS 2%4(b) - - - (180809) (180,809) - (180809)
Appropriation to statutory reserve BREETRE - - 67,738 (67.738) - - -
Balance at 31 December 2017 and RZB-tEtZA=1+-HK
I January 2018 (Note) “E2-\F-P-BiEE
(FisE) 452,023 1,476,578 132,374 746,861 2,807,836 252,750 3,060,586
Changes in equity for 2018: “E2-\EEREE
Total comprehensive income for the year FREENALE - - - 942,536 942,536 (41,318) 901,218
Dividends approved in respect of the previous year  #{EBAEERE 24(b) - - - (135607)  (135,607) - (135,607
Dividends approved in respect of the current year ~ LEARFERE 24(b) - - - (180,809)  (180,809) - (180,809)
Appropriation to statutory reserve BESETERE - - 100,302 (100,302) - - -
Equty settled share-based transactions IEREEORAXARS n - - - - - 33,540 33,540
Balance at 31 December 2018 RZE-NE+=A=1+-8
Hkes 452,023 1476578 232676 1272679 3433956 244972 3,678,928

Note: The Group has initially applied IFRS |5 and IFRS 9 at | January 2018. Under the transaction methods iz : 2EEER_ZT—N\F— A —BaXEARRTE
chosen, comparative information is not restated. See Note |(c). AR |55 R BIBR B M S RSB 9%k o RIR
Frg@Er % - BABIILERER - RMEI() -

The notes on pages 124 to 22| form part of these financial statements. F 124820 B2 MEERKZEMEHRE 30 o
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
IIV_\éiﬁﬁﬁE%

for the year ended 31 December 2018

BE-T\F+=H=+—HILEE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AARBZ7)
2018 2017
—E-N\EF —E—tF
(Note)
(P&
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
{iFs3 ARMBTF T ARETT
Operating activities REED
Cash generated from operations KREMmFEzHE 17(b) 926,494 760,116
The People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") BRI E A RLME (R E]) 2
Corporate Income Tax (“CIT") paid e ([EMRBER ] 23(a) (211,102) (89,365)
Net cash generated from operating activities RETHELENRESFE 715,392 670,751
Investing activities REF
Interest received B U F 8 14,601 14737
Payment for the purchase of property, plant and
equipment BEWE - BB REETRIE (620,039) (327,036)
Proceeds received from disposal of property, plant and
equipment HEWE - BB MR HSHRIE = 367
Payment for intangible assets B E TS 2R (476,081) (43,709)
Payment for acquisition of equity interests in a subsidiary W BE — FEIBT B N A AR A5 3R 12 - (137,402)
Investment in time deposits with maturity
over three months FHE BB =E A 2 EBRFESIRE (330,000) (536210)
Proceeds from time deposits EHFERTS0E 682,989 416,882
Net cash used in investing activities REZBFEANESFE (71285300 (612371)
Financing activities REEE
Proceeds from issuance of shares TR TS FUE - 19,344
Proceeds from new bank loans IRITE RIS EIE 17(c) 43,399 -
Repayments of bank loans BERITER 17(c) (10,000) (70,000)
Dividends paid to equity shareholders of the Company B N2 FIHEZS AR R AT AR B (316,416) (316416)
Interest paid EATALE 17(c) (1,434) (4394)
Net cash used in financing activities ARBEEZENRELEE _(284,451) (371.466)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents BEeRBELEEEHFRD (297,589) (313,086)
Cash and cash equivalents at | January R—A—HWNEESRRESEEEE 17(a) 887,183 1,212,072
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes SNEERSFPEE 4,152 (11,803)
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December RT-A=+—BHNRERBEZEEEH 170 593,746 887,183

Note: The Group has initially applied IFRS 15 and IFRS 9 at | January 2018. Under the transition methods MisE : AEEER=ZZ—N\F—A—BEXEREERTE
chosen, comparative information is not restated. See Note |(c). EZERSE |59 R BRI S s Y RSB 95  IRIR

FRE@ER % - BRBIILLRER - RIGEI()

The notes on pages 124 to 221 form part of these financial statements. F124EE0 | B2 WK RSB mEs—30 -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o 35 SRR B EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BB A -

124

HAAREFIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(@)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with all applicable
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”), which collective term includes
all applicable individual International Financial Reporting Standards, International
Accounting Standards (“IASs”) and Interpretations issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (“IASB"), accounting principles generally accepted
in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. These financial statements also comply with the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited. Significant accounting policies adopted by the Group are

disclosed below.

The IASB has issued certain new and revised IFRSs that are first effective or available
for early adoption for the current accounting period of the Group and the Company.
Note |(c) provides information on any changes in accounting policies resulting from
initial application of these developments to the extent that they are relevant to
the Group for the current and prior accounting periods reflected in these financial

statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

| SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(b)

Basis of presentation of the financial statements
The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2018

comprise the Company and its subsidiary (together referred to as “the Group”).

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial statements is the

historical cost basis.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in RMB, which is the functional
currency of the Company and its subsidiaries. The financial statements presented in

RMB has been rounded to the nearest thousand, unless otherwise indicated.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRSs requires management
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies
and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors
that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form
the basis of making the judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities that
are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these

estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate
is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and

future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of IFRSs that have significant
effect on the financial statements and major sources of estimation uncertainty are

discussed in Note 2.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o 35 SRR B EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BB A -

HAAREFIR)

| SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

(c)

126

Changes in accounting policies
The IASB has issued a number of new IFRSs and amendments to IFRSs that are first
effective for the current accounting period of the Group. Of these, the following

developments are relevant to the Group’s financial statements:

() IFRS 9, Financial instruments

(ii) IFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers

(i) IFRIC 22, Foreign currency transactions and advance consideration

The Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation that is not yet
effective for the current accounting period, except for the amendments to IFRS 9,
Prepayment features with negative compensation which have been adopted at the same

as IFRS 9.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

| SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)
(c) Changes in accounting policies (Cont'd)
(i) IFRS 9, Financial instruments, including the amendments to IFRS 9,

Prepayment features with negative compensation

IFRS 9 replaces IAS 39, Financial instruments: recognition and measurement.
[t sets out the requirements for recognising and measuring financial assets,

financial liabilities and some contracts to buy or sell non-financial items.

The Group has applied IFRS 9 retrospectively to items that existed at |
January 2018 in accordance with the transition requirements. The Group
has recognised the cumulative effect of initial application as an adjustment to
the opening equity at | January 2018. Therefore, comparative information

continues to be reported under IAS 39.

There is no impact of transition to IFRS 9 on retained earings and reserves at

| January 2018.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt 75 HR 2R MY

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B =HEEBIN - JUAARKTIR)

| SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd) | BAGTEE(E)
(c) Changes in accounting policies (Cont'd) (c) EBFHER2E(E
(i) IFRS 9, Financial instruments, including the amendments to IFRS 9, @) BB IR R E 9 - 2/

Prepayment features with negative compensation (Cont'd)

Further details of the nature and effect of the changes to previous accounting

policies and the transition approach are set out below:

(a) Classification of financial assets and financial liabilities

IFRS 9 categories financial assets into three principal classification
categories: measured at amortised cost, at fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVOCI) and at fair value through profit or
loss (FVPL). These supersede IAS 39's categories of held-to-maturity
investments, loans and receivables, available-for-sale financial assets and
financial assets measured at FVPL. The classification of financial assets
under IFRS 9 is based on the business model under which the financial
asset is managed and its contractual cash flow characteristics. Under
IFRS 9, derivatives embedded in contracts where the host is a financial
asset in the scope of the standard are not separated from the host.

Instead, the hybrid instrument as a whole is assessed for classification.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

(c) Changes in accounting policies (Contd)

(i) IFRS 9, Financial instruments, including the amendments to IFRS 9,

Prepayment features with negative compensation (Cont'd)

(b)

Classification of financial assets and financial liabilities (Cont'd)

The measurement categories for the Group's financial assets and
all financial liabilities remain the same under IAS 39 and IFRS 9. The
carrying amounts for all financial liabilities at | January 2018 have not

been impacted by the initial application of IFRS 9.

The Group did not designate or de-designate any financial asset or

financial liability at FVPL at | January 2018.

Credit losses

IFRS 9 replaces the “incurred loss” model in IAS 39 with the
“expected credit losses” (ECL) model. The ECL model requires an
ongoing measurement of credit risk associated with a financial asset
and therefore recognises ECLs earlier than under the “incurred loss”

accounting model in IAS 39.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt 75 HR 2R MY

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B =HEEBIN - JUAARKTIR)

| SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd) | BAGTEE(E)
(c) Changes in accounting policies (Cont'd) (c) EFHER2E(E)
(i) IFRS 9, Financial instruments, including the amendments to IFRS 9, () EIBRBIBHEEREIS £/

Prepayment features with negative compensation (Cont'd)

(b)  Credit losses (Cont'd)
The Group applies the new ECL model to the financial assets
measured at amortised cost (including cash and cash equivalents, trade

and other receivables and time deposits).

For further details on the Group's accounting policy for accounting for

credit losses, see Note |(i)(i).

(¢ Transition
Changes in accounting policies resulting from the adoption of IFRS 9

have been applied retrospectively, except as described below:

= Information relating to comparative periods has not been
restated. Differences in the carrying amounts of financial assets
resulting from the adoption of IFRS 9 are recognised in retained
earnings and reserves as at | January 2018. Accordingly, the
information presented for 2017 continues to be reported
under IAS 39 and thus may not be comparable with the current

period.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(c) Changes in accounting policies (Cont'd)

(i) IFRS 9, Financial instruments, including the amendments to IFRS 9,

Prepayment features with negative compensation (Cont'd)

(0 Transition (Cont'd)

The determination of the business model within which a
financial asset is held has been made on the basis of the facts
and circumstances that existed at | January 2018 (the date of

initial application of IFRS 9 by the Group); and

If, at the date of initial application, the assessment of whether
there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition would have involved undue cost or effort, a lifetime

ECL has been recognised for that financial instrument.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt 75 HR 2R MY

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B =HEEBIN - JUAARKTIR)

| SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd) | BEREHBEEE)
(c) Changes in accounting policies (Cont'd) (c) EFHER2E(E)
(ii)  IFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers (i) EBEEBHREEREISE &

IFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for recognising revenue. [FRS
|5 replaces IAS 18, Revenue, which covered revenue arising from sale of goods
and rendering of services, and IAS ||, Construction contracts, which specified

the accounting for construction contracts.

IFRS 15 also introduces additional qualitative and quantitative disclosure
requirements which aim to enable users of the financial statements to
understand the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash

flows arising from contracts with customers.

The Group has elected to use the cumulative effect transition method and
has recognised the cumulative effect of initial application as an adjustment
to the opening balance of equity at | January 2018. Therefore, comparative
information has not been restated and continues to be reported IAS 18. As
allowed by IFRS |5, the Group has applied the new requirements only to
contracts that were not completed before | January 2018 (if any). There is no

impact of transition to IFRS |5 on retained earnings at | January 2018.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

| SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(c) Changes in accounting policies (Cont'd)

(iij)  IFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers (Cont'd)

Further details of the nature and effect of the changes on previous accounting

policies are set out below:

(@)

Timing of revenue recognition

Previously, revenue arising from provision of services was recognised
over time, whereas revenue from sale of goods was generally
recognised at a point in time when the risks and rewards of ownership

of the goods had passed to the customers.

Under IFRS |5, revenue is recognised when the customer obtains
control of the promised good or service in the contract. This may be
at a single point in time or over time. IFRS |5 identifies the following
three situations in which control of the promised good or service is

regarded as being transferred over time:

A When the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the entity's performance, as the entity

performs;

B. When the entity's performance creates or enhances an asset (for
example work in progress) that the customer controls as the

asset is created or enhanced;
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt 75 HR 2R MY

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B =HEEBIN - JUAARKTIR)

| SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd) | BEREHBEEE)
(c) Changes in accounting policies (Cont'd) (c) EFHER2E(E)
(ii)  IFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers (Cont'd) (i) EIBEBHEEEREISE &
FERKA(E)

(a) Timing of revenue recognition (Cont'd)
C. When the entity's performance does not create an asset with
an alternative use to the entity and the entity has an enforceable

right to payment for performance completed to date.

If the contract terms and the entity's activities do not fall into any of
these 3 situations, then under IFRS |5 the entity recognises revenue
for the sale of that good or service at a single point in time, being
when control has passed. Transfer of risks and rewards of ownership is
only one of the indicators that is considered in determining when the

transfer of control occurs.

The adoption of IFRS |5 does not have a significant impact on when
the Group recognises revenue from sales of goods and this change in
accounting policy had no material impact on opening balances as at |

January 2018.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

| SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(c) Changes in accounting policies (Cont'd)

(iij)  IFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers (Cont'd)

(b)

Significant financing component

IFRS 15 requires an entity to adjust the transaction price for the
time value of money when a contract contains a significant financing
component, regardless of whether the payments from customers are
received significantly in advance of revenue recognition or significantly

deferred.

Previously, the Group only applied such a policy when payments
were significantly deferred, which was not common in the Group's
arrangements with its customers. The Group did not apply such a

policy when payments were received in advance.

[t is not common for the Group to receive payments significantly in
advance of revenue recognition in the Group's arrangements with its
customers. The adoption of IFRS |5 does not have a significant impact
on the Group and this change in accounting policy had no material

impact on opening balances as at | January 2018.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt 75 HR 2R MY

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B =HEEBIN - JUAARKTIR)

136

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Changes in accounting policies (Cont'd)

(ii)  IFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers (Cont'd)

(¢ Presentation of contract assets and liabilities

1 EPN-EeH6-

(c) SErtEESHE)
BB B ERIE 155 &
FERYA(#E)

@ii)

Under IFRS |5, a receivable is recognised only if the Group has an

unconditional right to consideration. If the Group recognises the related

revenue before being unconditionally entitled to the consideration for

the promised goods and services in the contract, then the entitlement

to consideration is classified as a contract asset. Similarly, a contract

liability, rather than a payable, is recognised when a customer pays

consideration, or is contractually required to pay consideration and

the amount is already due, before the Group recognises the related

revenue. For a single contract with the customer, either a net contract

asset or a net contract liability is presented. For multiple contracts,

contract assets and contract liabilities of unrelated contracts are not

presented on a net basis.

To reflect this change in presentation, contract liabilities, including

receipts in advance from customers with amount of RMB 3,826,000,

which was previously included in trade and other payables (Note [9)

is now separately presented under contract liabilities (Note |8) as at

| January 2018, as a result of the adoption of IFRS 15.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R M EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(Br=HEHEBIN - GAARBKTITR)

| SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd) | BAEHBEE)
(c) Changes in accounting policies (Cont'd) (c) BEHX2E(E)
(iij)  IFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers (Cont'd) (i) EBEEBEHREEREISE &
FERKA(E)

(d)  Disclosure of the estimated impact on the amounts reported in respect of @ BEE-ZF-/NFA1+=
the year ended 3| December 2018 as a result of the adoption of IFRS 15 A=+—HIFFEZ#
on | January 2018 HeBERAR-_E—/\F

— H — B &R BB B 7%
R FE 55 M2 F

Byl e R
The following tables summarise the estimated impact of adoption of T RE B AR B BB
IFRS I5 on the Group's consolidated financial statements for the year M mEERE ISR
ended 31 December 2018, by comparing the amounts reported under AEEBREZE-_Z—N
IFRS 15 in these consolidated financial statements with estimates of F+-_A=+—8HLHF
the hypothetical amounts that would have been recognised under IAS ERFmE i BHREP 2
18 and IAS |1 if those superseded standards had continued to apply WHEREBEGHTRZE
to 2018 instead of IFRS I5. These tables show only those line items —N\FHREEABRERSE
impacted by the adoption of IFRS 15: SR I8 R ERE

FTAERIEE |1 5% i FE B B
B ISR ERISE 1558
BRTHERNRR S
RE - IR LR 4R B R B 7
WELRIB ISHEY %S
REMBRROMET
2. TREBTIEM
B BT A5 RS 2RI 15

SRR EMIER
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt 75 HR 2R MY

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B =HEEBIN - JUAARKTIR)

| SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
(c) Changes in accounting policies (Cont'd)

(ii)  IFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers (Cont'd)

(d) Disclosure of the estimated impact on the amounts reported in respect of
the year ended 31 December 2018 as a result of the adoption of IFRS 15
on | January 2018 (Contd)

BEAEHBEE)
(c) B EXR2H(E)
(i) EIBEBHEEEREISE &

FERWA(E)

@ BpEE=—F—/NF+=
A=1T—HIFEZR
HEBEARZFE—/\F
— H — B &R BB 51 7%

HERE 155 T % 5

138

Lolrig 2 Fit 46

Difference:
Estimated
Amounts Hypothetical impact
reported in amounts of adoption
accordance under IAS 18 of IFRS 15
with IFRS 15 and 11 on 2018
Bt A =8
FI8HEK R=F-N\F
R EIRrEsHER BRANE R B A
BREERFISH BIR2HE  WMEERE 155
ERNEHE BRREH HEE R
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBETTT ARETTT ARETTT
Line items in the R=ZB-NF+=A
consolidated statement =+ —HWHEEIK
of financial position R 3R R 32 ER A R
as at 31 December 2018 B RE RIS 155
impacted by the TEMNER
adoption of IFRS 15:
Trade and other payables B 5 K E AR FIE 676,250 684,345 (8,095)
Contract liabilities BHEE 8,095 - 8,095
Total equity AR 684,345 684,345 -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

| SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(<)

(@)

Changes in accounting policies (Cont'd)

(iii)  IFRIC 22, Foreign currency transactions and advance consideration

This interpretation provides guidance on determining “the date of the
transaction” for the purpose of determining the exchange rate to use on initial
recognition of the related asset, expense or income (or part of it) arising from
a transaction in which an entity receives or pays advance consideration in a

foreign currency.

The Interpretation clarifies that “the date of the transaction” is the date
on initial recognition of the non-monetary asset or liability arising from the
payment or receipt of advance consideration. If there are multiple payments or
receipts in advance of recognising the related item, the date of the transaction
for each payment or receipt should be determined in this way. The adoption
of IFRIC 22 does not have any material impact on the financial position and

the financial result of the Group.

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group controls an entity when
it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the entity
and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity. When
assessing whether the Group has power, only substantive rights (held by the Group

and other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the consolidated financial
statements from the date that control commences until the date that control ceases.
Intra-group balances, transactions and cash flows and any unrealised profits arising
from intra-group transactions are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated
financial statements. Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains but only to the extent that there is no

evidence of impairment.

SRR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o 35 SRR B EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BB A -

140

HAAREFIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

(d)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (Cont'd)

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary not attributable directly
or indirectly to the Company, and in respect of which the Group has not agreed any
additional terms with the holders of those interests which would result in the Group
as a whole having a contractual obligation in respect of those interests that meets the
definition of a financial liability. For each business combination, the Group can elect
to measure any non-controlling interests either at fair value or at the non-controlling

interests’ proportionate share of the subsidiary's net identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated statement of financial
position within equity, separately from equity attributable to the equity shareholders
of the Company. Non-controlling interests in the results of the Group are presented
on the face of the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income as an allocation of the total profit or loss and total comprehensive income
for the year between non-controlling interests and the equity shareholders of the

Company.

Changes in the Group's interests in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control
are accounted for as equity transactions, whereby adjustments are made to the
amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests within consolidated equity to
reflect the change in relative interests, but no adjustments are made to goodwill and

no gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted for as a disposal of the
entire interest in that subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit
or loss. Any interest retained in that former subsidiary at the date when control is
lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition of a financial asset or, when appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of

an investment in an associate or joint venture.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

| SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

(d)

O)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (Cont'd)
In the Company’s statement of financial position, an investment in a subsidiary is
stated at cost less impairment losses (See Note | (i)) unless the investment is classified

as held to sale (or included in a disposal group that is classified as held for sale).

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of:

() the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration transferred, the amount of
any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the fair value of the Group's

previously held equity interest in the acquiree; over

(i) the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets and liabilities measured as

at the acquisition date.

When (i) is greater than (i), then this excess is recognised immediately in profit or

loss as a gain on a bargain purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill arising on
a business combination is allocated to each cash-generating unit, or groups of cash
generating units, that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination

and is tested annually for impairment (See Note | (i)).

On disposal of a cash generating unit during the year, any attributable amount of

purchased goodwill is included in the calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(Br=HEHEBIN - GAARBKTITR)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o 35 SRR B EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BB A -

HAAREFIR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

U}

142

Property, plant and equipment
The following items of property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less

accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (See Note | (i)):

= Plant and buildings held for own use which are situated on leasehold land

classified as held under operating leases (See Note [ (h)); and

= Other items of property, plant and equipment.

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant and equipment includes the
cost of materials, direct labour and the initial estimate, where relevant, of the costs of
dismantling and removing the items and restoring the site on which they are located,
and an appropriate proportion of production overheads and borrowing costs (See

Note [(t)).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an item of property, plant
and equipment are determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the item and are recognised in profit or loss on the date

of retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of property, plant and
equipment, less their estimated residual value, if any, using the straight-line method

over their estimated useful lives as follows:

= Plant and buildings situated on leasehold land are depreciated over the shorter
of the unexpired term of lease and their estimated useful lives, being no more

than 50 years after the date of completion

- Machinery |5 years
- Motor vehicles 10 years
= Office equipment and others 5-8 years
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

®

(2

Property, plant and equipment (Cont'd)

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives,
the cost of the item is allocated on a reasonable basis between the parts and each
part is depreciated separately. Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if

any, are reviewed annually.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in the period in which
it is incurred. Expenditure on development activities is capitalised if the product or
process is technically and commercially feasible and the Group has sufficient resources
and the intention to complete development. The expenditure capitalised includes
the costs of materials, direct labour, and an appropriate proportion of overheads.
Capitalised development costs are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and
impairment losses (See Note |(i)). Other development expenditure is recognised as

an expense in the period in which it is incurred.

Other intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation (where the estimated useful life is finite) and impairment
losses (See Note [(i)). Expenditure on intemally generated goodwill and brands is

recognised as an expense in the period in which it is incurred.

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful lives is charged to profit or loss on
a straight-line basis over the assets' estimated useful lives. The following intangible
assets with finite useful lives are amortised from the date they are available for use

and their estimated useful lives are as follows:

= capitalised development costs |0 years

12 years

- patents

Both the period and method of amortisation are reviewed annually.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt 75 HR 2R MY

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BB A -

144

HAAREFIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(h)

Leasehold land held for own use under operating leases

Leasehold land held for own use under operating leases represent cost of land use
rights paid to the PRC government authorities. Land use rights are stated as cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses (See Note [(i)). Amortisation is

recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the respective period of the

rights.

Credit losses and impairment of assets

| BEREHBEE)
(h) REKLEHEFFERAZIER
RBQEHE/RIEAA 2 LvERIE
A B B & B 52 A5 9 b i PR R
AR o+ b fsF PR REHR B AN R R AT HE 65 %

EEESIR(RMEEG) - BIEREF
BEREREANNESRENERRE
7,

(i) FEEBEREERE

(i)  Credit losses from financial instruments, contract assets and lease () XKRE2BIA  SHEERH
receivable EREKFRNEEERE
(A)  Policy applicable from | January 2018 A B=ZZE-NF—-—H—H
B AR
The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected credit losses NS R N
(ECLs) on the financial assets measured at amortised cost (including EvemEE(BERS
cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables and loans to rBReEEEE B

associates).

R H A R IB R4 T
B AR 2 B MR
EEEREREERE -

Financial assets measured at fair value, including units in bond funds, RATEFENERE
equity securities measured at FVPL, equity securities designated at E(BEREFES BN

FVOCI (non-recycling) and derivative financial assets, are not subject to

the ECL assessment.

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses
are measured as the present value of all expected cash shortfalls (i.e.
the difference between the cash flows due to the Group in accordance

with the contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to

receive).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

| SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)
0) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Cont'd)
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments, contract assets and lease
receivable (Cont'd)

(A)  Policy applicable from | January 2018 (Cont'd)

Measurement of ECLs (Cont'd)

The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is the
maximum contractual period over which the Group is exposed to

credit risk.

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into account reasonable and
supportable information that is available without undue cost or effort.
This includes information about past events, current conditions and

forecasts of future economic conditions.

ECLs are measured on either of the following bases:

- |2-month ECLs: these are losses that are expected to result
from possible default events within the |2 months after the

reporting date; and

- lifetime ECLs: these are losses that are expected to result from
all possible default events over the expected lives of the items

to which the ECL model applies.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B IS ERAR L

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B =B HEHI

146

CEHRAREIIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
Credit losses and impairment of assets (Cont'd)
Credit losses from financial instruments, contract assets and lease

receivable (Cont'd)

Policy applicable from | January 2018 (Cont'd)

Measurement of ECLs (Cont'd)

Loss allowances for trade and other receivables are always measured
at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs. ECLs on these financial assets
are estimated using a provision matrix based on the Group’s historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors and an assessment of both the current and forecast general

economic conditions at the reporting date.

For all other financial instruments, the Group recognises a loss
allowance equal to 12-month ECLs unless there has been a significant
increase in credit risk of the financial instrument since initial recognition,
in which case the loss allowance is measured at an amount equal to

lifetime ECLs.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 7S AR MY

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRSEHEPIN - AUARBIIR)
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd) | BEAGTEE(E)
(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Cont'd) (i) FEFEREEREE)

() XKRELBIA - AHEERHE
EERSENEEER(E)

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments, contract assets and lease

receivable (Cont'd)

Policy applicable from | January 2018 (Cont'd)

*

B-F-N\F—A—H
HBBHEF (#)

Significant increases in credit risk FERBAE_ LA

In assessing whether the credit risk of a financial instrument has FHEEeRIANEER
increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group compares BEVNTHERARES
the risk of default occurring on the financial instrument assessed at the Aig EFAR  AEEE

reporting date with that assessed at the date of initial recognition. In
making this reassessment, the Group considers that a default event

occurs when (i) the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations

BRI E BB RN
iﬁg At H Hﬁ E:F1EE}]§I%¢\
TAZEEENORAR

to the Group in full, without recourse by the Group to actions such as EX B EE A&
realising security (if any is held); or (ii) the financial asset is 90 days past ERA - WiERA

due. The Group considers both quantitative and qualitative information AREEAEEEER
that is reasonable and supportable, including historical experience and R ER RS (nEF

forward-looking information that is available without undue cost or

effort.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt 75 HR 2R MY

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B =HEEBIN - JUAARKTIR)

| SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd) | BAGTEE(E)
(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Cont'd) () FEFEREEREE)
(i)  Credit losses from financial instruments, contract assets and lease () XRELBIEAE - eHEERH
receivable (Cont'd) EERRSENEEEE(E)
(A)  Policy applicable from | January 2018 (Cont'd) A B=F—-NF—H—H
HEEBAIBE (F)

Significant increases in credit risk (Cont'd) sERB AR (E)

In particular, the following information is taken into account when BgEmE FHEER

assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly since initial S B VIR ERARES

recognition: RNig EAREEBAT
EH

= failure to make payments of principal or interest on their - REEREHEIHE

contractually due dates; H 2 A AR & sk A
B

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in a financial — @I EIMNBERRA

instrument's external or intemnal credit rating (if available); EEBAER (A
)R Bk E
BmEB

= an actual or expected significant deterioration in the operating — (ERALEEEN
results of the debtor; and BRI TEHEER

£+ &

- existing or forecast changes in the technological, market, - B mE - &F
economic or legal environment that have a significant adverse SOEERIEN B Al
effect on the debtor’s ability to meet its obligation to the NTEHAR EHER
Group. ABITEHHAER

BEMBENEER

TR -

Depending on the nature of the financial instruments, the assessment BoRR A IEmNM
of a significant increase in credit risk is performed on either an g FERR AR LA
individual basis or a collective basis. When the assessment is performed B & {d To 3% {8 B B 2 5k
on a collective basis, the financial instruments are grouped based on HEEEETT - MG
shared credit risk characteristics, such as past due status and credit risk BEAREELET  ©
ratings. MITARZRAERNEE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R M EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(Br=HEHEBIN - GAARBKTITR)

BEREFHBEE)

FEBEREEREE)

() XEEBMIA cWEERHE
BERUSENEEERE(E)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd) |
(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Cont'd) (i)
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments, contract assets and lease

receivable (Cont'd)

Policy applicable from | January 2018 (Cont'd)

Significant increases in credit risk (Cont'd)

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date to reflect changes in the

*

BE-F-NFE—HA—H
BRI ()

ERRRAE (&)
HFHEEBEN SRS

financial instrument’s credit risk since initial recognition. Any change HEETEFHENR
in the ECL amount is recognised as an impairment gain or loss in MEMTEBVIPHER
profit or loss. The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss for all AR By 15 B R g 2

financial instruments with a corresponding adjustment to their carrying FEHREEHENEMZ
amount through a loss allowance account, except for investments B RIBEERARE

in debt securities that are measured at FVOCI (recycling), for which
the loss allowance is recognised in other comprehensive income and

accumulated in the fair value reserve (recycling).

Basis of calculation of interest income

Interest income recognised in accordance with Note I(s)(ii) is
calculated based on the gross carrying amount of the financial asset
unless the financial asset is credit-impaired, in which case interest
income is calculated based on the amortised cost (i.e. the gross carrying

amount less loss allowance) of the financial asset.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt 75 HR 2R MY

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B =HEEBIN - JUAARKTIR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)
(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Cont'd)
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments, contract assets and lease
receivable (Cont'd)

(A)  Policy applicable from | January 2018 (Cont'd)
Basis of calculation of interest income (Cont'd)
At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether a financial asset is
credit-impaired. A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more

events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash

flows of the financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following

observable events:

= significant financial difficulties of the debtor;

= a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest

or principal payments;

= it becoming probable that the borrower will enter into

bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

= significant changes in the technological, market, economic or

legal environment that have an adverse effect on the debtor.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Cont'd)

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments, contract assets and lease

receivable (Cont'd)

)

(®)

Policy applicable from | January 2018 (Cont'd)

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either
partially or in full) to the extent that there is no realistic prospect of
recovery. This is generally the case when the Group determines that
the debtor does not have assets or sources of income that could
generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the

write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was previously written off are
recognised as a reversal of impairment in profit or loss in the period in

which the recovery occurs.

Policy applicable prior to | January 2018

Prior to | January 2018, an “incurred loss” model was used to
measure impairment losses on financial assets not classified as at FVPL
(e.g. trade and other receivables, available-for-sale investments and
held-to-maturity debt securities). Under the “incurred loss” model,
an impairment loss was recognised only when there was objective

evidence of impairment. Objective evidence of impairment included:

= significant financial difficulties of the debtor;

SRR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BB HEHI -

| BEREFHBEE)

HAAREFITR)

() FGFEBEREEREE)
() XKRELBIA - AHEERHE
EEKF BN EEE(E

Y

G

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 £ $§

BE-F-NFE—HA—H
BRI ()
THER

HHEBER EARYE
/O SEI - €
(oM EMEE
MARKREE - ZBERE
FHRERNEEEEE
BARBEERAEL
RHRE M ENBEAR
IRABE ERBEA S -

BE & W m e ml sE 2 &
ERIREHMREER S
HERRRERD -

R=ZF-NF—-F—H
AT AR
R=F—NE—H—H
Al [EEEBE IR
TEARtEAMYLIE
DEREBEARBEA
BaNeREE(NES
K Bl YRR~ AT
HERERFEEME
BiER) REEE - 1R
RIEELERIERA
EEFERENTER
BRI - BRE B SRR (B
B RENEBEERS
EEa

- EBALREEH
TR EE -

151



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt 75 HR 2R MY

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B =HEEBIN - JUAARKTIR)

| SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd) | BAGTEE(E)
(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Cont'd) @) EEFEREEREE)
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments, contract assets and lease @) RESHTEHE SN EERHE
receivable (Cont'd) EEWGIBENEEEE(Z
(B)  Policy applicable prior to | January 2018 (Cont'd) B R-_FE—-NF—HF—A
FIE B (&)
= a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest — BRAY - IR
or principal payments; sk #6 /K ) Bk AN S
R
= it becoming probable that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or = B ARB ALY
other financial reorganisation; and W ETGEITEM
BBEE R

= significant changes in the technological, market, economic or

legal environment that have an adverse effect on the debtor.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R M EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(Br=HEHEBIN - GAARBKTITR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd) | BAEHBEE)
(i)  Credit losses and impairment of assets (Cont'd) (i) EFEBEREEREE
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments, contract assets and lease @) RESHTE SN EERHE
receivable (Cont'd) EEKS IS EEE(Z
(B)  Policy applicable prior to | January 2018 (Cont'd) B R-_FE—-NF—HF—A
BB BB (&)
If any such evidence existed, an impairment loss was determined and AR
recognised as follows: BIJ 4 4] S50 12 S 4B & 42 1A
T REE MR
- For trade and other receivables and other financial assets B 8 I 3 4 A A5 B
carried at amortised cost, impairment loss was measured as 5 T e
the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the T LY
present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at EETE . REE
the financial asset's original effective interest rate, where the ~ ;
effect of discounting was material. This assessment was made APRIEARESE
[ B B 5T R 2R
collectively where these financial assets shared similar risk
EREREREH

characteristics, such as similar past due status, and had not been

BVERRETE - A
BREREX A
BERAEERER
FRIFH o e
SREEREEL
Je ez s 2 (A 2R AL
e BB ) Rl
AEFHERTH
B AIEREE
—[RIH#ETT - £RFF
e EN SR EE
ARKREZRETD
REEZEEES
BERUGEERRR
BRI B EN BT

BERHE -

individually assessed as impaired. Future cash flows for financial
assets which were assessed for impairment collectively were
based on historical loss experience for assets with credit risk

characteristics similar to the collective group.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B IS ERAR L

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B =HEEBIN - JUAARKTIR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Cont'd)

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments, contract assets and lease

receivable (Cont'd)

(B)

154 YICHANG HEC CHANGJIANG PHARMACEUTICAL CO., LTD. EERBE X RIEEZR B ERA R

Policy applicable prior to | January 2018 (Cont'd)

If in a subsequent period the amount of an impairment loss
decreased and the decrease could be linked objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised, the
impairment loss was reversed through profit or loss. A reversal
of an impairment loss was only recognised to the extent that
it did not result in the asset's carrying amount exceeding that
which would have been determined had no impairment loss

been recognised in prior years.

When the recovery of a trade debtor or other financial assets
carried at amortised cost was considered doubtful but not
remote, associated impairment losses were recorded using
an allowance account. When the Group was satisfied that
recovery was remote, the amount considered irrecoverable
was written off against the gross carrying amount of those
assets directly. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
charged to the allowance account were reversed against the
allowance account. Other changes in the allowance account and
subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off directly

were recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R M EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(Br=HEHEBIN - GAARBKTITR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd) | BAEHBEE)
(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Cont'd) () FEFEREEREE)
(ii)  Impairment of other non-current assets (i) HFREEERE
Internal and external sources of information are reviewed at the end of A BB & SNE B R RR TR & R
each reporting period to identify indications that the following assets may be HEERFE - ABREETR
impaired or, except in the case of goodwill, an impairment loss previously BRTINEER L IERE
recognised no longer exists or may have decreased: F(EEHBBRT) LA 2 R
FORE B EE NMFES Al B
A
= Property, plant and equipment; - M - BB K&
- Interest in leasehold land held for own use under operating leases; - BRELEHEHERERR
Z i
- Intangible assets; - mEE
= Goodwill; - B
= Prepayments; and - TARFIA - R
- Investments in subsidiaries in the Company’s statement of financial —  RAQRBMBARAEA
position. MEARZKRE o
If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. In i HIRERZEDR @ BlEHE
addition, for goodwill and intangible assets that are not yet available for use, FTEERAIHEI S o tEob -
the recoverable amount is estimated annually whether or not there is any TEERMAHERNELE
indication of impairment. EmMs  BFEMAFAIKDE

B AHMERAFEREDR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt 75 HR 2R MY

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B =HEEBIN - JUAARKTIR)

| SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd) | BAREHBEE)
(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Cont'd) () FEFEREEREE
(ii)  Impairment of other non-current assets (Cont'd) (i) BtbFERBEEREE)
- Calculation of recoverable amount - FTE A PSR
The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its fair value less BEMAIKEEEAR
costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated o B E R 8H & A AN A &
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax FTAREBEMEENRS

discount rate that reflects current market assessments of time value
of money and the risks specific to the asset. Where an asset does not
generate cash inflows largely independent of those from other assets,
the recoverable amount is determined for the smallest group of assets

that generates cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).

= Recognition of impairment losses
An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss if the carrying amount
of an asset, or the cash-generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds its
recoverable amount. Impairment losses recognised in respect of cash-
generating units are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of
any goodwill allocated to the cash-generating unit (or group of unites)
and then, to reduce the carrying amount of the other assets in the unit
(or group of units) on a pro rata basis, except that the carrying value of
an asset will not be reduced below its individual fair value less costs of

disposal (if measurable) or value in use (if measurable).

156 YICHANG HEC CHANGJIANG PHARMACEUTICAL CO., LTD. EERBE X RIEEZR B ERA R

- HEFGEREE
o SRRRERETS
HERRHEEREE
5 7E B 2 B Ak B9 B AT A
AE . BEFRERE
MEBFRE=HBRE - M
EEYEELERNBUBY
REMEENRER
A RIARE B EAER
TR AR RNEEHAR
(MREeELBEM)EE
AU eI

BB E TR
HWEEXEMBRSE
ABEMNREEESHR
Al E e R BIRE
mx P HERRERRE -
MRS EEE MR
MEEETAB XD
MBI DEEREESE
B (R EMAR) NE
MEENREE @ =&
OB A B (K
BRI AEEMRE
B HEXEENKREE
TaR=ERNEERNA
AREEREHEERAK
EREEINETE)H
&



SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

®

Credit losses and impairment of assets (Cont'd)

(ii)

(iii)

Impairment of other non-current assets (Cont'd)

- Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an impairment loss is reversed

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R M EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(Br=HEHEBIN - GAARBKTITR)

I EAEHBERE)
() FEFEREEREE)
(i) Bt REEERHEE)
- BEREEE
REBUNMEEM

if there has been a favorable change in the estimates used to determine = WARETER WD

the recoverable amount. An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is

not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to the asset's carrying

SR EHILRANE
B - AIEE R A -
70 8 7 0 L (S 4R
THEE -

BEBREOERRE

amount that would have been determined had no impairment TRAFELRERR

loss been recognised in prior years. Reversals of impairment losses

are credited to profit or loss in the year in which the reversals are

recognised.

Interim financial reporting and impairment
Under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange

of Hong Kong Limited, the Group is required to prepare an interim financial

EEERREETNE
EREE - BIEHER
(o] 1E 7 38 18 0 0 F 5
ABER °

(i) FHHBEERBE
RBEBEBHARIARRAR
FBHEMHRA - RNEBARE

report in compliance with IAS 34, Interim financial reporting, in respect of B R & 5T 25 Rl 55 34 5% R HAB 7%

the first six months of the financial year. At the end of the interim period, the
Group applies the same impairment testing, recognition, and reversal criteria as

it would at the end of the financial year (See Notes |(i)(i) and (ii)).

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in respect of goodwill are
not reversed in a subsequent period. This is the case even if no loss, or a
smaller loss, would have been recognised had the impairment been assessed

only at the end of the financial year to which the interim period relates.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o 35 SRR B EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B =HEEBIN - JUAARKTIR)

158

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

)

(k)

Inventories
Inventories are assets which are held for sale in the ordinary course of business, in
the process of production for such sale or in the form of materials or supplies to be

consumed in the production process or in the rendering of services.

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost formula and comprises all costs of
purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to

their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business
less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the

sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those inventories is recognised as

an expense in the period in which the related revenue is recognised.

The amount of any write-down of inventories to net realisable value and all losses
of inventories are recognised as an expense in the period the write-down or loss
occurs. The amount of any reversal of any write-down of inventories is recognised as
a reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the period in

which the reversal occurs.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when the customer pays consideration before the
Group recognises the related revenue (See Note I(s)). A contract liability would also
be recognised if the Group has an unconditional right to receive consideration before
the Group recognises the related revenue. In such cases, a corresponding receivable

would also be recognised (See Note |(1)).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 7S AR MY

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(Br=HEHEBIN - GAARBKTITR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd) | BEAGTEE(E)

(k)  Contract liabilities (Contd) k) EBREEHE)
Policy prior to | January 2018 R=F-NF—F—HAHBKE
In the comparative period, amounts received before the related work was performed R EEAM - KRBT EETTA T
were presented as “receipts in advance” under “trade and other payables”. These HETRIE S REMENFKIEIIRT
balances have been reclassified on | January 2018 as shown in Note 18 (See Note 25 AIFBWRFKIE] - BT I18FT
1 (c)(ii))- ™ REREBERZE-N\F—A—

U]

(m)

(n)

HEFHDERME(G)) °

Trade and other receivables ) ESRHEHAMERRE

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an unconditional right to receive P R T A 7N B [ER A A AR R AR R Ak
consideration. A right to receive consideration is unconditional if only the passage of BAREBEER - MR tZzairRE
time is required before payment of that consideration is due. AEFE AR — R - BIRERER

T8 R AR 1

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using the effective interest method less JE WL SR IE 1% {5 A B BRI =K 4% # 5
allowance for credit losses (See Note |(i)(i)). AR E BB BRI BR (R MTEE1()
@) °

Interest-bearing borrowings (m) FEHER

Interest-bearing borrowings are measured initially at fair value less transaction costs. FFEERTIEARBEREZKAY
Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated at amortised it - KU LERR - sHEERTD
cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense is recognised in accordance FRAERF R ERESRKAZS - F)
with the Group's accounting policy for borrowing costs (See Note | (t)). B TIBBEAE B A BERKAN

BRIRRMER (M) -

Trade and other payables (n) EZRHEMEMNRIE

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently stated B REMENRIBNLERAREE
at amortised cost unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case R - M E & AR AR - B
they are stated at cost. BN ENTEXN - EEZIBERT

APRRATIER
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt 75 HR 2R MY

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B =HEEBIN - JUAARKTIR)

160

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(o)

P)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand, demand deposits

with banks and other financial institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments

that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to an

insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within three months of maturity at

acquisition. Cash and cash equivalents are assessed for expected credit losses (ECL)

in accordance with the policy set out in the Note I(i)(i).

Employee benefits

(i)

(ii)

Short-term employee benefits and contributions to defined
contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions to defined
contribution retirement plans and the cost of non-monetary benefits
are accrued in the year in which the associated services are rendered by
employees. Where payment or settlement is deferred and the effect would be

material, these amounts are stated at their present values.

Annual contributions to retirement benefit schemes operated by the
government in the PRC are recognised in the profit or loss as and when

incurred.

Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to employees is recognised as an
employee cost with a corresponding increase in a capital reserve within equity.
The fair value is measured at grant date using the binomial lattice model, taking
into account the terms and conditions upon which the options were granted.
Where the employees have to meet vesting conditions before becoming
unconditionally entitled to the options, the total estimated fair value of the
options is spread over the vesting period, taking into account the probability

that the options will vest.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(]

(q)

Employee benefits (Cont'd)

(ii)

(iii)

Share-based payments (Cont'd)

During the vesting period, the number of share options that is expected
to vest is reviewed. Any resulting adjustment to the cumulative fair value
recognised in prior years is charged/credited to the profit or loss for the year
of the review, unless the original employee expenses qualify for recognition
as an asset, with a corresponding adjustment to the capital reserve. On
vesting date, the amount recognised as an expense is adjusted to reflect the
actual number of options that vest (with a corresponding adjustment to the
capital reserve) except where forfeiture is only due to not achieving vesting
conditions that relate to the market price of the Company's shares. The equity
amount is recognised in the capital reserve until either the option is exercised
(when it is included in the amount recognised in share capital for the shares

issued) or the option expires (when it is released directly to retained profits).

Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of when the Group can
no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits and when it recognises

restructuring costs involving the payment of termination benefits.

Income tax

Income tax for the period comprises current tax and movements in deferred tax assets

and liabilities. Current tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are

recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that they relate to items recognised

in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case the relevant

amounts of tax are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,

respectively.

(q)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o 35 SRR B EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B =HEEBIN - JUAARKTIR)

162

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

(q)

Income tax (Cont'd)
Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the period, using
tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period, and any

adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and taxable temporary
differences respectively, being the differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets

also arise from unused tax losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax liabilities, and all deferred tax
assets to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits that
may support the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences include those that will arise from the reversal of existing taxable temporary
differences, provided those differences relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either in the same period as the
expected reversal of the deductible temporary difference or in periods into which
a tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or forward. The
same criteria are adopted when determining whether existing taxable temporary
differences support the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from unused tax
losses and credits, that is, those differences are taken into account if they relate to the
same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in a

period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be utilised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

| SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

(q)

Income tax (Cont'd)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets and liabilities are those
temporary differences arising from good will not deductible for tax purposes, initial
recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit
(provided they are not part of a business combination), and temporary differences
relating to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case of taxable
differences, the Group controls the timing of the reversal and it is probable that the
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible

differences, unless it is probable that they will reverse in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based on the expected manner
of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using
tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at the end of each reporting
period and is reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such
reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable

profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of dividends are recognized

when the liability to pay the related dividends is recognized.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and movements therein, are
presented separately from each other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset
against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets against deferred tax liabilities, if
the Company or the Group has the legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets

against current tax liabilities and the following additional conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the Group intends either
to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability

simultaneously; or
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HAAREFIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

(q)

(r)

Income tax (Cont'd)
= in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they relate to income taxes

levied by the same taxation authority on either:

- the same taxable entity; or

= different taxable entities, which, in each future period in which
significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected
to be settled or recovered, intend to realise the current tax assets
and settle the current tax liabilities on a net basis or realise and settle

simuftaneously.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a legal or constructive obligation
arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where
the time value of money is material, provisions are stated at the present value of the

expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required, or
the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent
liability, unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities

unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

YICHANG HEC CHANGJIANG PHARMACEUTICAL CO., LTD.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

| SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

O]

Revenue and other income
Income is classified by the Group as revenue when it arises from the sale of goods,
the provision of services or the use by others of the Group’s assets under leases in

the ordinary course of the Group’s business.

Revenue is recognised when control over a product or service is transferred to the
customer, or the lessee has the right to use the asset, at the amount of promised
consideration to which the Group is expected to be entitled, excluding those
amounts collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue excludes value added tax or

other sales taxes and is after deduction of any trade discounts.

Further details of the Group's revenue and other income recognition policies are as

follows:

(i) Sale of goods
Revenue is recognised the customer take possession of and accepts the
products. Revenue excludes value added tax or other sales taxes and is after

deduction of any trade discounts.

In the comparative period, revenue from sales of goods was recognised when
goods leave the warehouse and were delivered to the location designed by
the customers and the related risks and rewards of ownership of the goods

are considered to have been transferred to the customers.

(iij)  Interest income
Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the effective interest method.
For financial assets measured at amortised cost or FVOCI (recycling) that are
not credit-impaired, the effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying
amount of the asset. For credit-impaired financial assets, the effective interest
rate is applied to the amortised cost (i.e. gross carrying amount net of loss

allowance) of the asset (See Note |(i)(i)).
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B =HEEBIN - JUAARKTIR)

| SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd) | BEREHBEEE)
(s) Revenue and other income (Cont'd) (s) HEBEERHMBAGE)

(iii)  Government grants
Government grants are recognised in the statements of financial position
initially when there is reasonable assurance that they will be received and that
the Group will comply with the conditions attaching to them. Grants that
compensate the Group for expenses incurred are recognised as income in
profit or loss on a systematic basis in the same periods in which the expenses
are incurred. Grants that compensate the Group for the cost of an asset are
recognised initially as deferred income and amortised to profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the useful life of the asset by way of recognized in other

income.

(t) Borrowing costs (t)
Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of an asset which necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get
ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of a qualifying asset
commences when expenditure for the asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are
being incurred and activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for its intended use
or sale are in progress. Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when
substantially all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its intended

use or sale are interrupted or complete.

(u) Translation of foreign currencies (u)
Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated at the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of the

reporting period. Exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss.
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| SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd) | BAEHBEE)
(u) Translation of foreign currencies (Cont'd) (u) NEBRE(E)
Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of historical cost REERARAINESHERMFEEREE
in a foreign currency are translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the KREE R 5 B HI A B SN E & &

()

transaction dates. The transaction date is the date on which the Group initially
recognises such non-monetary assets or liabilities. Non-monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies that are stated at fair value are translated using the

foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was measured.

Related parties v)
(@ A person, or a close member of that person'’s family, is related to the Group if

that person:

0) has control or joint control over the Group;

(ii) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the Group or the

Group's parent.

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following conditions applies:

0) The entity and the Group are members of the same group (which
means that each parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to

the others).

(i)~ One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an
associate or joint venture of a member of a group of which the other

entity is a member).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Related parties (Cont'd)

| BAEHEE(E)
v) BEALE)

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following conditions applies: (b)

(Cont'd)

(i) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an

associate of the third entity.

(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of

employees of either the Group or an entity related to the Group.

(viy  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the entity or

is a member of the key management personnel of the entity (or of a

parent of the entity).

(viii)  The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part, provides

key management personnel services to the Group or to the Group's

parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family members who may

be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that person in their dealings

with the entity.

YICHANG HEC CHANGJIANG PHARMACEUTICAL CO., LTD.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

)

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item reported in the financial
statements, are identified from the financial information provided regularly to the
Group's most senior executive management for the purposes of allocating resources
to, and assessing the performance of, the Group’s various lines of business and

geographical locations.

The chief operating decision maker of the Group assesses the performance and
allocates the resources of the Group as a whole, as all of the Group's activities are
considered to be primarily dependent on the performance on sales of pharmaceutical
products. Therefore, management considers there to be only one operating segment
under the requirements of IFRS 8, Operating Segments. In this regard, no segment

information is presented for the year end 31 December 2018.

No geographic information is shown as the Group’s operating profit is derived from

activities of manufacture and sale of pharmaceutical products in the PRC.

2 ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

The key sources of estimation uncertainty and critical accounting judgments in applying the

Group's accounting policies are described below.

(@)

Depreciation
Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the

estimated useful lives, after taking into account the estimated residual value.

The Group reviews annually the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any.
The depreciation expense for future years is adjusted if there are significant changes

from previous estimation.
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2

170

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS (Contd)

(b)

©

Impairments

0]

(i)

In considering the impairment losses that may be required for certain property,
plant and equipment, intangible assets, goodwill and interests in lease hold land
held for own use under operating leases, recoverable amount of these assets
needs to be determined. The recoverable amount is the greater of the net
selling price and the value in use. It is difficult to precisely estimate selling price
because quoted market prices for these assets may not be readily available.
In determining the value in use, expected cash flows generated by the asset
are discounted to their present value, which requires significant judgment
relating to items such as level of revenue and amount of operating costs. The
Group uses all readily available information in determining an amount that is
reasonable approximation of recoverable amount, including estimates based
on reasonable and supportable assumptions and projections of items such as

revenue and operating costs.

Impairment losses for doubtful debts are assessed and provided based on the
directors’ regular review of ageing analysis and evaluation of collectability. A
considerable level of judgment is exercised by the directors when assessing

the credit worthiness and past collection history of each individual customer.

An increase or decrease in the above impairment losses would affect the net

profit or loss in future years.

Capitalised development costs

Development costs are capitalised in accordance with the accounting policy for

research and development costs in Note | (g) to the financial statements. Determining

the amounts to be capitalised requires management to make assumptions regarding
the expected future cash generation of the assets, discount rates to be applied and

the expected period of benefits. At 31 December 2018, the best estimate of the

carrying amount of capitalised development costs was RMB129,471,000. Further

details are contained in Note | | to the financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 7S AR MY

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(Br=HEHEBIN - GAARBKTITR)

REVENUE 3 EXHE
The principal activities of the Group are manufacturing and sales of pharmaceuticals. AEENFEXEBREMEERMEE -
Revenue represents the sales value of goods supplied to customers. Revenue excludes sales EHEEEHREARPFNERNEEEE - &
taxes and surcharges and is after deduction of any trade discounts. The amount of each EETRIEEERLWME - W EHBREMR
significant category of revenue is as follows: B - S EEXBHBNSTEOT
2018 2017
—EB-N\F —E—tF
(Note)
(FfaE)
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT ARETF T
Revenue from contracts with customers B EREERFISREERNETF
within the scope of IFRS 15 BEWA
Sales of anti-viral drugs SHETRS Y 2,254,227 1,407,948
Sales of cardiovascular drugs FHE LT B 100,677 96,331
Sales of endocrine and metabolic drugs SHE N D I KA 25 100,740 41,355
Sales of other medical products THE H hEEY) 54,832 55933
2,510,476 1,601,567
Note: The Group has initially applied IFRS 15 using the calculative effect method. Under this method, Mt © ANEEE RN R R EEY) LIRS
the comparative information is not restated and was prepared in accordance with IFRS 18 and HELERNE 155 - REZFE - WRERE
IFRS I'l (See Note |(c)(ii)). AE Y| B IR BB R R R B S 185K R B
PREATSREERE | RARE o (RHMEEI(0)
iy )
The Group's customer base is diversified and includes two customers (2017: one) with rEENEFPHZTIL  BEZZT—)\F
whom transactions have exceeded 0% of the Group's revenues for the year ended 31 TZA=T—HILEFE  BEMEZ(ZZE
December 2018, including sales to entities which are known to the Group to be under —tF  —R)RGFEBBAREEE 0%
common control with single customer. Revenues from these customers amounted to WEF(BREANEEMEHELREP T H#
approximately RMB1,290,954,000 (2017: RMB638,490,000). Details of concentrations of EfEH 2 BEHE - REZRZEREFPHE
credit risk arising from these customers are set out in Note 25(a). #3E ARME 129095400070 (ZF—+4F - A

R¥6384900007T) ° ZERFHELMEE
[E\Bs =P RE BB EE25(a) °
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B =HEEBIN - JUAARKTIR)

4 OTHER INCOME 4 Hiblg A

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥TR ARETT

Government grants BT
— Unconditional subsidies — (A B 5,565 2,486
— Conditional subsidies (Note 21) — Bt (FtEE21) 4,379 4379
Interest income FEUA 14,601 14,737
Others HAth 56 221
24,601 21,823

5 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 5 BRBEATZE R
Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting): BRB AR A R (GEA) AT BB S
fom =
(a) Finance costs (@ ®MERE

2018 2017
—E-N\F Tt
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETTT
Interest on bank loans IRITERF B 1,418 4,289
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(Br=HEHEBIN - GAARBKTITR)

5 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (Cont'd) 5 MREBLADREFI ()
(b) Staff costs (b) EBIRXK
2018 2017
—EB-N\F —F—LF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T AREFT
Salaries, wages, bonuses and benefits HéE - TE - ARG 270,962 105,101
Contributions to defined contribution TERRNE R8It
retirement benefit schemes 33,806 14,203

304,768 119,304

Pursuant to the relevant labour rules and regulations in the PRC, the Group  RIBEF EIRERE L E R A RRY - AEEZ i h
participates in defined contribution retirement benefit schemes (the "“Schemes”) b 75 KT 4% B AR 4k ) T2 BB BURRAB A ET &I (T 5
organised by the local government authorities whereby the Group is required to ~ &11) * &t - AEEERREEREEHLHNER
make contributions to the Schemes based on certain percentages of the eligible 7Lt EIEL TR 1077 BUF# B A HE MR KB
employee’s salaries. The local government authorities are responsible for the B2 ERARSHNEE « B LRI - KEE
entire pension obligations payable to the retired employees. The Group has no 8 B A BAT S AT B B BRI R E AR KB ARF] o
other obligations for payments of retirement and other post-retirement benefits of

employees other than the contributions described above.
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staff costs, depreciation expenses and operating lease charges, which amount is
also included in the respective total amounts disclosed separately above or in

the Note 5(b) for each of these types of expenses.

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (Cont'd) MREBLADEF (&
Other items (c) HMIER
2018 2017
—EB-N\F —E—tF
(Note)
(H3E)
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
FeE AR¥T T ARETT
Depreciation E 10 37,186 31,793
Less: amount capitalised as development costs W BNMEERLT (3,078) (5,985)
34,108 25,808
Amortisation i Il 26,980 17,987
Auditor's remuneration ZERT N
— audit services — LIRS 1,300 1,300
— non-audit services — IEBEZ RS 1,450 600
Provision/(reversal) of impairment losses on BEEEETIE (8) 25(a)
— trade receivables — & 5 EWFIE 2,391 (2,228)
— other receivables — H fth fE IR (1,178) 733
Operating lease charges: minimum lease payment &S EMH : HEAEEH 1,164 655
Net foreign exchange (gain)/loss FE 3 (W2k), /B8 35 (7,920) 24,733
Research and development cost (i) T2 K AN (i) 224,103 96915
Cost of inventories (ii) Ea =& ()! 15 188,424 142,484
Note: The Group has initially applied IFRS |5 and IFRS 9 at | January 2018. Under the transition Mz : "EBER_ZE—N\F—H—HB#®
methods chosen, comparative information is not restated. See Note 1(c). IR E R BB B S 3RS YE BI SR 1557 M
BIFR B 5 ¥R 2 RISEO5% - ARIBPTIE
WERE  BRABILERER - R
FI=EI(c) °
0) Research and development cost include RMB57,577,000 (2017: [0) HEKABEEE T A -
RMB31,984,000) relating to staff costs, depreciation expenses, amortisation TERSY HEEmITMKE
expenses and operating lease charges, which amount is also included in the HESERBABENO Y H AEREK
respective total amounts disclosed separately above or in the Note 5(b) for 57577000 ( —ZE—+HF : A
each of these types of expenses. R #31984,0007T) * LA E5kI8
It A B RES (D) IS A
RRIBE T REREESTEA o
(if) Cost of inventories include RMB60,01 1,000 (2017: RMB36,909,000) relating to (ii) FEKABSHEEE TAAKX - 37

ERXMKgEHEEBARA
B AR 60,011,000 (=
T—+ % AR 36909000
7T) LA E @RI ET A L EHT
FE5(b)REEF ST RIE L B ER R
EEESEEA o
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(Br=HEHEBIN - GAARBKTITR)

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR 6 GEBEEREMEZEKNERANFER
LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(a) Taxation in the consolidated statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive (@) HFEBREREMZERZRANRE
income represents: bkt
2018 2017
—E-N\F e
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETFT
Current tax ENER%1E
Provision for PRC CIT for the year (Note 23(a)) ANEE B b RIS (P EE23@)) 203,912 138264
Under-provision for PRC CIT in respect of prior years 3@k & & # B> ¥ FTS T B & 1,039 402
204,951 138,666
Deferred tax IEFEBIE
Origination of temporary differences TR EREREAL (3,845) (16,828)
Total income tax FriSBi%E 201,106 121,838
(b) Reconciliation between income tax expenses and accounting profit at applicable tax (b) FPIETFX EIRE AN R ER Rt
rates: i MBI RR
2018 2017
—E-N\EF —F—tF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETT
Profit before taxation R B Az A 1,102,324 748,195
Applicable tax rate (i) BAE() 25% 25%
Notional tax on profit before taxation MR A A A HEE F 18 275,581 187,049
Under-provision for PRC CIT in respect of prior years i@ & [E B> ZEFTERH T B BE 1,039 402
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses AR HFL R S YR & 25,770 3,720
Tax effect of preferential tax rate (ii) [EL ViR S:n)=Z-4()) (120,290) (80,052)
Tax effect of bonus deduction of research and g g Enl-Z- 4\
development expenses (iii) (7,292) (2.246)
Tax effect of unused tax losses not recognised RERK AT AR BB RGBT E 26,298 12,965
Actual Tax expenses Frigfipa sz 201,106 121,838
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6

176

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR 6 GEBEERHMEARERANAEHRE)

LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (Contd)

(b) Reconciliation between income tax expenses and accounting profit at applicable tax (b) FIEHHEREABRGENGE
rates: (Cont'd) B - (F)
(i)  The PRC CIT rate is 25%. ()  PEEEMEHRER2% -

(i) The PRC CIT Law allows enterprises to apply for the certificate of “High and (i)
New Technology Enterprise” (“HNTE") which entitles the qualified companies
to a preferential income tax rate of 15%. The Company was recognised as
HNTE and enjoyed a preferential CIT rate of 15% for the years ended 3|
December 2018 and 2017.

(i) According to relevant tax rules in the PRC, qualified research and (iii)
development expenses (“R&D expenses”), which are not capitalised, are
allowed for bonus deduction for income tax purpose, i.e. an additional 75% of

such expenses could be deemed as deductible expenses.

YICHANG HEC CHANGJIANG PHARMACEUTICAL CO., LTD. EERBE X RIEEZR B ERA R

REGEMEBAATRES
FREAIGFEMEEITS
Rt AEBARN
FH IS%MEBRFTEBIE - AR
RIERE AR B
HE-Z - \FER-_ZF—tF
TZA=+-HIEEEERI5%
B ERTSRBERIE o

RBHEMEBRBRA - KK
AR 2 A G R
([ 8B )) AIR FT{S BE AT b0
FHHARR - BIRZ RS 2 BRIN75%A]
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(Br=HEHEBIN - GAARBKTITR)

7 DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ REMUNERATION 7 BEEREEMHS
The details of directors’ and supervisors' remuneration are disclosed as follows: EENEEMEWENT -

Contributions
to defined
Salaries, contribution

allowances retirement

Directors’  and benefits benefit Discretionary 2018

fees in kind schemes bonuses Total
ERHR

E2 =11 RAER —Z-N\§

EEHE  REVEA TR BB st

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TRE ARMTT AR¥TRT ARETT AR%TR

Executive directors HITES

Mr. Jiang Juncai B RE - 209 21 135 365
Mr. Wang Danjin FREEE - 186 16 105 307
Mr. Chen Yangui BRAEERE - 238 24 180 442
Mr. Zhu Qiaohong RIOHEEE - 188 16 105 309
Mr Li Shuang (i) FRFEA() - 173 16 105 294
Non-executive directors FHTES

Mr. Tang Xinfa AR E - - - - -
Mr. Mo Kit (ii) EANEE) - - - - -

Independent non-executive directors BYFHTES

Mr. Tang Jianxin BENEE 100 - - - 100
Mr. Fu Hailiang BREE 100 - - - 100
Mr. Lee Chi Ming FEREE 160 - - - 160
Supervisors Ex

Ms. Huang Fangfang BERANL - - - - -
Mr. Wang Shengchao FHEEE - 112 12 108 232
Mr. Luo Zhonghua BRELL - - - - -
Total FeE 360 1,106 105 738 2,309
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7 DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ REMUNERATION (Contd) 7 EEREEME(E)
Contributions
to defined
Salaries, contribution
allowances retirement
Directors’ and benefits benefit Discretionary 2017
fees in kind schemes bonuses Total
ERHH
o= RINER —B—+5F
EE0E  REVEN BE 5 igTEa st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT  ARETT AR®TRT ARETT ARETR
Executive directors HITES
Mr. Jiang Juncai B EE = 194 20 110 324
Mr. Wang Danjin FRREE - 163 5 77 255
Mr. Chen Yangui R = 214 20 132 366
Mr. Zhu Qiaohong RItEE - 170 5 77 262
Non-executive directors kHTES
Mr. Tang Xinfa BELLE - - - - -
Mr. Zhu Yingwei RRBELE - - - - -
Mr. Mo Kit ENEE - - - - -
Independent non-executive directors BIFHTES
Mr. Tang Jianxin BEMTE 80 - - - 80
Mr. Fu Hailiang s 80 - - - 80
Mr. Lee Chi Ming LA 160 = = = 160
Supervisors E=x
Ms. Huang Fangfang BESLT - _ _ _ _
Mr. Wang Shengchao FREBEE - 98 9 50 157
Mr. Luo Zhonghua ERELE = = - - -
Ms. Xue Lian (iif) 2= oun(i) - 86 12 - 98
Mr. Lin Jian (ii) REE ST A (i) = = = = =
Total Bt 320 925 9l 446 1782
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DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ REMUNERATION (Cont'd)

0] Mr. Li Shuang was appointed as executive directors on 8 June 2018.

(ii) Mr. Mo Kit retired as non-executive director on 8 June 2018.

(i)~ Ms. Xue Lian and Mr. Lin Jian resigned as supervisor on 21 July 2017 and 6 June 2017

respectively.

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, two (2017: three) is the director whose
endowments are disclosed in Note 7. The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the

other three (2017: two) individuals are as follows:

SRR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(Br=HEHEBIN - GAARBKTITR)

7 ESREEME(R)

(i) TRAEENRZZ—N\FAANBEZ
EARITES -

iy FEREERZZT-NFESANBRME
FEITES -

(i) EBELLRMREESHIN _-_T—+
FELA-+—RAR=ZZF—tFXAX
BEHMIEE -

8 REHFHAL

hEmEEFMALH  HbmA(ZF—+
FZRIRER  WEFHFMBEERMET -
BRT=BAL(ZZ—LF : MB)NFHE

BT -
2018 2017
—2-N\F —EtfF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARETT
Salaries and other emoluments T M E b 1,068 384
Discretionary bonuses (=R 288 129
Contribution to retirement schemes RIRFTEIE IR 23 47
1,379 560

The emoluments of the three (2017: two) individuals with the highest emoluments are

within the following bands:

SE(CELF MR REFALOFIA T
T

2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—tF

Number of Number of

Individuals Individuals

AE N

Nil to HKD 1,000,000 Z % 1,000,000 7T 3 2
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9 EARNINGS PER SHARE 9 BREF
(a) Basic earnings per share @ ESRELXER
The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the profit attributable SEERERBREARQR LR
to ordinary equity shareholders of the Company of RMB942,536,000 (2017: 1 7 IR 5RO A s A R 942,536,000
RMB647,101,000) and the weighted average of 452,022,850(2017: 451,904,494) T(ZZT—+F : ARM647,101,000
ordinary shares in issue during the year, calculated as follows: L) MEARNBBETEBRMET

¥ #452,022850 k ( = F — £ F -
451,904,494 0% ) B E%E -

Weighted average number of ordinary shares: LBAT A DIRE SN
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—tF
shares shares
R g8
Issued ordinary shares at | January (Note 24(c)) R—A—BRBEBTEBR(HE24() 452,022,850 450,822,850
Effect of shares issued (Note 24(c)) BEITRG B E (M5E24(c)) = 1,081,644
Weighted average number of ordinary shares R+ A=+—BEBARNETHE
at 31 December 452,022,850 451,904,494
(b) Diluted earnings per share (b) BREHEF
There were no dilutive potential ordinary shares in 2018 and 2017, and therefore, RZB-N\FRZZB—+F UW/\A
diluted earnings per share is the same as the basic eamnings per share. EEENEE TR  MEREE

BN R EARRRER -

180 YICHANG HEC CHANGJIANG PHARMACEUTICAL CO., LTD. EERBE X RIEEZR B ERA R



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R M EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
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10 FIXED ASSETS 10 EEEE

Interests in

leasehold

land held

for own

Office use under

Plant and equipment Motor  Construction operating
Buildings ~ Machinery  and others vehicles  in progress Sub-total leases Total

RELEHS

HAERE KRR
AERET B Rift g HRIE Mt BELBESR &t

RMBOOD RMBO0D RMBOD RMBOOD RMBOO RMBOOD RMBO0D RMBO0
ARETRL  ARETT ARBTL ARBTR ARETL ARETR ARETR  ARETR

Cost: HA:
At | January 2017 RZZ—tF-A-H 25975 202831 74756 64l 3642 557845 96,709 654554
Additions RE 67526 9,677 11522 649 117674 207,048 - 207,048
Transfer from construction in progress B T 1287 409 5091 3628 = (9.128) = = =
Disposals RE - (1,020) (2726) 11 = (4257) - (4257)
At 31 December 2017 RZF—tE+ZA=1-H 343910 216579 87,180 7 112,188 760636 96,709 857,345
Additions RE 181,825 34003 11516 - 417957 645301 75353 720654
Transfer from construction in progress ~ BERT12E7 133743 19,549 11272 - (164564) - - -
Disposals RE = (5733) (1027) = - (6.760) - (6760)
At 31 December 2018 R=E-\E+=f=+-H 659478 264398 108941 L 365,581 139,177 172062 157139
Accumulated depreciation: 2iHE:
At | January 2017 RZZ—tE-HA-R (49.276) (60.935) (33385) (334) - (143930) (14942) (158872)
Charge for the year FRR (8,646) (12,380) (8763) ) - (29.861) (1932) (31,793)
Wiritten-back on disposals R ERH - 918 2286 34| - 3545 - 3545
At 31 December 2017 R=E—+5+-A=1-H (57922) (72.397) (39,862) (65) - (170246) (16874) (187,120)
Charge for the year FRk (10,624) (14341) (9822) ) - (34860) (2326) (37.186)
Wiritten-back on disposals PR BRI - 3647 899 - - 4546 - 4546
At 31 December 2018 RZF-N\E+ZA=1-H (68,546) (83091) (48,785) (138) - (200560) (19,200) 219,760
Carrying amount: I
At 31 December 2018 R=E-\E+=f=+-H 590932 181,307 60,156 4] 365,581 1198617 152862 1,351 479
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+E+-A=1-H 285988 144,182 47318 714 112,188 590390 79835 670225
0) All property, plant and equipment owned by the Group are located in the PRC. (@) REEBEZFEME - BEKRR
B E -
(i) As at 31 December 2018, the Group was applying for certificates of ownership for iy MZZBE-—NF+ZA=+—H K&
certain properties, with carrying value of RMB298,755,000 (2017: RMB84,512,000). It BREE A A K #298,755,0007T
The directors of the Company are of the opinion that the use of and the conduct of (ZZ—t%F : ARM84,512,0007T) &)
operating activities at the properties referred to above are not affected by the fact BETYVXERFRERESE - ARAE
that the Group has not yet obtained the relevant properties title certificates. FRBAREE M ARG HEY 5
FIBREU N EEM bt ki
= 3R
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(B =HEEBIN - JUAARKTIR)

11 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 1 \EREE

Capitalised

development

costs Patents Total
BB -y #t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARKETT ARET T ARET T
Cost: RN :
At | January 2017 RZZE—+F—H—H = - -
Capitalised development costs (i) BAREFAEH() 57,157 = 57,157
Addition through acquisition of a subsidiary BB I N R ETIE
(Note 12) (FF7E12) = 335,000 335,000
At 31 December 2017 R-F—tF+-A=+—H 57,157 335,000 392,157
Purchase (Note 14(ii)) BEE (FEE14() - 79,100 79,100
Capitalised development costs (i) BRI () 72314 = 72,314
At 31 December 2018 RZT—NF+=A=+—H 129,471 414,100 543,571
Accumulated amortisation: E-5E N
At | January 2017 RZT—+F—H—H = = =
Charge for the year FRNBR - (17,987) (17.987)
At 31 December 2017 RZE—tF+=-A=+—H - (17,987) (17,987)
Charge for the year F AR - (26,980) (26,980)
e | w2 = N2 O SR SSRGS
Net book value: BRERE :
At 31 December 2018 R_E-)\F+-_HA=+—H 129471 369,133 498,604
At 31 December 2017 RZT—+tF+=-A=+—H 57,157 317,013 374,170
0} The Group has obtained the necessary approvals and permits for clinical trials for a (i) AEER-_ZT—-N\F+A=+—H
series of insulin research and development projects by the end of 31 December 2018. ERIE S — R RS XM EIE B AR
The directors of the Company are of the opinion that the development expenditure RABIE AR SCRETA - RIS
of the related projects meet the criteria of capitalisation after obtained the approval BRASABRNA R ERE M RER
of clinical trial and capitalised the expenditure as development costs under intangible BETHRAZEL LR  AAREERE
assets. As at 31 December 2018, the intangible assets under development were not R ABAEENREERTEERNL
yet ready for use. BE - R_ZE-—NF+_A=+—

B FREPELEERTAER o
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GOODWILL

SRR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(Br=HEHEBIN - GAARBKTITR)

2018
—B-N\F
RMB’000
AR¥TR
Cost and carrying amount B AN K BREE
At | January 2017 R-Z—+F—HA—H -
Addition through acquisition of a subsidiary 7R UE T B A R RIS 75,896
At 31 December 2017, 1 January 2018 and 31 December 2018 RZTB—tF+-_A=+—8"
2-\F-HA-BK
—ZT—)\F+=-—A=+—8H 75,896

Acquisition of HEC TaiGen

Pursuant to the agreement signed on 30 October 2016 among the Company, TaiGen
Biopharmaceuticals Co. (Beijing), Ltd. (“TaiGen") and TaiGen Biopharmaceuticals Holdings
Ltd., which is the controlling shareholder of TaiGen, the Company and TaiGen set up
Dongguan HEC TaiGen Biopharmaceuticals Co., Ltd. (3R G A R B B3 AR & T
A7), “HEC TaiGen") in the PRC on 10 January 2017. HEC TaiGen engages in the research,
development, production and sales of new anti-Hepatitis C drugs. The registered capital of
HEC TaiGen was RMB683,400,000, of which the Company contributes RMB348,400,000
by way of cash and TaiGen contributes RMB335,000,000 by way of injection of the patents
related to Furaprevir (See Note | 1), a protease inhibitor for Hepatitis C. Upon set up of
HEC TaiGen, the Company and TaiGen held 51% and 49% of the equity interests of HEC

TaiGen, respectively.

On 27 March 2017, the Company entered into an equity transfer agreement (“Equity
Transfer Agreement”) with TaiGen and acquired additional 9% equity interests in the HEC
TaiGen held by TaiGen. The consideration of the equity transfer was USD20,000,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB37,402,000). Upon completion of the equity transfer,
the Company and TaiGen held 60% and 40% of the equity interests of HEC TaiGen,
respectively. Management considers the above transactions, as a whole, consist an acquisition
of 60% equity interests of HEC TaiGen. The differences between the total consideration of
60% equity interests of HEC TaiGen and net asset value of HEC TaiGen attributed to the

Company were recognised as goodwill, which was amounting to RMB75,896,000.

R R AR

RIEAAR - KEBEREILR)ERA A
(TRE ) RAS R ARAR R A = 58 BR824
BRBRHDERATNRZZE—AR"F+A=1TH%E
ENWME - AAREARN =T —+F—A
THEFBERIRTR G AR BERES
BEEAR([RERAR]) - REXAFHE
EMAFFENTE  EEREE - RBX
ANREFEM & AR A AR #683,4000007T + H
FARRARIAR & HE A K #348400,0007T -
ARESAEARITE B B 5I BHK B35 2 2 A
F R HE AR 3350000007C (RHIFEN) o
RERARRKILE  ARABREANRIRIFE
HIEH ARSI %RAI%RHE

RZZ—tF=A=+tH  ARAHERS
RIS AR sEE s ([ AR e s |) - 0%
NI K R PTHE R 5 K R 9% o fRiksd
AR B 5200000003 T (KIRER AR
137,402,0007T) ° RRAEBEETTAN IR © AR A K
K= D RIS A RIS A 5 60% KR 40%0HE © &
BER EMRPIER—ERE  REWKER
BSH AR RO0%AXIE © RRBIHGERS K AR 60%
REMENBREEARREBEREHAS
MEEFEZENZERAREE €84
AR¥E75,896,0007T ©
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184

GOODWILL (Contd)

Pursuant to the Equity Transfer Agreement, subject to the positive result of Phase Il clinical
trial of new anti-Hepatitis C drugs and certain conditions, the Company will additionally pay
USD20,000,000 in aggregate to TaiGen by four instalments and offer a right to TaiGen to
purchase up to 9% equity interests in HEC TaiGen from the Company at the price equal to
that set out in Equity Transfer Agreement. As at 31 December 2018, the agreed conditions

have not yet been met.

Impairment tests for cash-generating units containing goodwill
Goodwill is allocated to the Group's cash-generating units (CGU) identified according to

country of operation and operating segment as follows:

12 EEE)

RIBAREE R R - BURRIA R 5 5
BRRARE EEERRE TREGE - AR
A 53 PO HA 0 K SRR SN S #£5+20,000,000%
T WAARE TSR IRAEEE AT
HERAADREE RGN AR TEIBIBR
REERN - R=Z—\F+=ZA=+—8 "
R E IR 1 AR EERK, ©

BEBENRSELENHBENR
AERBEEMERR R TIIEE D BN E
EFREANENARERECELBEVREE

HEBN) :
2018 2017
—BE-N\F —ZE—+tF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETIT
HEC TaiGen HEXAS 75,896 75,896

The recoverable amount of the HEC TaiGen is determined based on value-in-use
calculations. These calculations use cash flow projections based on financial budgets
approved by management covering a fourteen-year period. The cash flows are discounted
using a discount rate of 15.23%. The discount rates used are post-tax and reflect specific risks

relating to the HEC TaiGen.

RIS AR EH A E SR REREEFEEE
T ELE FARIRE IR E AT AE R E | 4 BRI 0 1 7
RENRESRETRAGFE - REMEFEM 15.23%H
TIREPH - FIAMREARENRE - Wikts
REAAREBENFERR -
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13 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

As at 31 December 2018, the Company has direct interests in the following subsidiaries,

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

which are private companies. The particulars of the subsidiaries are set out below:

Place of

incorporation

Issued and

fully paid up/

SRR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(Br=HEHEBIN - GAARBKTITR)

13 RKEBARZERE
RZZE-NFTZA=+—H  REERNIA
THBRAB(RIFLTRRHEEERER -
BRMBRRFEEINNT -

Proportion of

direct ownership

Name of company and business registered capital interest  Principal activities
MR R BERITRER

DR EH Feml HEMERA  HEEREELS  ERER

Yichang HEC Pharmaceutical Co. Ltd* PRC RMB2,000,000 100%  Sales of pharmaceutical products
(HERBRBEERAF)

BERGABERRAF k2 AR#2,0000007C 100%  HEBHEER

Yichang HEC Pharmaceutical Manufacturing Co,, Ltd. *  PRC RMB30,000,000 100%  Manufacturing and sales of active
(EERBHUBEERAR) pharmaceutical ingredient

BERGARERRATF k3 AR 300000007 100%  AERHERHE

Dongguan Yangzhikang Pharmaceutical Co,, Ltd* PRC RMB50,000,000 100%  Sales of Pharmaceutical products
(RETECREEEREMERT")

Rl REERRRTAR 3 AR 50,000,000 100%  HEEHEER

HEC TaiGen PRC RMB683,400,000 60%  Research, development, production

and sales of drugs
REAAZ 3 AR 6834000007 60% WP EERHEER
ko The English Translation of the above companies’ names is for reference only. The

official names of these companies are in Chinese
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13 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd) 13 RBEARZREE)
TREINRNEEME—HBEAIERERT
MEBARRBEARRNER - TX2508

BEHBZ AR FIMHIHEAINSHE

The following table lists out the information relating to HEC TaiGen, the only subsidiary of
the Group which has a material non-controlling interest (NCI). The summarised financial

information presented below represents the amounts before any inter-company elimination.

186

2018 2017

—B-N\E —T—+F

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTR AREFT

NCI percentage IR B DL 40% 40%
Current assets mEEE 160,941 195937
Non-current assets JEmBNEE 405,934 443413
Current liabilities mENBRE (5,090) (7,809)
Non-current liabilities FERBAE = -
Net assets FAE 561,785 631,541
Carrying amount of NC| IR AR E A 244,972 252,750
Revenue B - -
Loss and total comprehensive income for the year FEARNERLEEEBALLLE (103,296) (51,859)
Loss allocated to NCI DEEIFE RS ER (41,318) (20,744)
Dividend paid to NCI [ 3EE AR R AR S TR B - =
Cash flows from operating activities KSR SRS (47,227) (167,350)
Cash flows from investing activities BEFZSHRERE 118 129
Cash flows from financing activities BB EHIRESRE 167,500 180,900
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14 PREPAYMENTS 14 FEMNFE

2018 2017
—ZE-N\F T —+tF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARET T

Prepayments for intangible assets mEERNFIE
— Yimitasvir phosphate and follow-up compounds (i) — BB HORM ZE RIEBILE() 460,000 400,000
— Generic drug approvals (i) — {75 I BERE A (i) 257,700 -
Prepayments for fixed assets EEEEENIA 99,809 158811
817,509 55881 |

() On 22 July 2015, the Group entered into an agreement with Sunshine Lake Pharma () RZBE—RFEA=-+=H Fx£H

Co, Ltd. (EER R BEZEGR A7), “Sunshine Lake Pharma’") which is a related
party of the Group. Pursuant to the agreement, the Group have acquired the right
to use all the relevant know-how and patents relating to yimitasvir phosphate and
follow-up direct anti-viral agent compounds (the “Compounds”) and, upon obtaining
the necessary government approvals, the right to manufacture and sell worldwide.
A consideration was RMB700,000,000, which comprised a down payment of
RMB250,000,000 and eight milestone payments totalling RMB450,000,000 payable
upon each stage of development or production approval of yimitasvir phosphate or
the Compounds. The agreement expires on 3| December 2030 or the date when

the first patent mentioned above expires, whichever is earlier.

Up to 3| December 2018, the Group had made payments of RMB460,000,000 to
Sunshine Lake Pharma. As at 3| December 2018, the subjects enrolment process of
Phase Il clinical trial of yimitasvir phosphate was accomplished. Sunshine Lake Pharma
is targeting to obtain the necessary approvals and permits for yimitasvir phosphate in
2019 and begin commercial introduction of relevant products in 2020. The necessary
approvals and production permits for the Compounds are expected to be obtained

in 2020 and onwards.

BHEERRGAEEERAR([ER
REBREERE] SAKBZ@ER )]
i o IRBZME - AEEBE RS
2IRE BB AR ERBEEEN
A tEW( BB E(LEY])
) T /8 A8 B8 B Al 5k 2R R0 5 R 69 45 R
#E - 3 75 BXAS A B BT 5 P A S
& BEEEEHEEMEESHER o
BN ERARE700,0000007T * £
&8 25 A R #250,000,000 7T A1\
% 8% A A\ R #450,000,0007T H) 5 &
RBEREGOR Mt ZE R EOR ELE
MRS EESRIE RN EREN
HoZBBER_E=TF+_A
=+—Ha( EE-BEFIEA M
HERERERE -

BHE-_ZT—N\F+=ZA=+—H1
AEEERMERRGHEXETFAR
#460,0000007C e R=F—\F+=
A=+—8 - BRERECKMEE TAKIIE
BRIRSBOZHEAE - BERRBG N
BN T — NFEUS BB FORMD
BNV ERXKFFAZELR_T_F
FHRABEBE AR ERE o BB
Kt B & WE N BRSO R AR A
BIEHBEN T - TERIABRES -
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B =HEEBIN - JUAARKTIR)

14 PREPAYMENTS (Contd) 14 FENFEE)
(ii) On 10 July 2018, the Company entered into an acquisition agreement with Sunshine (ii) RZE—N\FtA+H KAFHEE
Lake Pharma, pursuant to which the Company agreed to acquire, and Sunshine RRG BT B R E - R
Lake Pharma agreed to dispose of the know-how, approvals for manufacturing AARIREWEE  MERRG &
and marketing obtained from the China Food and Drug Administration (“CFDA") RAELENEEZR((BEEER]D AR
and the right to sale of six pharmaceutical products (“Target Products”) in the MiAE  AFERRR R ERERE
PRC at a consideration of RMB505,200,000, which comprised a prepayment of Bap(REEERDISEBEEE
RMB252,600,000 and six milestone payments totaling RMB252,600,000. An amount R Eme X AR B IR E m A B
of RMB42,100,000 shall be payable to Sunshine Lake Pharma by milestone upon the mHERE - B/ A RKS505200000
Company obtains the CFDA approval of each Target Product. Up to 3| December BIETE R KA R #252,600,0007T
2018, the Group made total payments of RMB336,800,000 to Sunshine Lake Pharma, RNEHE R AR¥E252,6000007T K
and RMB79,100,000 was recognised intangible (Note | 1) as the CFDA approvals for BREMAR - ARBIRES B EERT
two of the Target Products were obtained and transferred to the Group. SR EEE A BRI - ERIERR

K% ¢ B 3 2 1 AR #542,100000 7T e
HE-_Z- \F+-A=+—HI"
MEERERENENREEAR
XU WERTAEE  AEEE
MERRBHEELFEEARE
336,800,0007T * B A R#79,100,0007C
ERER AR (HT=E IR o

15 INVENTORIES 15 7FE&
2018 2017
= N\E Tt
(Note)
(Bi=E)
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARET T
Raw materials R 78,719 43,481
Work in progress R 13,342 26,148
Finished goods SIRK S 64,003 18,338
Goods in transit i8S 8,222 —
164,286 87967

Note: The Group has initially applied IFRS 15 using the cumulative effect and adjusted the opening  Fifat : AEBR ZT—N\F— A —BERMN R ZEED
balance at | January 2018. Comparative information has not been restated. A0 & A BB A T R 5 22 I 28 | S5 I SR B WA RS ©
LEEE R HARED
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15 INVENTORIES (Cont'd)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 7S AR MY

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B BRI -

15 #®FE(E

HAAREFITR)

The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as an expense and included in profit ERRARI W ABRNTFESE TN
and loss is as follows: T

2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—tF

Note RMB’000 RMB'000

k=3 ARBTT ARETFT

Carrying amount of inventories sold BEEFER@E 5(c) 188,424 142,484

16 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 16 EBEZREMERFR

2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—tF

(Note)

(FfH%E)

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTT ARETFT

Current AE

Trade receivables B 5 EWGRIE 747,750 613436

Bills receivable A 235,433 119,534
Less: allowance for doubtful debts (Note 25(a)) W RERERE (MI3E25()) (13,420) (11,060)

969,763 721910

Prepayments for inventories FENFEER 31,713 11,704

Other receivables H o U IR 27,482 16,151
Less: allowance for doubtful debts s REREE (1,626) (2,804)

25,856 13,347

Total HRET 1,027,332 746,961

Note:  Upon the adoption of IFRS 9, the Group made allowance for doubtful debts on trade debtors

and bills receivable base on ECLs from | January 2018. (See Note |(c)(i)).

Bills receivables with carrying value of RMB43,399 (2017: Nil) were pledged as securities of

bank loan of the Group as at 31 December 2018 (see Note 20).

e REMBEBRMBERELRFEIRE  AREF =%
—N\F—A-HERBEEHEEEHRERERR R
FEU IR RARIE 26 o (RMIREI(90)) °

REEBEAARKAZI9L(ZE—HF : T)WEI
ZRER T N\E+-A=+—BEREAERE

EERITE R 2 B (R IEE20) -
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BB A -

190

HAAREFIR)

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Cont'd)
Aging analysis

As of the end of the reporting period, the aging analysis of trade debtors and bills receivable

16 EIREMEKRREGE)
BRI DT

RB|ERR - BURERRREREER(EA

(which are included in trade and other receivables), based on the invoice date and net of B hEMERFIE)REERBHLEMBRR
allowance for doubtful debts, is as follows: IREERNREITAOT ¢

2018 2017
—B-N\% Bt
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T ARETF T
Within 3 months EAA 920,493 689,540
More than 3 months but within | year BA3EARIFER 49,270 32,370
969,763 721,910

Trade debtors are generally due within 30-90 days from the date of billing. Bills receivable FE BRI — M B B BR B A B R 530290 A A E

is due in 3 months or 6 months from the date of billing. The Group'’s credit policy is set
out in Note 25(a). All of the trade and other receivables of the Group are expected to be

recovered within one year.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND OTHER CASH FLOW
INFORMATION

(@) Cash and cash equivalents comprise:

Hy o [EMER B B ARE A HE S 3 A A ke @ A A
AH - ARBEEEBRERERMEE2 @) - AEEME
B 5 N EMEWRFIRER SRR —F Rk o

17 RERREEEHERHMESREEN

() BRERBESLEBEBERE:

2018 2017

—E-N\F —T—+F

(Note)

(Ff3E)

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥TT ARETTT

Cash on hand FeEE S 15 |15
Cash at bank RITERE 593,731 887,068
593,746 887,183

YICHANG HEC CHANGJIANG PHARMACEUTICAL CO., LTD. E&
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

17 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND OTHER CASH FLOW

INFORMATION (Cont'd)

(b) Reconciliation of profit before taxation to cash generated from

operations:

SRR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(Br=HEHEBIN - GAARBKTITR)

17 BHekBELEZEEERHMESREER
(%)

(b) BRUAEFNELERSRESNHE:

2018 2017
—E-N\F e
(Note)
(P&
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
g3 ARBTT ARETFT
Profit before taxation Nl 1,102,324 748,195
Adjustments for: GREE
Depreciation e 5(c) 34,108 25,808
Amortisation ey 5(c) 26,980 17987
Interest income FLEBA 4 (14,601) (14,737)
Finance costs BE A 5(a) 1,418 4289
Loss on disposal of fixed assets HERBTEEENER 2,214 345
Equity settled share-based transactions NS EENRN RS 22 33,540 =
Net foreign exchange (gain)/loss P& 5 (s ), /SIS (10,623) 23,598
Changes in working capital: LIBEpE
(Increase)/decrease in inventories FEOEM)/ B (76,319) 22,657
Increase in trade and other receivables B 5 N E A e U R IE A 0 (285,059) (407,448)
Increase in trade and other payables H 5 R E MR FIEE N 112,512 339,422
Cash generated from operations REMBERS 926,494 760,116

Note: The Group has initially applied IFRS |5 and IFRS 9 at | January 2018. Under the transition

methods chosen, comparative information is not restated. See Note [(c).

BEE : AEER =T —\F— A — B YIS RBBEE R
EHRIE ISR BRI EREERIET o BRIEM
BBEIE - BABIILEER - BHREI( -
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B =HEEBIN - JUAARKTIR)

17 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND OTHER CASH FLOW |7 ¥4 REHSZEEEREMESHESS

INFORMATION (Cont'd) (&)
(c) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities (c) RETHFELEBNHIE
Interest
Bank loans payable Total
BITER EARE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T R ARBTR ARBTR
(Note 20)
(FifzE20)
A | January 2018 RTECAETACE 20000 32 .. 2082
Changes from financing cash flows: RMERSRESE :
Proceeds from new bank loans R EMBITET M E 43,399 - 43,399
Repayments of bank loans EEBRITER (10,000) = (10,000)
Finance costs paid ERE KA - (1,434) (1,434)
Total changes from financing cash flows Eﬁﬁiﬁfi@/ﬁii%?b%% _______________ 33,399 (,439) 31,965
Other change: Hihrg .
_Interest on bankloans (Note5@)  SOEFAIEHIFSG) | SR A 1418
RZE—N\F
At 3| December 2018 +=-—A=+—H 53,399 16 53,415
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

17 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND OTHER CASH FLOW 17

INFORMATION (Cont'd)

(c) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities (Cont'd)

SRR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(Br=HEHEBIN - GAARBKTITR)

RERBRESSERARABESREER
(%)

(c) RETBHFELEEBENEIRE)

Interest
Bank loans payable Total
RITERK AT #st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBETTT ARBETTT AR¥ETTT
(Note 20)
(BfEE20)
At | January 2017 RZZ—+F—HA—H 90,000 137 90,137
Changes from financing cash flows: RMERSRESE :
Repayments of bank loans BBIRITEX (70,000) - (70,000)
Finance costs paid ETRE KA - (4,394) (4,394)
_loletaniten Tondgesnitony | LB pailng (0000 N ) N
Other change: Hih# s
_[nterest on bank loans (Note 5@) _______ STEBHBMES@) ... ol ... A 28
RZZ—+F
At 31 December 2017 +=-—A=+—H 20,000 32 20,032
18 CONTRACT LIABILITIES 18 AHEE
31 December | January 31 December
2018 2018 (i) 2017 (i)
—E-N\F —Z2-N\F e
+=A=+—H —A—H@) +ZA=1+—H(
Note RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
By eE AR¥T T AR®T AREFT
Contract liabilities SHERE
Sales of goods HEER
— Billing in advance of performance —TEURBR R @), (i) 8,095 13,826 =
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B IS ERAR L

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B =HEEBIN - JUAARKTIR)

18 CONTRACT LIABILITIES (Contd)

18 BHNEEE

Notes: MisE -
[0} The Group has initially applied IFRS |5 using the cumulative effect method and adjusted the () AEBR=_Z—N\F—A—HAEHEMNR
opening balance at | January 2018. XY RE R BRI B R S 2ERISE 15570 R
BEGEE -
(ii) Upon the adoption of IFRS 15, these amounts were reclassified from “Trade and other payables” (ii) RERFARBRMBRELRE IS5RR - 2E5D
(See Note 19) to contract liabilities (See Note | (c)(ii)). HhR[ESREMEMNREI(RHEI)EH
DREEHBERME(QG)) °
Movements in contract liabilities EHNEBENES
2018
—E-N\E
RMB’000
AR¥T T
Balance at | January R—A—Br & 13,826
Decrease in contract liabilities as a result of recognising revenue AERFEAW S
during the year that was included in the contract liabilities GtAFEHAaR)m
at the beginning of the year EENEHNEBERD (12,118)
Increase in contract liabilities as a result of billing in advance A B A EE B FIE T
of manufacturing activities EERNEX B EILN 6,387
Balance at 3| December Rt A=+—H8#&% 8,095

All the billings in advance of performance and forward sales instalments received expected

to be recognised as income within one year.

TREAE U ER B PTG TR UL R IR K R BASH 2 BRI 30

RN—FRERREA -
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(Br=HEHEBIN - GAARBKTITR)

19 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 19 EBFRHMENRIE
31 December | January 31 December
2018 2018 2017
—B-N\F —B-N\F —E—tF
+=A=+-A -8B +-A=t+-A
Note RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
FfaE AR¥TR ARETT ARETT
Trade payables B 5 ENRIE 0] 77,625 55,368 55,368
Amounts due to related parties FERHREESE 5 A 27(b) (i) 12,104 20,549 20,549
Receipts in advance TEWRIR - - 13,826
VAT and other taxes payable FERTIS(ER R E A Fi1E 27,002 69,893 69,893
Accrued payroll and benefits FEst TEREF 81,630 39,214 39214
Other payables and accruals HiERIBE R ETER 477,889 350,692 350,692
676,250 535,716 549,542
Note: As a result of the adoption of IFRS |5, advances received is included in contract liabilities and FIEE © AR ER AN BIBR B 75 s &5 2 I 55 1557 » FAUK
disclosed in Note 18 (see Note | (c)(ii)). FIBETAE KB BRI T 185 58 (R M5
1(©)(ii)) °
(1) An ageing analysis of the trade payables based on the invoice date is as follows: ()  ABZRAHREENEZRNFUERROT
IR -
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT R ARBFIT
Within | month MEAR 65,832 44764
Over | month but within 3 months @i EAEMEA R 5,395 4948
Over 3 months but within | year HEMEAEIFR 3,888 2,782
Over | year HBiE | 5 2,510 2,874
77,625 55,368
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B IS ERAR L

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B =HEEBIN - JUAARKTIR)

20 BANKLOANS 20 RITER
As at 31 December 2018, the bank loans were repayable as follows: RZE—N\FE+-_A=+—8 ' BAEERT
BT

2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—tF

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T R ARETFT

Within | year or on demand | FREIRHE K 53,399 10,000

After | year but within 2 years | SF1R1E2F R - 10,000

Total FEE 53,399 20,000
At 31 December 2018, the bank loans were secured as follows: R=F—N\E+=—A=+—H " BITEZKE

T

2018 2017

—E-NF —E—tF

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥TT ARKETT

Secured [mEzigi

— Buildings owned by related parties (i) —BEF A REF() 10,000 20,000

— Bills receivables (Note 16) — R EE(FE16) 43,399 -

Total st 53,399 20,000
() At 3] December 2018, the bank loans of RMBI0,000,000 (2017: RMB20,000,000) i) R-B—AF+-A=+—0 AR

were secured by certain buildings owned by related party 52K %2R 5 ¢ B

oy

%7\ 7] and guaranteed by Shenzhen HEC Industrial Development Co., Ltd. (R&IITT
REGHEEZERBRR AT “Shenzhen HEC Industrial”).

B 100000007 (=T —L4F : ARK
20,000,0007T ) $R1TE R E B B & 7 2R
ERERGHENMMRERRMFTEZ
& TEFHEAW BRI T RS R E S
EERARRB(DRYIRGREZE])E
1R -
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(Br=HEHEBIN - GAARBKTITR)
21 DEFERRED INCOME 21 EERA
2018 2017
—EB-N\F —T—+F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥TT ARET T
At | January n—HA—AH 69,021 73,400
Additions nNE 8,951 -
Credited to profit or loss (Note 4) s ABZ (FisE4) (4,379) (4379)
At 31 December w“t+—_A=+—8” 73,593 69,021
Net carrying amounts representing: FRHEDF{ES
Current portion BNHEAER > 4,379 4,379
Non-current portion JERNERER > 69,214 64,642
73,593 69,021
As at 3| December 2018 and 2017, deferred income of the Group mainly included various R-EBE—NER—_ZE—+EFE+_F=+—
conditional government grants for research and development projects of new or existing A REEMELEKATESTEEB@HED
pharmaceutical products and subsidies relating to purchase of fixed assets. s IR B ZE LAV 218 B B 2 IE B (& U /8
8 AN EBEREEEER BRI o
Deferred income relating to purchase of fixed assets are recognised as income on a straight- EEEE TEENREERAERBEED
line basis over the expected useful life of the relevant assets. BT Al A EHIN A B R EER BUES o
22 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTION 22 LIREBEENRAIZIAXRS

Pursuant to the equity transfer agreement as mentioned in Note 12, the Group granted
an option to TaiGen to purchase up to 9% equity interests in HEC TaiGen for obtaining
the research and development service provided by TaiGen in the clinical trial of new drugs.
These share options will vest once the result of Phase Il clinical trial of new anti-Hepatitis
C drugs is satisfied, and then be exercisable within one month. As at 31 December 2018,
HEC TaiGen is in progress of the Phase Il clinical trial. Phase Il clinical trial is expected to be

accomplished in April 2019.

IRIERFIRE 121 R s R ek~ AN E )
ARETHEE T BIBO%E RS AR AR
TR - DARE(S R A RT BE R IR S B h SR £ A0
BB AR = P9 R S2I BREG PR S SR A SR K
% ZEBRESATEEERATR—EA
ATE -R_F-N\F+_A=+—HB R
AR SIEAETIHERZR - 1HRKH
BIEHER T - AFMOATK -
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B =HEEBIN - JUAARKTIR)

22 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTION (Contd) 22 DIERGEENROINRSZ(E)
No options were exercised during the year ended 31 December 2018 (2017: Nil). REBEE-TE—N\F+_A=1+—HLEFE -

BUEBAEREITE( 2 —1F ) -

The fair value of services received in return for share options granted is measured by MER L EREM TR ERE Z AFEHZR
reference to the fair value of share options granted. The estimate of the fair value of the EFREBREZ ATEHNE - OREBR
share options granted is measured based on a binomial lattice model. The contractual life Wz AN EGE iR —EAEEEXTE -
of the share option is used as an input into this model. Expectations of early exercise are RERE 2 & A HAMR B IR A R B A B -
incorporated into the binomial lattice model. —EAEEEAEREREITEZTER -
Fair value of share options and assumptions BRENAFERRR
2018
—E-N\E
Amount’000
eETR
Fair value at measurement date REtERBZATE UsSD40,112
40,1123 7T
Exercise price 1B UsD40,000
40,0003 7T
Expected volatility L] 43.10%
Option life BRREFEH 2.26 years
2.265F
Expected dividends TEEAAR B -
Risk-free interest rate 18 [ 61| 5 1.36%
The expected volatility is based on the historic volatility, adjusted for any expected changes TEER IR DA LR IR RELE - WHIRAH
to future volatility based on publicly available information. Expected dividends are based on A1 & R 2 T8 HA AR AR 18 2 B ifn 1 1 & o
historical dividends. Changes in the subjective input assumptions could materially affect the TEEIRE DERELRE - TEHASER
fair value estimate. [ B REH AN TEBAEEEATE
Share options were granted under a service condition. This condition has not been taken FE AR TOARIR RS R M o LA R
into account in the grant date fair value measurement of the services received. There were STAFTBME RGN IR L B2 A EHE -
no market conditions associated with the share option grants. 5 R AR IO AR PR RS T S5 IR A o
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23

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 23

POSITION

G

(b)

O)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SRR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

Current taxation in the consolidated statement of financial position represents: (a)

(Br=HEHEBIN - GAARBKTITR)

REMBRRRANFTEH

FaMBRRRANANEIARE

2018 2017

—2-N\F —E—tF

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTT ARETT

Provision of PRC CIT for the year (Note 6(a)) FARFEPERSHEE

(FifEe(a)) 203,912 138,264

Under-provision for PRC CIT in respect of prior years 3B FE BRI EEHR T EEE 1,039 402
PRC CIT paid for the current year REENNENFREIBEMETR (211,102) (89,365)
(6,151) 49,301

Balance of PRC CIT at | January R—A— B EPEMSR &R 76,826 27,525

MRtTZA=+—HHHBERX
Balance of PRC CIT at 31 December FT15Fi 4565 70,675 76,826
Deferred tax assets recognised (b) CRIZECHELSE

The components of deferred tax assets recognised in the consolidated statements of

financial position and the movements during the year are as follows:

WERE BB EZ AR AR TIA
BEMNMAKED RAFEANZEEAT

Provisions for Accrued
Deferred inventory and expenses
revenue receivables and others Total
FERER FEsE A
EE W IR REAM At
Deferred tax arising from: RETHFIER RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
IRIERIA - ARKETT ARKETT ARETT ARET T
At | January 2017 RZT—+tF—A—H 373 2,489 8,553 [1,415
(Charged)/credited to profit or loss  (¥1f&) /5T A B2 (50) (308) 17,186 16,828
At 31 December 2017 and R+
| January 2018 +ZA=+—HK
—ZT-N\F—A—H 323 2,181 25,739 28,243
(Charged)/credited to profit or loss  (H1B&), /5t A8 (50) 215 3,680 3,845
At 3| December 2018 R-T—/\F
+=—A=+—H 273 2,396 29,419 32,088
Deferred tax assets not recognised () FFIEAWETHELE
In accordance with the accounting policy set out in Note |(q), the Group has not REMT S (TS 2T BE - BRE

recognised deferred tax assets in respect of cumulative tax losses of RMB7 1,654,000
(2017: RMB51,859,000) as it is not probable that future taxable profits against which

the losses can be utilised will be available in the relevant tax jurisdiction and entity.

The deductible tax losses expire within 5 years from the year of 2018 when such

losses were incurred under current tax law.
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Bt 75 HR 2R MY

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B =HEEBIN - JUAARKTIR)

24  CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 24 EX - RERRE
(a) Movements in components of equity of the Company (@) ALATRZERDBHED

The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances of each component of AEBLREERS IO 2FYREFLL
the Group's consolidated equity is set out in the consolidated statement of changes HEH s FANEERNGEEREB R
in equity. Details of the changes in the Company’s individual components of equity A BAARRRIFVEFRBEAEAR
between the beginning and the end of the year are set out below: RAERIER D 2 F B FFEEHIIAT ¢

Share capital ~ Capital reserve  Statutory reserve Retained earmnings Total equity

e BARGEE EE RERF s

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETT AREFT
Note 24(c)  Note 24(d)()

AREFT AREFT AREFT
Note 24(d)(i)

BifaE24(c) fiaE24(d)i)  PIEE24(d)(i)
Balance at | January 2017 R-E—tF
— R —B#t 450,823 1,458,466 64,632 483,731 2,457,652
Issue of ordinary shares TmAREE LT 1,200 18,144 = - 19,344
Total comprehensive income for the year 4 A 2 TH W 25 AR 58 - - - 677,381 677,381
Dividends approved in respect of the EBRTFERE
previous year - - - (135,607) (135,607)
Dividends approved in respect of the ERFERE
current year - - - (180,809) (180,809)
Appropriation to statutory reserve S L TR - - 67,738 (67,738) -
Balance at 31 December 2017 and | R=Z—+t &
January 2018 (Note) +-—BA=+—HE
—E-N\f—A—H
iR (ML) 452,023 1,476,610 132370 776958 2,837,96
Total comprehensive income for the year A2 2% - - - 1,003,023 1,003,023
Equity settled share-based transactions  LAREZR A& E MIAR (D S+
X5 - 33540 - - 33,540
Dividends approved in respect of the EBTFERE
previous year - - - (135,607) (135,607)
Dividends approved in respect of the HOERERERE
current year - - - (180,809) (180,809)
Appropriation to statutory reserve EESETRE - - 100,302 (100,302) -
Balance at 31 December 2018 R-ZZEBE—NFE+=A8
=+—B#&R 452,023 1,510,150 232672 1363263 3,558,108
Note: The Group has initially applied IFRS |5 and IFRS 9 at | January 2018. Under the transition Mz REBR-_Z—NE—A—B¥H

methods chosen, comparative information is not restated. See Note [(c).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 7S AR MY

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(Br=HEHEBIN - GAARBKTITR)

24  CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (Cont'd) 24 ¥BX- RERRE(E)
(b) Dividends (b) KRE
(i)  Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company attributable () FEENEREBRRKE
to the year
2018 2017
—E-N\EF “T—tF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREF 7T AREF T
Interim dividend declared and paid of RMB0.40 EIR &R AR EIRE B
per ordinary share (2017: RMB0.40) B BIRAR0407T
—E2—+F : AR¥0407T) 180,809 180,809
Final dividend proposed after the end of the RIRE IR BERIRN 2 RED
reporting period of RMB0.60 (2017: RMB0.30) A BB AR A R #0.607T
per ordinary share —T—+F : AR¥0307T) 271,214 135,607
452,023 316416
Pursuant to the resolution passed at the extraordinary general meeting of BERARRAR=_Z—N\ET+A
the Company on |5 October 2018, a cash dividend of RMBO0.40 per ordinary ThBRTHRFRRERNSE
share (2017: RMB0.40) for the six months ended 30 June 2018 were declared BEVRRR  BEZZT—N
and paid to shareholders of the Company. FRAZTHIEREARARR

AR R E IR MR AR 8 PR
ARE040TT(ZF—+F : A
R¥040T)MIREILE. -

Pursuant to the resolution passed at the directors’ meeting on 22 March 2019, BER-_Z—NAF=A=+=
a cash dividend of RMB0.60 (2017: RMB0.30) per share for the year ended HETHNESSRBBHR
31 December 2018 were proposed for the Company’s shareholders for ERCERMEE T —N\F
approval at the annual general meeting for the year 2018. The final dividend TZA=1T—RHIEFEIRMNR
proposed after the end of the year has not been recognised as liabilities as at REFRARKLOT(ZE
31 December 2018, —tF  ARM0307T) » BAfH

RARBRREZZT—NFRE
BEREG LHAE - RFELERE
RE R R B R FERB AR =
Z-NE+ZA=+—HHXWE

& o
(ij)  Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company attributable (i) RERHERSZ( LA BEF
to the previous financial year, approved and paid during the year EEMNER R RIRE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—tF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥TT ARETFT
Final dividends in respect of the previous R RERL/E SRR B9
financial year, approved and paid during the year, R EAREAR S
of RMB0.30 (2017: RMB0.30) per ordinary share % E B AR 0.307T
—T—+F : AR¥0307T) 135,607 135,607
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Bt 75 HR 2R MY

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B =HEEBIN - JUAARKTIR)

24  CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (Cont'd) 24 EBX- RERRE(E)
(c) Share capital (c) B=E
Ordinary shares, issued and fully paid ERITRHMEZER
2018 2017
—B-N\F —T—tF
Number of Number of
shares RMB’000 shares RMB'000

R EE AR¥TT

in#s B ARETT

At | January n—A—H 452,022,850 452,023 450,822,850 450,823
Shares issued 2 EITARD - - 1,200,000 1,200
As at 31 December R+=-_A=+—H 452,022,850 452,023 452,022,850 452,023
(d) Reserves d) #E
(i) Capital reserve (i) EBEX@#E

Capital reserve of the Group mainly represented premium arising from
capital injection from equity owners. The Company's capital reserve mainly
represented premium arising from capital injection from equity owners and
the grant date fair value of unexercised share options granted to NCI of a
subsidiary of the Group that has been recognised in accordance with the

accounting policy adopted for share-based payments in Note | (p)(ii).

(iij)  Statutory reserve (i)
According to the Company’s Articles of Association, the Company is required
to transfer at least 10% of its net profit as determined in accordance with the
Company Law of the PRC to its statutory surplus reserve until the reserve
balance reaches 50% of the registered capital. The transfer to this reserve
must be made before distribution of a dividend to equity owner. The statutory
reserve can be utilised, upon approval by the relevant authorities, to offset
accumulated losses or to increase capital of the subsidiary, provided that the

balance after such issue is not less than 25% of its registered capital.

REBECZEAREEEREE
HFERERFAANTERRE -
RARBAREFEREBES
BREEEAAFTENRE R
FTAEENE AR IEERER
B ARATIE B ARERE B HE
ANFE (B IRBHEE | (p)(i) 5t A%
19 32 A4 BT ER 4R 9 & 5T B SR T LA

) -

EERE

BERARRHARER - AQ
AAREFRENRFEEE D
10% )% FH 8 A X & & R
% EEREEHED MR
ANE50% o B8 A Z RN
LERFAADERE ZAT#E
1T KHEBE B ER - &K
iR BE 1T 18 45 SR 70 EL SE R AR AR
225%  SEEREETRREHER
SHEESIG M B AR 2 B

(e) Distributability of reserves (e) WZIKEE
At 31 December 2018, the aggregate amount of reserves available for distribution to RZEBE-—N\F+ZA=+—H " f7p
equity shareholders of the Company, as calculated under the provisions of Company IR FE AT AR MAR AR RR S Ik
Law of the PRC, was RMBI,363,263,000 (2017: RMB776,958,000). B A AR (R(R B A RDR) M E R

) A ANRE| 363263000 (=T —+
£ AR#776,958,0007T) °
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SRR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(Br=HEHEBIN - GAARBKTITR)

24 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (Cont'd) 24 EBE- RERRE(E)
Capital management " EXERE
The Group's primary objective when managing capital is to safeguard the Group’s AEBEREANFTEEMNEMHEER
ability to continue as a going concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for its FBCEREET ?ﬁéﬁ’ﬁ@ﬁi\ BEE A
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing products commensurately RRABKESERTE  AMREREN
with the level of risk and by securing access to finance at a reasonable cost. BERARGRE - BESRRRMH
BI3R - W AE TR E R R o
The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital structure to AEEEBETHIEREEEER
maintain a balance between the higher shareholders returns that might be possible #EE NERERSRERFLRES
with higher levels of bank loans and the advantages and security afforded by a sound KT EFZ R AR IEREfE A8 A AR
capital position, and makes adjustments to the capital structure in light of changes in MEBS T 2N 2 FERTE - it
economic conditions. SN ERAE B R E M AREEE R
-
The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis of an adjusted net debt-to- AEBAKL AR FEREE AN REE
capital ratio. For this purpose, adjusted net debt is defined as total debt (which BEHEAREE - Bt E ,Z%;ﬂf—éf%
includes interest-bearing bank loans) plus unaccrued proposed dividends, less cash BT AT R ﬁf’{(@%uﬁu\
and cash equivalents. Adjusted capital comprises all components of equity, less F)BMARE Mﬁfﬁﬂz&fﬁﬂz
unaccrued proposed dividends. ZEEE - & uﬂﬁkﬁﬁﬁ FERE R R P
BHEBEM -
During 2018, the Group's strategy was to maintain the capital in order to cover any RZZE—N\FE AEBEZRE A%
debt position, which was unchanged from 2017. BREABRNEMNEENEARKFEE -
T—tFE—H
The Group's adjusted net debt-to-equity ratios at 31 December 2018 and 2017 are as AEBR-_ZT— )\ FR-_F—+tF
follows: +TZRA=1+— ?%uﬂ%ﬁﬁﬁ@ i
LR
2018 2017
—E-N\F —tF
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
k=3 ARBTR ARETFT
Bank loans-current RITEFK—ENHY 53,399 10,000
Bank loans-non-current RITE R — FERNER = 10,000
Total debt RIERS 20 53,399 20,000
Add: Proposed dividends i ZEZEAL R 24(b) 271,214 135,607
Less: Cash and cash equivalents w o He kB EAEER 17 (593,746) (887,183)
Adjusted net debt RAREEEHR (269,133) (731,576)
Total equity g 3,678,928 3,060,586
Less: Proposed dividends o EEA A 24(b) (271,214) (135,607)
Adjusted Capital RERER 3,407,714 2,924,979
Adjusted net debt-to-equity ratio RARFEEHERLE N/A ~iEH N/A T3 A

Neither the Company nor its subsidiary are subject to externally imposed capital

requirements.

AR N B AT AP B A R 2 IR SN it
I EAREK -
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(BB A -

25
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HAAREFIR)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks arises in the normal course of

the Group's business. The Group's exposure to these risks and the financial risk management

policies and practices used by the Group to manage these risks are described below.

The Group’s exposure to these risks and the financial risk management policies and practices

used by the Group to manage these risks are described below.

(@)

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual
obligations resulting in a financial loss to the Group. The Group’s credit risk is
primarily attributable to trade and other receivables. The Group maintains a defined
credit policy and the exposures to these credit risks are monitored on an ongoing
basis. The Group's exposure to credit risk arising from cash and cash equivalents is
limited because the counterparties are banks and financial institutions, for which the
Group considers to have low credit risk. Management has a credit policy in place and

the exposures to these credit risks are monitored on an ongoing basis.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual
characteristics of each customer rather than the industry or country in which the
customers operate and therefore significant concentrations of credit risk primarily

arise when the Group has significant exposure to individual customers.

The Group has a concentration of credit risk of the total trade receivables due from

the Group's largest debtor and the five largest debtors as follows:

25

MERAREERAAEE
FEENEEEBBRETSELRFEE R
Be  NERRE®RRE - REBMEHNZ

FRMBEARERAERZ SRR R
BRERBRE REAIFAAT -
AREEHNZSRARRASEANEE
% L O B 5 B ER R R 1B 1Bt
To

@ FERR

ERRRREHF I TIRITANES
MERAKEELLEIRKINER -
FEFNEERREZRENE

HAb EU R - REBERARENE
ERE - UREEEZEEERAR -
A FHATEERAEERRERE
MIRTRERBE  HEAEERERK
ReEEVELNEERRAR - &
BEEHEEEHRE  TEHEER
ZEEERR

o

AEEEEHNEERREEZREER
BEENERNSHRTEZNER
PIETESBER AHEXEER
[\ e 3 R TA A £ B T e M) ) 3 P

[\ BR B EE A o

8
%
=

N

AEENERERBRSES  BRAEHE
BRREBARAKREZANE ZEK

FEGEDT -
2018 2017
—Z2-N\F —ZE—tF

Due from FEl
— largest trade debtor —mAEBA 4% 5%
— five largest trade debtors ~-RAREBA 16% 19%
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

25 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES (Cont'd)

(@)

Credit risk (Cont'd)

In respect of trade and other receivables, individual credit evaluations are performed
on all customers requiring credit over a certain amount. These evaluations focus on
the customer’s past history of making payments when due and current ability to pay,
and take into account information specific to the customer as well as pertaining to the
economic environment in which the customer operates. Credit limit is established for
each distributor which represents the maximum open amount or credit term without
requiring approval from the Board of Directors. The Group chases the customers to
settle the due balances and monitors the settlement progress on an ongoing basis.
The Group usually granted credit term to distributors which was generally due within
30-90 days from the date of billing. Normally, the Group does not obtain collateral

from customers.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade debtors and bills receivable and other
debtors at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, which is calculated using a provision
matrix. As the Group’s historical credit loss experience does not indicate significantly
different loss pattermns for different customer segments, the loss allowance based on
past due status is not further distinguished between the Group’s different customer

bases.

The following table provides information about the Group's exposure to credit risk

and ECLs for trade receivables as at 31 December 2018:

SRR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(Br=HEHEBIN - GAARBKTITR)

25 BIREAREERAAEEE)

C)

EERBR(E)
HESHREMBEKHKIENS @ AEER
BHMAERE T —T2BEENE
ﬁ&ﬁm%*“ﬁﬁ ZENHES
FEEE LA K B ATAYIE
ﬁ%ﬂ'ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁmzﬁuﬁgﬁ
REMELERBNBETER - &9
HAMEREEEREABAKSE
EgHAENSESREESHENEER
R AEBEEENEP &S5 B
%'Iﬁ%%%%ﬁ‘ﬁ REER
DHARE 2 EERR—RRE
%éftbf&é% B HIRR 30290 WEIH -

—RME  ARETEERELEM
-

K%EEW%%%@@@%%E%&
EEBENSEEEZREETIR

W%%&ﬁ@%%%ﬁ%%%@ﬁ’
EREeRENERBEEMFESE -
HRAEEBENEEBRIL AT
REFDAMEHERTREERRN -
E BT EnEERE e E
—IRAEENRAT P ER 2 T —

SLTE

N

RZZB-N\F+ZA=+—8 K&
B2 REFRNERERRK A RIR

%E%E%ﬁ@éﬂ@T%%m

Gross carrying

Expected loss rate amount Loss allowance

TEHIEE E#{E R

% RMB'000 RMB'000

ARET T ARET T

Within 6 months EVEES 0.5% 709,424 3431
More than 6 months but within | year tBiE6(E AE I F R 9% 29717 2,675
More than | year but within 2 years B FEFA 45% 2,355 1,060
More than 2 years but within 3 years HBiEF{HIFER 100% 432 432
More than 3 years HBiE3F 100% 5,822 5,822
747,750 13,420
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B =HEEBIN - JUAARKTIR)

25 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES (Contd) 25 HIHEBEERAABEGE
(a) Credit risk (Contd) () FEERRE)
Movement in the loss allowance account in respect of trade receivables during the FRNE S EWTIEEBEBEENES
year is as follows: wm

2018 2017

—Z2-N\F —E—+F

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T ARETF T

Balance at 31 December 2017 under IAS 39 BEEE S XERIE395%
R-ZE—tF+=-A=+—H

YA ER 11,060 13,847
Impact on initial application of IFRS 9 (Note | (c)(i)) B R E A B RS B 7 S 2RI B 95 Y
2 (FEE(©3)) - -
Balance at | January R—A— B 11,060 13,847
Amount written off during the year FRMHE (€D)) (559)
Impairment losses recognised/(reversal) during the year S RNFERR, /(80 )5 (EE1E 2,391 (2,228)
Balance at 31 December R+-—A=+—B0&es 13,420 |'1,060
Comparative information under IAS 39 EIBRE a2 B39 I L BB Y
Prior to | January 2018, an impairment loss was recognised only when there was RZZ-—NF—A—BAl BREBEEEE
objective evidence of impairment (see Note 2(b) — policy applicable prior to | ERBREERFER(RHE20)) —=
January 2018). At 3| December 2017, trade receivables of RMB14,761,000 was Z-N\F—-B—HAEANEEK) - R=F
determined to be impaired. The aging analysis of trade debtors that were not —tFt+t-A=1T—H BIREFEAR
considered to be impaired was as follows: #£14,76 1 000TCH B TE ARI1E © RABIERIER

FEWERF BRI DATAA T

2017
—T—tF
RMB'000
ARETT
Not past due 3 #2460 HR 540415
Less than 3 months past due BER3EA 50,577
More than 3 months but within | year past due BERERA3E A B I F A 7,683
598,675

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired related to a wide range of R 280 B Fe AR OB A FE KUK TE B HA I AR 3 R

customers for whom there was no recent history of default. RENZEREFEH -
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25 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES (Contd)

(@)

(b)

Credit risk (Cont'd)

Receivables that were past due but not impaired related to a number of independent
customers that had a good track record with the Group. Based on past experience,
management believed that no impairment allowance was necessary in respect of
these balances as there had been no significant change in credit quality and the

balances were still considered fully recoverable.

Liquidity risk

The Company and its individual subsidiaries are responsible for their own cash
management, including short-term investment of cash surpluses and the raising of
loans to cover expected cash demands, subject to approval by the Company's board
when the bank loans exceed certain predetermined levels of authority. The Group's
policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity requirements and its compliance with lending
covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash, readily realisable
marketable securities and adequate committed lines of funding from major financial

institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.

The following tables show the remaining contractual maturities at the end of each
report periods of the Group's financial liabilities, which are based on contractual
undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments computed at contracted rates,
if floating, based on rates current at the end of the reporting period) and the earliest

date the Group can be required to:

SRR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(Br=HEHEBIN - GAARBKTITR)

25 BBEEAREERAABEGE)

(@)

(b)

RERBRE)

EBHERRENERRBTRET
EAREEEFRIFRFLHENBLE
FER REBBEER BEERS
BARZSEMMELBERE  BE

EEZUESAEYHEERNBRRD
QES CH{ER
REBESEE
RBETRR  RECEERTHES

RABEAENEBKERESERN
FEk - ARAREEMBARAEE S
MIREEETE  BRASANKNE
HRENSEERAENEFREH
KOMRBITEREBB R LTARK
LR BFEESARAEESHL
) - ARBEBRREHERESEH
MEHRNRDESHER  UREREF
SRERPEORTE - AERERTA
BN & A A R BERF BN A (B RE
% - FSES T2 REE AR
RHNERES  WRREBNRE
HHREBESFR

TREJNAEEZ EBMEBENSRE
HARBRTZAWBHAR - DEREH
AFBRBR SR (BIFRADFEFHZ
MENF - Sl HZEFE - AIRR
HEMREFHOFTAE) ARANEE
WERZHZFHH :

2018
—E-N\F
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
BRARTRASRH

More than

| year but
Within | year less than Carrying
or on demand 5 years Total amount
IFAHRER BBIFESFER #at IREE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥TT AREFT AREFT ARETFT
Bank loans SRITER 53818 = 53,818 53,399
Trade and other payables 2 5 Ik EL M FE AR IE 676,250 - 676,250 676,250
Total HET 730,068 - 730,068 729,649
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B =HEEBIN - JUAARKTIR)

25  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES (Cont'd)
(b) Liquidity risk (Cont'd)

25 BERREERAAEEE)
(b) FREELEKRGE)

2017
“T—+F
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
BRARITRAER

More than

| year but

Within | year less than
or on demand 5 years Total  Carrying amount
IFASIZER BB IFEFA #at fRE(E
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETFT ARETFT ARBETFT ARETFT
Bank loans SRITER 10,942 10419 21,361 20,000
Trade and other payables B 5 I EL e RIE 549,542 = 549,542 549,542
Total st 560,484 10419 570,903 569,542

(c) Interest rate risk () FEEB

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Group's
interest rate risk arises primarily from bank loans. Bank loans that are at variable rates
and at fixed rates expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk and fair value
interest rate risk respectively. The Group's interest rate profiles as monitored by

management is set out in (i) below.

NEXERA—EEBTANAAEBE
FORRIRE R & K 5 K EE M
BRI AR - AEEZ A KA
REBRBRTER < FLREERN
KRTEREAEED HIHEAR SR
EMERR LA EEMNEREE T
XOFEIEHEREEE AR
MRS

208 YICHANG HEC CHANGJIANG PHARMACEUTICAL CO., LTD. EERBE X RIEEZR B ERA R



25 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES (Contd)

(c) Interest rate risk (Cont'd)

(i)

(ii)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SRR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(Br=HEHEBIN - GAARBKTITR)

25 HEEMEERAAEEE)
(c) REREE(E)

Interest rate profile (i) FIZEA K
The following table details the interest rate profile of the Group’s bank loans TREFRPBERRNEB R
at the end of the reporting period: TERZ PR
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—LtF
Effective Effective
interest rate Amount interest rate Amount
BEEA= Ll B RFE -t
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETT
Fixed rate instrument: EEFMEIA :
Bank loans RITER 1.10% 43,999 - -
Floating rate instrument: FEIR:
Bank loans RITER 5.23% 10,000 5.23% 20,000
Total bank loans RITE MR 53,999 20,000
Net fixed rate instruments as a ElEF =T B FEEG Nil
percentage of total instruments TEREZENA DL 81.48% i3
Sensitivity analysis (i) HBESH

At 3| December 2018, it is estimated that a general increase/decrease of 25

basis points in bank loans interest rates, with all other variables held constant,

would have decrease/increase the Group's profit after tax and retained profits

by approximately RMB21,000 (2017: RMB43,000). Other components of

equity would not be affected by the changes in interest rates.

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the impact on the Group's profit for the

year and retained profits that would arise assuming that there is an annualised

impact on interest expense by a change in interest rates. The analysis has been

performed on the same basis as 2017.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B =HEEBIN - JUAARKTIR)

25

210

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES (Contd) 25 HIEEREERAAEEBEGE)
(d) Currency risk d) E¥EKE
The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through shares issued upon initial AEBTFTERH N AMBITREITR
public offering which give rise to cash balances and time deposits, and sales and MEERIR S ER R AINE (ANER 5
purchase which give rise to receivables and payables that are denominated in a BRANEBSATS RAFENEER ) FTE
foreign currency, i.e. a currency other than the functional currency of the operations TP ERREEELENRY R ER
to which the transactions relate. The currencies giving rise to this risk are primarily HIEMAZEERR - 5| BULIER R
Hong Kong dollars and United States dollars. WEBETERETRET °
(i) Exposure to currency risk () HEEE%REE
The following table details the Group's exposure at the end of the reporting TRFMAEBNIRE R
period to currency risk arising from recognised assets or liabilities denominated HGELEEERAANEBEREY
in a currency other than the functional currency of the entity to which they BEEEBIINEETENEE
relate. For presentation purposes, the amounts of the exposure are shown in SEEMNEERR - Bt25 M
RMB, translated using the spot rate at the year end date. T ERREBEUAREIIR -

REFAREERIBE o

Exposure to foreign currencies (expressed in RMB)

EERIMNE R (UAREIIR)

2018 2017
—B-N\F —T—+tF
United States  Hong Kong  United States Hong Kong
Dollars Dollars Dollars Dollars
S BT e BT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTRT AR%¥TR ARETT ARETT

Trade and other receivables B 5 hEMEHRIE - - 100 -
Cash and cash equivalents BeMRE&EEER 462 47,998 679 226,731
Trade and other payables B 5 REMERKRIA (23) = (2,615) -

Net exposure arising from recognised REERAGBH

assets and liabilities BB F 5 439 47,998 (1,836) 226,731
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

25 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES (Contd)

(d) Currency risk (Cont'd)

(ii)

Sensitivity analysis
At 31 December 2018, it is estimated that a general appreciation/depreciation
of 5% in RMB, with all other variables held constant, would have increased/

decreased the Group's net profit for the year and retained profits as below.

SRR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(Br=HEHEBIN - GAARBKTITR)

BERREERANEEE)
d) E¥ERE)
(i) SBREZWN

RZZE-NEFE+ZRB=+—
H G EfAEMESRETE
BIERT - st ARBEEF
1B,/ B2 {E5% @ IS EBAEEN
FRFERERRE 5 5 BIE
WA e

2018 2017

—E-N\EF —F—tF

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥TT ARETT

United States Dollars ETT 19 (78)

Hong Kong Dollars BT 2,040 9,636
The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change in foreign exchange rate had LSRE D TRREREESHE ANEN

been applied to re-measure the financial instruments held by the Group which
expose the Group to foreign currency risk at the end of the reporting period.
The analysis excludes differences that would result from the translation of
the financial statement of foreign operations into the Group's presentation

currency. The analysis is performed on the same basis for 2017.

(e) Fair value measurement

(i)

(ii)

Financial instruments and liabilities measured at fair value

At 31 December 2018 and 3| December 2017, the Group has no financial

instruments accounted for using fair value model.

Fair value of other financial assets and liabilities carried at other than
fair value

The carrying amount of the Group’s financial instruments carried at cost or
amortised cost were not materially different from their fair value as at 31

December 2018 and 3| December 2017.

ERBERRSAEE@EBINE R AE

B - A M eEeE
BUBRRBEAAREE2INEBELNE
B NEnMiRE_—_T - EFREEERE

(e) ADABEHE
() HALEEFAEHNEBIAR

\

R=ZFB—N\F+=A=+—8H
rE—Z—ttF+=-_A=+—
B AEBVESHTERA
AR EBEBERXALE -

(i) HURXAEBEUIGTXIEHE
e BEEREELAEE
7 5% 1B 2 B AN Bt 8 K AR B B
WemITARAEREAR-Z
—NE+=ZA=+—BR=ZF
—+tFE+-A=+—HW2A
BEVESAEE -
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B =HEEBIN - JUAARKTIR)

26 CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 26 EAEE
Capital commitments outstanding at 31 December 2018 not provided for in the RZE—NF+ZA=+—8 ' ERE6H5
consolidated financial statements were as follows: WRFPRBENORBITERAENT

2018 2017

—E-NF —T—tF

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥T T ARET T

Contracted for 2ETA

— Acquisition of fixed assets BEETEE 283,413 350,503

— Acquisition of intangible assets (Note [4) —HEELEE(MT14) 408,400 300,000

691,813 650,503
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B R M EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(Br=HEHEBIN - GAARBKTITR)

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 217 ERBBAERES

During 2018 and 2017, the directors are of the view that related parties of the Group NRZE-N\ERZE—+F EFEREALE
include the following: EHEEE S EEA TSR ¢
Name of related parties Relationship with the Group

BT £ 8 SRS EHEE

HEC Pharm effectively owned by the controlling shareholder
HERGKE MERRRERES

Sunshine Lake Pharma effectively owned by the controlling shareholder
BRI B MERERESER

Shenzhen HEC Industrial effectively owned by the controlling shareholder
RYITRG R EE HERERERES

Shaoguan HEC Packaging and Printing Co., Ltd. (“Shaoguan HEC Printing”) associate of the intermediate controlling shareholder
RS BEENRIAR N E) ([ HBRRELENR D) Fh R AR A SR OB 5 R B

Yichang HEC Power Plant Co., Ltd. (*HEC Power Plant”) effectively owned by the controlling shareholder
HERGAANEEERAR(TEEREGIEE]) HERERESES

Yidu Shangchengshuidu Project Construction Co., Ltd. (*Yidu Construction™) effectively owned by the ultimate shareholder
HEIWLKERETIZER AR ([EMEE]) HEERRERRER

Yidu Changjiang Machine and Equipment Co., Ltd. (*Yidu Machine”) effectively owned by the ultimate shareholder
HERITEMREAR LR ([E &R ) MR RERRER

Ruyuan Shangchengshuidu Fumiture Co., Ltd. (“Ruyuan Fumniture) effectively owned by the ultimate shareholder
FURILBKEBRAER AR (TFRRA D) HMRERRESER

HEC Retail Chain Co,, Ltd. ("HEC Retail ") effectively owned by the ultimate shareholder
REAETEEHARRR([RELETE]) BRI RERRER

& The English translation of the above companies’ names is for reference only. The official names of

these companies are in Chinese.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B =HEEBIN - JUAARKTIR)

27 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont'd) 27 EXBHLIRZ(E)
(a) Transactions with related parties @ HBREFZXS
During 2018 and 2017, the Group entered into the following material related party MRIE—N\FER-_ZE—LF XEEHE
transactions: RINATERFAERRS ¢
Recurring transactions BEMEXE
2018 2017
—2-NF —F—tF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T ARETT
Purchase of goods from: BUTEFEEER :
HEC Pharm HERBGK 15,885 9417
Shaoguan HEC Printing HR AR 5 ¢ ED R 18,227 1,514
HEC Power Plant HEERPBGIESE 9,180 4976
43,292 25907

Accept service amount of liquid waste processing from: B U IA T & H RIESKIRIGE

HEC Pharm Co,, Ltd. HERGLEXENERAR 2,579 2,137
Payment past through: BBATEFNR
Shenzhen HEC Industrial RN TERE B 87,060 20,896
Sales of goods to: MATEFHEEM
Shenzhen HEC Industrial and its subsidiaries YT RS B3 R H B AR 2,318 2,594
Purchase of fixed assets from: MU T ST REBEEAE :
Yidu Machine AR 6,239 586
Non-recurring transactions HEEMXS
2018 2017
—ZE-N\F T —+tF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARKET T
(i)  Purchase of fixed assets from: () MIATEFEEBETCEE :
HEC Pharm HEREK 71,767 -
(i) Purchase of intangible assets from: @iy MUATEFREBELEE :
Sunshine Lake Pharma BRREG A 79,100 —
(i) Other services received from: (i) BER AT 57 1R ALY HoAth AR 7S -
Yidu Construction HERE 140,164 83949
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(Br=HEHEBIN - GAARBKTITR)

27 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Contd) 21 EABBSRE(E
(b) Balances with related parties (b) EREEEETSRVAERR
(i) Amounts due from related parties () EREHE>HE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETFT
Prepayment and trade receivable from: KB A& AR E
B HEWFIE
Sunshine Lake Pharma ERRIG B 717,700 400,000
HEC Retail REEETE 57 -
HEC Pharmaceutical Research and Development SRS BESERE 2,208 -
719,965 400,000
(i)  Amounts due to related parties (i) BB LA
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET R ARETFT
Trade payables and other payables to: ERUATETNES K
H IR
Shaoguan HEC Printing AR5 EN il 2,929 4,499
Yidu Construction HAERRE 9,164 16,050
Ruyuan Furniture HH#BRA 1 -
12,104 20,549
(iii)  Guarantee from related parties (iii) BBITER
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETFT
Shenzhen HEC Industrial Y TR T 10,000 20,000
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B =HEEBIN - JUAARKTIR)

27 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Contd)
(c) Key management personnel compensation
Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group, including amounts paid
to the Company's directors’ as disclosed in Note 7 and certain of the highest paid

employees as disclosed in Note 8, is as follows:

27

EXBBAERS(#E)

(©

TEEEABHRM
FEBETEERABNFHHM(BENT
ME7REN AR RES MM TR EE
ETREHMALTHFIR)OT

2018 2017

—2-N\fF —E—tF

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTT ARETT

Salaries and other benefits 54 R EHAMEF 3,014 2,243
Contribution to defined retirement benefit schemes TFERRIER IR 125 124
3,139 2,367

Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (See Note 5(b)).

(d) Applicability of the Listing Rules relating to connected transactions
The recurring transactions with related parties in respect of Note 27(a) above
constitute continuing connected transactions as defined in Chapter [4A of the Listing
Rules. The disclosures required by Chapter [4A of the Listing Rules are provided in

section headed "“Continuing Connected Transactions” of the Directors’ Report.

(d)

FMeBEAATEIRAI(RWE
5(b)) °

HEERSEHN EWRANERY

B EE27 ()R B S R EER S
BRLETHRUETHARER T 2H
BEERS - BRELTHRUETTA
EMREZBRBHNEFTRE 2 [ FE

RER S | —4&f
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28 COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 28 NEIBEZ MR R R
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
(Note)
(FfF3E)
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
BiaE ARETT AREFTT
Non-current assets kRBEE
Fixed assets EEE&E
— Property, plant and equipment — W - R MERE 1,177,644 590,333
— Interests in leasehold land held for —RELEHEREERZ
own use under operating leases TS+ HhiEzs 81,462 79,835
1,259,106 670,168
Intangible assets W EE 129,470 57,157
Investments in subsidiaries R B A TR E 13 562,999 487,834
Prepayments FafRIE 817,509 558,81 |
Deferred tax assets EERIBEE 32,023 28,220
2,801,107 1,802,190
Current assets REEE
Inventories ey 164,286 87,967
Trade and other receivables B 5 N H b fE W GkIE 1,172,941 742,121
Time deposits TFEHTER = 346,519
Cash and cash equivalents ReLIRESEEIAER 446,633 870,158
1,783,860 2,046,765
Current liabilities nEBEE
Trade and other payables B 5 REMERFIA 695,848 845,229
Contract liabilities AEREE 134,361 =
Bank loans RITER 53,399 10,000
Deferred income IRAE N 2 4,379 4379
Current taxation FETENERFH 1B 69,658 76,744
957,645 936,352
Net current assets RENEE R 826,215 [,110413
Total assets less current liabilities BEERARBAE 3,627,322 2,912,603
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Bank loans RITER - 10,000
Deferred income EIEW S 69,214 64,642
69,214 74,642
Net assets BEE 3,558,108 2,837961
Capital and reserves BAR R
Share capital N 24(c) 452,023 452,023
Reserves & 24(d) 3,106,085 2,385,938
Total equity R 3,558,108 2,837,961
Note: The Group has initially applied IFRS 5 and IFRS 9 at | January 2018. Under the transaction MizE : AEREER-_T—N\F—A—HEXEREH
methods chosen, comparative information is not restated. See Note | (c). PR B 75 3 25 A2 I 55 | S5 Ko B B2 B 7 3 25 22 R

o5 - BIBFTEBE N L - BASIILR
B o RMEEI(C) °
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BB A -

29

218

HAAREFIR)

NON-ADJUSTING EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

)

(if)

(i)

After the end of the reporting period, the board of directors of the Company

approved a distribution of dividends. Further details are disclosed in Note 24(b).

On 25 February 2019, the Company entered into an acquisition agreement with
Sunshine Lake Pharma, pursuant to which the Company agreed to acquire, and
Sunshine Lake Pharma agreed to dispose, the intellectual property rights, industrial
property rights and ownership rights in relation to 27 pharmaceutical products within
the PRC at a total consideration of RMB1,626,434,600 (the “Proposed Acquisition™),
which comprised a prepayment of RMB813,217,300, 27 milestone payments totalling
RMB325,286,900 and two contingent amounts totalling RMB487,930,400. The
Proposed Acquisition is subject to, among others, approval by the independent
shareholders of the Company at the extraordinary general meeting. Up to the date of

this report, the Proposed Acquisition has not been completed.

On 14 August 2018, the Company entered into a subscription agreement with
certain entities ultimately controlled by The Blackstone Group L.P. (“Blackstone
Fund SPVs") pursuant to which, the Blackstone Fund SPVs have conditionally agreed
to subscribe for, and the Company has conditionally agreed to issue H Share
Convertible Bonds with an aggregate principal amount of US$400,000,000. The H
Share Convertible Bonds, if issued, will mature on the seventh anniversary of the issue
date and bear interest at the rate of 3.0% per annum. The initial conversion price was
HK$38 per share, which is subject to adjustment in certain events. The Convertible
Bonds may be converted into 82,631,578 conversion shares at the initial conversion
price of HK$38 per share (assuming full conversion of the H Share Convertible Bonds
and subject to adjustment in certain events), representing approximately 18.28% of
the existing issued share capital of the Company as at the date of this report. On
20 February 2019, all the conditions precedent for the issue and subscription of the
convertible bonds (““H Share Convertible Bonds™) under the Subscription Agreement
have been fulfilled, and the issue of H Share Convertible Bonds has completed up to

the date of this report.

YICHANG HEC CHANGJIANG PHARMACEUTICAL CO., LTD.
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RBERRZE  ARARESEGEH]
HEREDIK - BELZFBRENWME
24(b) ©

—hFZRA=+AB ' &AD
HERRBGHEXTIRERE - 15
I AARIRENE - mMERRE
BERBHERVEEDEBHTRE
BRMSEE  TEERKFTAE -
BRBAANRE,626434,6007T ([ i
WHERIE]) - Wi ARKSI3217300
TLHI TR R~ AR #5325,286900 7T HY
BERBARRZERGLSEARE
487930400 C 4R - EEWBFIAA
(HRBRE) REERERS AR
BB IRERE c EEAME R -
BEWE S AT ©

\7
\_

RZZB-—NFNA+TMA - AR HE
FiThe Blackstone Group L.P. &% #4422 il &Y
ETER((RLEASKHKRENER])
I RBEGH B BRESER
BNEREFGKEHRERE AR

AIEERGRERT  reefEaHk
#$400,000,0005 TTEYHAR ATEE (B 55 o
HAR T8 (5 5 (W 31T ) ISR 84T B
Mt EFZ BER - WIZFF £3.0%
FHE o YIRERER SER3ISETT -
EETERTAITHE - AJERES
AR B AR 3878 T M) ) 4R S HA (B AR E54
782,631,578 B A% 1) (RAXHAR T 85
REHFEREER  BEETERT
A THREE) EARRARARE B HR
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B 7S AR MY

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(Br=HEHEBIN - GAARBKTITR)

COMPARATIVE FIGURES 30 HEEF

The Group has initially applied IFRS 15 and IFRS 9 at | January 2018. Under the transition REBR-_Z—N\F— A —BYLERABRK

methods design, comparative information is not restated. Further details of the changes in WIS RS 2R ZE 1 557 R BRI SRS 2RI

accounting policies are disclosed in Note 1(c). 95k o MIBMBE AR - TEEILERE
e BEEtBRE SN E — S HBERME
() EE °

IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE CONTROLLING PARTIES 31 HERBARERRR

At 31 December 2018, the directors consider the immediate parent of the Group to be RZZE—-—NF+ZA=+—8 EFRAEXN

Guangdong HEC Technology Holding Co., Ltd. (BR R EIHEIERAR A 7)), which SENEZET AR AR EFEMK A ER

is incorporated in the PRC. The ultimate controlling party of the Group to be Mr. Zhang REEABRIRBRAR AT - MAEBHRK

Zhongneng and his spouse Mrs. Guo Meilan. YERR T R AR S A R B R BB 2 L o

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS AND 32 HREBE=_ZE—N\F+=-A=+—HLEFEE

INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR BB RERNIERT - HEARBRIE
ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 =T

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the IASB has issued a number of HEAMBHRETEZEE - BFESERZE
amendments, new standards and interpretations which are not yet effective for the year BEEEEMZEREEZE_Z—/\F+=A
ended 31 December 2018 and which have not been adopted in these financial statements. =+ —HIEFEEARERE W KRB R
These include the following which may be relevant to the Group. RARANEEF] « FTEA KRR - B ATEE

EAEEARNEETHISE -

Effective for
accounting periods

beginning on or after

BUTR#s 2%

BRI SR IR AR

IFRS 16, Lease | January 2019
BRI RE LRI 1655 - HE —T-NF—-A—H
IFRIC 23, Uncertainty over income tax treatments | January 2019
BRI E R B E S E Y - AN RELZ R —T-NE—HA—H
Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle | January 2019
B GHREEYN T -AFE T FREB 2 FEUE —T-hF—A—H
Amendments to IAS 28, Long-term interest in associates and joint ventures | January 2019
et RIS (BRI A)  REERR A EtENRER “Z-hF—HA—H
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BB A -

32

220

HAAREFIR)

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 (Contd)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the impact of these
amendments, new standards and interpretations is expected to be in the period of initial
application. So far the Group has not identified the IFRS 16 which may have a significant
impact on the consolidated financial statements. While the assessment has been substantially
completed for IFRS 16, the actual impact upon the initial adoption of this standard may differ
as the assessment completed to date is based on the information currently available to the
Group, and further impacts may be identified before the standard is initially applied in the
Group’s interim financial report for the six months ended 30 June 2019. The Group may also
change its accounting policy elections, including the transition options, until the standard is

initially applied in that financial report.

IFRS 16, Leases

As disclosed in Note [ (h), currently the Group classifies leases into finance leases and
operating leases and accounts for the lease arrangements differently, depending on the
classification of the lease. The Group enters into some leases as the lessor and others as the

lessee.

IFRS 16 is not expected to impact significantly on the way that lessors account for their
rights and obligations under a lease. However, once IFRS |6 is adopted, lessees will no
longer distinguish between finance leases and operating leases. Instead, subject to practical
expedients, lessees will account for all leases in a similar way to current finance lease
accounting, i.e. at the commencement date of the lease the lessee will recognise and
measure a lease liability at the present value of the minimum future lease payments and
will recognise a corresponding “right-of-use” asset. After initial recognition of this asset and
liability, the lessee will recognise interest expense accrued on the outstanding balance of
the lease liability, and the depreciation of the right-of-use asset, instead of the current policy
of recognising rental expenses incurred under operating leases on a systematic basis over
the lease term. As a practical expedient, the lessee can elect not to apply this accounting
model to short-term leases (i.e. where the lease term is |2 months or less) and to leases of
low-value assets, in which case the rental expenses would continue to be recognised on a

systematic basis over the lease term.

YICHANG HEC CHANGJIANG PHARMACEUTICAL CO., LTD.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 (Contd)

IFRS 16, Leases (Cont'd)

IFRS 16 will primarily affect the Group's accounting as a lessee of leases for properties, plant
and equipment which are currently classified as operating leases. The application of the new
accounting model is expected to lead to an increase in both assets and liabilities and to
impact on the timing of the expense recognition in the statement of profit or loss over the

period of the lease.

IFRS 16 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2019. As allowed
by IFRS 16, the Group plans to use the practical expedient to grandfather the previous
assessment of which existing arrangements are, or contain, leases. The Group will therefore
apply the new definition of a lease in IFRS 16 only to contracts that are entered into on
or after the date of initial application. In addition, the Group plans to elect the practical
expedient for not applying the new accounting model to short-term leases and leases of

low-value assets.

The Group plans to elect to use the modified retrospective approach for the adoption of
IFRS 16 and will recognise the cumulative effect of initial application as an adjustment to the
opening balance of equity at | January 2019 and will not restate the comparative information.
At 31 December 2018 the Group has no significant lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases over one year after the reporting date. Upon the initial adoption of IFRS
|6, the opening balances of lease liabilities and the corresponding right-of-use assets will be
adjusted to their present value respectively, after taking account the effects of discounting, as

at | January 2019.

Other than the recognition of lease liabilities and right-of-use assets, the Group expects
that the transition adjustments to be made upon the initial adoption of IFRS |6 will not be

material.
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DEFINITIONS
B

“AGM”
ERBEAE ]

“Annual Report”
[ 4]

“Articles of Association”

[RA]ERE]

“Board of Directors” or “Board”

[E5g]

“Board of Supervisors”

[EEe )

“Chairman”

[EER]

“China” or "PRC"

[HE

"Company,” "the Company,”
“Pharm HEC", “we" or “us”

[ADE ISk R e 5 5 5]

"“Controlling Shareholder(s)"”
[ERRRR

“Director(s)"”

(%)
“Domestic Share(s)"”
[RERB]

“Global Offering”

[2IREE]

the forthcoming annual general meeting for the year 2018 of the Company

RRAR—E- N\FERERRBFAE

the annual report of the Company for the year 2018
RRRZE-N\FFR

the articles of association of the Company

RABNER

board of directors of the Company

RAREES

board of supervisors of the Company

RAREES

chairman of board of directors of the Company

AAREEREER

the People’s Republic of China, but for the purposes of this Annual Report and for geographical reference
only (unless otherwise indicated), excluding Taiwan, Macau and Hong Kong

REARKMNE - EAFRR0E EME - RAEEAN - TRERE  RFILES

YiChang HEC Changliang Pharmaceutical Co,, Ltd. (B &R E X RITEER(HER A F]), a company
established in the PRC on | | May 2015 as a joint stock company
HERGARIEEROHERAR  — KR _F—AFHA+—BETEKRINKHERAE

has the meaning given to it under the Listing Rules

HA LR AR T HORE

director(s) of the Company
KRABER

issued ordinary share(s) in the share capital of the Company with a nominal value of RMB1.00 each, which is
(are) subscribed for or credited as fully paid in RMB
RABBRARFREBEARE | 0TNEEITERR - HAARERBRMR

the offer of the Company’s H Shares for subscription as described in the prospectus of the Company
MINA R BIBREIRFTE A A BIHAR B E A RS
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“Group”
[REE ]

“H Shares”

[HAZ

“HEC Pharm”

[EEREE]

“HKSCC”
[BBEE]

“HK$" or “HKD”
[&7t)

“Hong Kong"
(&

“Hong Kong Stock Exchange™ or
“Stock Exchange”
[ EBH T IS B2 P )

“|FRSs”

[ BIBR A 75 s s 228

“Latest Practicable Date”

[ AL EFRAI1T B H )

DEFINITIONS
B=

the Company and its subsidiaries

EANGISEN )= NG

ordinary share(s) in the share capital of the Company with a nominal value of RMB1.00 each, which is (are)
listed on the Stock Exchange and is (are) subscribed for and traded in HKD
ARRRIRAREREEARE 00T EER - RERRM M AETREREE

HEC Pharm Co,, Ltd* (B & R[5 85 AR DB F)), a company incorporated in the PRC on 12
January 2004
HERGHEEROHBRAR  — KR _TTWF—A+—BEFBEEMK AR

Hong Kong Securities Clearing Company Limited
BRPRGEBRAT

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency for the time being of Hong Kong

BT BEREEEEY

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
HEEE R RITTH R

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
BEBMARHMBERAR

the International Financial Reporting Standards, which include standards and interpretations promulgated by
the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB), and the International Accounting Standards (IAS) and
interpretation issued by the Intemational Accounting Standards Committee (IASC)

BRI SRR - BERR S HERPR R SR MAHER MR AN B S ERIR S 2R
B et R R

2 April 2019, being the latest practicable date for the purpose of ascertaining certain information contained
in this Annual Report prior to its publication
“ZNFEOAZR  RAFRTIEANAEERETHE TENNKRERITEH
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DEFINITIONS

BE

“Listing Date”

[ LB

“Listing Rules”
[ LAl

“Model Code”

“Parent Company”
=25l
"PBOC"

[FPEARRT]

“Renminbi” or “RMB”
[ARE]

“Reporting Period”
[#REH

“SFO”
[ &5 M S RG]

““Shareholder(s)"
[ &3 ]

29 December 2015, on which the H Shares were listed on the Stock Exchange and from which dealings in

the H Shares were permitted to commence on the Stock Exchange

“E-RFTZAZTAR  HERREERAT LR R - WA b B - HAREEER B S AR A

i
i

\
/
\
/

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, as amended
from time to time

BRBARHMERARBSF EWRA - EIRHER]

Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 of the

Listing Rules
ETRBIMEE T AT EM BT AERRITES X SR ETE

Guangdong HEC Technology Holding Co., Ltd. (BR R X EHRIEIRAH BR A A]), a company
incorporated in the PRC on 24 October 1996 and whose shares are listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange
(stock code: 600673)

BERRGAMBRERENER AT - —FKR—ANNE+ A0 R EP BRI REBROR
LRESFZZH Emz AR (BRI : 600673)

FR B A R 177 (People’s Bank of China)
FEIARRIT

the lawful currency of the PRC
HBEEE

the year ended 3| December 2018
HE_ZT—/\F+-_A=+—HLLFE

the Securities and Futures Commission of Hong Kong

BB IESEHERZES

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) as amended, supplemented

or otherwise modified from time to time

BREDIES7I BERHZLHEGED - ETRHER] - WRAEMA N ER

holder(s) of our Shares, including holders of H shares and holders of domestic shares of the Company

BOFAAN - BRARAHEREARRERFEA
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“Shares”

(Rt

“Shenzhen HEC Industrial”

[RINTREGAEE]

“Sunshine Lake Pharma”

[ERREGEE]

“Supervisor(s)”

(B

“Yichang HEC Pharmaceutical”

[EEREEEIE]

g
1%

DEFINITIONS
B=

shares in the share capital of the Company, with a nominal value of RMB1.00 each

ARRAFPBAF FEEARE 1 007THIAR D

Shenzhen HEC Industrial Development Co., Ltd. (RIITT R HE X ZERBRAF]), a company
incorporated in the PRC on 27 January 1997 and a Controlling Shareholder
FYTREAEEERERLAR)  — KR —NANEF A+ RAEPEEMKIARR - B—
BIERRARR

Sunshine Lake Pharma Co., Ltd. (R R[5 ZEZEFR A F]), a company incorporated in the PRC on 29
December 2003
BREGHEERRAT  —RRZFE=F T A=+ NBEFEFMKIHAA

the supervisor(s) of the Company

RAFEEE

Yichang HEC Pharmaceutical Manufacturing Co., Ltd. (E 2R3 & 2GR A 7)), a company
incorporated in the PRC
HERBGHABERRAF - —REFBFMAZAAF

per cent.

ADt



CORPORATE INFORMATION
REEH

REGISTERED NAME
YiChang HEC Changliang Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.

DIRECTORS
Executive Directors
Mr. JIANG Juncai

Mr. WANG Danjin

Mr. CHEN Yangui

Mr. LI Shuang

Non-executive Directors
Mr. TANG Xinfa (Chairman)
Mr. Eddy HUANG

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. TANG Jianxin

Mr. FU Hailiang

Mr. LEE Chi Ming

REMUNERATION AND EVALUATION COMMITTEE
Mr. FU Hailiang (Chairman)

Mr. JJIANG Juncai

Mr. TANG Jianxin

AUDIT COMMITTEE
Mr. TANG Jianxin (Chairman)
Mr. LEE Chi Ming

Mr. TANG Xinfa

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
Mr. LEE Chi Ming (Chairman)

Mr. Eddy HUANG

Mr. FU Hailiang

=i EH

HERGARTEERNBRARF

E=

HITES
ELsob bt
FrRgE
R SEAE
FRELE

FHUTES
BEHEELE(EER)
BEL

BYFHTES
g aipit
EREE
FERKE

FHEERESS
st (EE)
B A L
EfeLiibitea

EREES
L (EE)
FERKE
FERTR L

REZEE
FERREFEE)
=IPEL
st
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SUPERVISORS

Ms. HUANG Fangfang
Mr. LUO Zhonghua
Mr. WANG Shengchao

COMPANY SECRETARIES
Mr. PENG Qiyun
Ms. NG Wing Shan (FCS, FCIS)

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES
Mr. TANG Xinfa

West Fourth Floor, Building 106

Huafa North Road, Futian District, Shenzhen

Guangdong Province, the PRC

Ms. NG Wing Shan
40th Floor, Sunlight Tower
No. 248 Queen'’s Road East

Wanchai, Hong Kong

REGISTERED OFFICE
No. 38 Binjiang Road
Yidu, Yichang, Hubei Province, the PRC

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN THE PRC

No. 38 Binjiang Road
Yidu, Yichang, Hubei Province, the PRC

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG
40th Floor, Sunlight Tower, No. 248 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai, Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKER

China Construction Bank Co., Ltd.
Qingjiang Branch

56 Changjiang Avenue

Yidu, Hubei Province, PRC

CORPORATE INFORMATION

FHESLE
Rk (FCS ~ FCIS)

BREAR

R TE
HEERE

R TR H R E L IR
|06HR A&7

Rkifiz £+
BRET
ERRBR2485
(5 H 4012

FMRER
R EEEE ™
BT BE385R

PEEEE i 2
REHItE ES EEm
VBT B 385%

EETEEENY
BAET 2R AEF2485
(5 H 4012

FEAREIT

B RIRITIRD BR A A
ETIXAT
RERILE EE T
RITRES65R
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
REER

INTERNATIONAL AUDITORS
KPMG

Certified Public Accountants

8/F, Prince’s Building, 10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

DOMESTIC AUDITORS
KPMG Huazhen LLP Guangzhou branch

PRC LEGAL ADVISORS
Jia Yuan Law Offices

F408 Ocean Plaza

158 Fuxingmennei Avenue
Xicheng District

Beijing

PRC

H SHARE REGISTRAR

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor,

Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,

Wanchai, Hong Kong

STOCK CODE
01558

COMPANY’S WEBSITE

www.hec-changjiang.com

LISTING PLACE

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

B R A BT
EHEE R EB
HEEEED

BT

T 1038 K+ KE8E

B i BT
EEAERSHMEBIERLBAE)EMA PR

HRE AR
=REMEGAT

H

R

R

1R HLPTAAR AT 15855
BT AREF408

HERHBFEETE
BAERRESELERAR]
EELT

ERKBRI83R

BRI THE1712-17 | 65548

R K5
01558

BN N

www.hec-changjiang.com

Lt
BFRBMARHMERAT
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